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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue decreased by approximately 28.8% to RMB322.6 million
(2018: RMB453.2 million).

Gross profit decreased by approximately 37.0% to RMB156.8 million
(2018: RMB249.0 million).

Loss for the Year was approximately RMB194.7 million (2018: loss of
RMB112.8 million).

Loss per share was RMB20.57 cents (2018: loss per share RMB11.92
cents).

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
(2018: Nil) for the Year or any special dividend (2018: Nil).
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To the Shareholders,
On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (the “Company”,

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “Year”).
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In 2019, to further implement the Group’s development strategy, the
Group made great efforts into the development of products under the
maternity and child series, continued to diversify its various sales channels
including distributors, TV shopping platforms and e-commerce platforms,
and strengthened the marketing of the Good Health brand series
products.

In 2019, in order to establish a healthy environment for the development
of the health product industry, the Chinese government regulators further
strengthened the supervision and rectification measures to ensure that
the health product market will become more and more standardised.
When people take the initiative to boost healthy immunity as a rigid
demand in life, the consumption of health products will become more
normalised, and the management of product research, development and
product application will also become more refined, thereby guiding
consumers to improve their level of health in a more scientific way. For
enterprises in the industry, high-quality products, standardised production
and brand credibility will be the most important core competitiveness.
The Good Health brand exactly meets the above requirements.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus epidemic in early 2020 has caused
material impact on the PRC's economic operation and the living of the
public. The epidemic also affected the Company's daily operation to a
certain extent, especially in the product distribution and logistics. Recently,
with the gradual control and mitigation of the PRC's epidemic, logistics
and distribution have basically resumed to normal. The Company has
evaluated the epidemic with due care and believes that it will not bring
material impact on the Company’s daily operation and cash flow. The fight
against the epidemic also arouses the public to reflect on the importance
of health and immunity. After the SARS epidemic, the health product
industry ushered in a wave of growth since 2003. With the subsequent
vigorous efforts invested by the PRC into the big health industry and the
improvement of the living standards of the public, the health product
industry has maintained growth year by year. According to the data from
third-party statistical agencies, the global health product market reached
US$266.7 billion in 2019, and the PRC has become the world’s second
largest health product market with its market share of up to 21.8% and a
volume of approximately US$58 billion which demonstrated year-by-year
growth. In 2020, the Company will continue to implement its established
development strategy and focus on the Good Health brand. In particular,
it will increase investment in research and development, market
promotion, and channel construction of products under the maternity
and child series to increase the Company'’s results in 2020.

& EREE

2019F  BE—FPERASEEREE  A5E
RAFERNBREGBRIIER  BEEZHI(L
MHERE(ETBEREEHD  EAEYTFaM
ETEHETARE) NRBHERRIERNE
HERSE

2019 FEIRFEERE S ZRFENRRER
TRBERRR E-—PNATEEEENE £
SREGMSEREFRRBEER - EAMZH
IR R RR NESLEERMERE - REDH
BRESENMRRL  LEESHERITEMNER
B EIRE INAEAN - WM E B EE BRI 2R
FrEREFEKF - HRITEAMDERE - #E
MEmM SENEENREAENEREERS
LRSS - R EmE R T T A N EEEE

20 F PIE BN BRRSEE - AP ROEE
BITMEEARBNEETERTEATE - KIFY
AARIMBEEEHRERT —EHFE  BHiZ
TEEMRXYRIRET - 08 EREREES
BEIEHITER  MREEBEERNRELES -
NEEHRIBETEENG  REEBETEY
REAIMNAREENESRELEEATE - MER
BEORE - 3| BRABHRBREBERME2E K
EFEE2MH - B2003F 8 - FEMAFFLZ B R/E R
RETEORT —FEE  BRPBRKIEEKX
RETEMAKREERKFORA  RERITER
BTEFNERE - BEEZ TR HBEIEE
2019 F RERBR TSR EEE266718E
T TEEKARRE - KRERTIS - miHH
HSE218%  MELHAESIEFET - BERFRE
R 2020F  AARBEENTHRTERE
B BEOJEERE  LEESERMER LM
Aifte: - MESEHEMREZZNEA - A
RANTE) 2020 FHYZELE -

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
S REE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express that the Group would grip
the opportunity to promote Good Health as well as expand its health
products in several sales channels food business in the PRC, New Zealand
and Australia in order to improve the health conditions of people.

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

27 March 2020
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PRODUCT INFORMATION
EmER

GOOD HEALTH
FRERY

Propolis Capsules Oyster Plus Capsules
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Hi Cal™ Liquid Calcium & Vitamin D Goats’ Milk Powder
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Grape Seed 55,000 Capsules 1-a-day Glucosamine
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PRODUCT INFORMATION
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Omega 3 Fish Oil Capsules Modified Milk Powder
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In 2019, to further implement the Group’s development strategy, the
Group made great efforts into the development of products under the
maternity and child series, continued to diversify its various sales channels
including distributors, TV shopping platforms and e-commerce platforms,
and strengthened the marketing of the Good Health brand series
products. The sales revenue for the Year decreased as compared to that of
2018 due to the reduced sales revenue of original retail shops under the
Zhongsheng brand and online call centres as a result of the Group’s
adjustment of sales channels. The revenue of the Group decreased from
approximately RMB453.2 million in 2018 to approximately RMB322.6
million for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 28.8%. The
Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB194.7 million, as compared to
a loss of approximately RMB112.8 million in 2018.

During the Year, the Group continued to adopt the strategies of focusing
on the Good Health brand and sales promotion through distributors, TV
shopping and e-commerce channels, so as to achieve increasingly higher
brand recognition of Good Health brand in the target markets. The Group
carried out continuous brand building and promotion mainly through
combination of distributors, TV shopping platforms, chain pharmacies and
travel channels, and at the same time by opening flagship stores on
domestic major e-commerce platforms.

During the Year, in order to enhance the market competitiveness of its
products and meet the evolving consumer demands, the Group has
adopted a market-oriented strategy for research and product
development to further strengthen the development of new products.
During the Year, the Group has launched a total of 25 new products,
including 2 Hejian series products, 20 Good Health series products and 3
Living Nature series products. The new products mainly comprise
probiotic solid beverage, green-lipped mussel, organic fucoidan capsule
and DHA & PS soft capsule.

For the PRC's market, the Group has made great effort to develop
domestic distributors, TV shopping platforms and e-commerce platforms
during the Year. In terms of TV shopping platforms, the Group has built
cooperation with a number of platforms including yougou.com, hao24.
com, best1.com, jiajiamall, CNRmall, happigo.com, ocj.com.cn and Global
Home Shopping to sell general trade and cross-border trade products. In
terms of e-commerce platforms, the Group continued to cooperate with
e-commerce platforms such as Tmall International, JD.com, suning.com,
xiaohongshu.com, pinduoduo.com and Health Post.

The Group’s overseas diversified sales platforms mainly include
international distribution network broadly distributed in countries
including the United Kingdom, Germany, Singapore, Vietnam and
Thailand, and local large chain pharmacies, health goods supermarkets
and tourist souvenir shops in New Zealand and Australia.

7 am M AT

R
—
He
I&]

2019%F » A — P ERAEEEREE
RAFERNEEFBRIESR
RtHE RS (Hh e R -

p=va) Yaras
HEYeE

rEH
BEESHENL
EREMES -
CIEEH T RERYERNE
HEENE AN AEEHERBENAR  RE
RASTZTERE S LR OESE WA
Lo REEHERARK2018FEA T - KE
ErREH2018FNHARE432BE8 T T
BREAFEHNHARBEINEE L BRIBNA
288% c AEEBEBEEHAREKI47BEE L
MR 2018 FRISRBEEHOARE 1128BET -

RAFER AR B RIUR RN 2 5 5 58
MEBERLHE  EUBYERETHESREE
TTIHE HEMRE - AMEEFREMREEREFET
BSOMEERREN - AEET2RBLHEE -
ERBYYE  EHERE LKFREFRIAAE
& FAE - RACBBERARDETHEF S
PR S S0 NETTI BN mIEE R IR

REFEAN  AEEBARAEMNMSERFE IR
METEEBEREEERE - AEBRANUMIS
RERMARREMRERE - #— S inasE
EmRRAE  RAFER - REBEHFHT25TE
FEM BE2BERARRINER 20HTRER
PIEE Sh bA B 378 Living Nature R E R » FEMT
TOETEREEHRN SEHRE  AHERS

B EE I DHA & PSERBTE % o

HRPEMES  AEERAFERNANERERM
KiEE - BERBYTENETEHEES - BRE
REMTE  AEEENEEY  0ZHE - 175
B RXRE - LER - REE - RTBYWNIRIK
BYEZRTeARAE  HE—REBEIRBER
BoEM - BREFHEFS - ZF%.F?TE@
WEE R -HESE NAE B

Health Post EE FEEFaRREEE ©

AEBESINZTIEHEFEEE a%)%éﬁ
WREBENBEREHEARK (BRI - 28 -

Fronge - WA - I&iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂaﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬂlm
REGEHEER - &J?%uutm&m BRSmAEE)

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH



BIRE T am M AT

The revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB322.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately 28.8% from
approximately RMB453.2 million in 2018. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately RMB194.7 million, as compared to a loss of approximately
RMB112.8 million for 2018. The Company’s loss per share was
approximately RMB20.57 cents (2018: loss per share of approximately
RMB11.92 cents) based on the weighted average number of 946,298,370
(2018:946,298,370) ordinary shares of the Company in issue for the Year.

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 28.8% from
approximately RMB453.2 million for 2018 to approximately RMB322.6
million for the Year. As of the end of 2019, as a result of further
implementing the Group's strategic planning of focusing resources on
developing distributors, TV shopping platform and e-commerce platforms,
the sales of offline retail shops decreased by approximately 91.6% from
approximately RMB86.6 million for 2018 to approximately RMB7.3 million
for the Year, and the sales of online call centres decreased by
approximately 65.3% from approximately RMB97.9 million for 2018 to
approximately RMB34.0 million for the Year.

The Group's gross profit decreased from approximately RMB249.0 million
for 2018 to approximately RMB156.8 million for the Year. The Group's
average gross profit margin decreased from approximately 54.9% for 2018
to approximately 48.6% for the Year. Such decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the proportion of sales revenue of distributors, TV
shopping platforms and e-commerce platforms further increased as
compared with 2018 under the Group’s adjustment of sales channels. The
gross profit margins of distributors and TV shopping platforms were lower
than that of the offline retail shops and online call centres. Meanwhile, the
Group promoted its honey series products by discount. As such, the
Group's overall gross profit margin was affected.

The Group's other income and gains mainly comprised bank interest
income, foreign exchange gain and government grants, which decreased
from approximately RMB9.1 million for 2018 to approximately RMB8.7
million for the Year.
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The Group's selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
17.8% from approximately RMB225.6 million for 2018 to approximately
RMB185.4 million for the Year, representing approximately 49.8% and
57.5% of the Group's revenue for 2018 and the Year respectively. Such
decrease was primarily due to the adjustment of the number of offline
retail shops and online call centres by the Group, the reduction of
headcount, the decrease in staff remuneration expenses and daily
expenses as well as the cut-down of marketing expenses of Good Health
during the Year.

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately 6.8%
from approximately RMB79.8 million for 2018 to approximately RMB85.2
million for the Year, representing approximately 17.6% and 26.4% of the
Group's revenue in 2018 and the Year respectively. Such increase was
primarily the increase in fixed assets depreciation as a result of being put
into operation of the Group's research & development ("R&D”) centre.

The Group's other expenses decreased by approximately 4.7% from
approximately RMB76.5 million in 2018 to approximately RMB72.8 million
for the year, which is mainly comprised of recognition of the impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets of Shanghai Hejian Nutritional Food
Products Company Limited* (E/8R{E& &R mAR A F]) ("Hejian")
amounting to approximately RMB34.8 million and RMB36.1 million,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, since the supervision and
rectification measures of the Chinese health food industry were
strengthened, the Hejian cash-generating unit ("CGU") suffered from
operation losses. Accordingly, impairment indicators were identified for
the CGU’s non-current assets, including other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. The Group performed impairment test over the
trademarks and customer relationships of Hejian CGU. The Directors use
the generally accepted relief from royalty method and multiple period
excess earning method. Under the relief from royalty method, royalty
expenses saved by holding of trademarks are estimated, and the discount
rate applicable to the risk exposure to realizable interests is adopted to
discount such interests to its present value. Under the multiple period
excess earning method, the future economic benefits generated from
existing customer relations are estimated excluding other assets such as
trademarks, fixed assets, operating capital, and the discount rate
applicable to the risk exposure to realizable interests is adopted to
discount such interests to its present value. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the Company recognized an impairment loss of
intangible assets of approximately RMB36.1 million.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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In the determination of the value-in-use of Hejian cash-generating unit for
impairment test on goodwill, the Directors use the generally accepted
business enterprise appraisal approach, namely the income approach,
which estimates the future economic benefits generated by the Hejian
cash-generating unit and discounts these benefits to its present value
using a discount rate suitable for the risks associated with realizing the
benefits. The valuation approach has been consistently applied as at 31
December 2018 and 2019. In view of, among others, the more stringent
laws and regulations in relation to the relevant industry and the tightening
of enforcement by the relevant PRC government authorities in 2019, and
the Group’s adjustment to resource investment in sales channels, the
value-in-use of the Hejian cash-generating unit was lowered from
approximately RMB80.4 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB20.5 million as at 31 December 2019. Taking into account the above
factors, the Company recognized an impairment loss for the goodwill of
approximately RMB34.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Set out below is an analysis of the changes in key parameters and
assumptions adopted for impairment test for goodwill and intangible
assets of Hejian cash-generating unit as at 31 December 2019:

In 2019, the PRC government continued to take stricter measures
and increased monitoring actions towards the industry in which the
Company operates. To ensure compliance with the relevant PRC
regulations, the Group is more cautious about sales strategy and
investment in sales resources, thereby leading to pressure on the
growth rate of the sales revenue of Hejian. In addition, the Group
shifted its business strategy in recent years to focus more on the
young and middle-aged market instead of the elderly market, which
impacted the sales of Hejian products which largely consisted of
products for the elderly market. Due to the above-mentioned
factors including the continued impact of the increasingly tightened
government regulation and public criticism in the domestic market
during 2019, sales revenue of Hejian saw a decrease by
approximately 64% from 2018 to 2019. The management expected
that in 2020, the sales revenue of Hejian would gradually rebound
with its investment and expansion of young and middle-aged
business market.
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The Company adopted a pre-tax discount rate of 21.5% as the
discount rate for Hejian cash-generating unit for goodwill
impairment test 31 December 2019 and adopted a pre-tax discount
rate of 23.7% as the discount rate for Hejian intangible assets
impairment test for 31 December 2019. Discount rate is determined
based on the weighted average cost of capital. Weighted average
cost of capital is the average rate of return a company expects to
compensate all its different investors and represents the expected
return on all of a company’s capital. Each source of capital, such as
equity and debt, is assigned with a required rate of return, and then
these required rates of return are weighted in proportion to the
share of each source of capital contributes to the company’s
structure. The cost of equity was estimated using the capital asset
pricing model based on the betas of identified listed comparable
companies which are engaged in similar business with Hejian (The
pre-tax discount rate for 31 December 2018 is 23.1%).

The long-term growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%) was referenced to the
long-term inflation rate of the major markets in China, in which the
Hejian cash-generating unit is expected to mainly derive its revenue
from and incur operating expenses.

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately RMB13.1
million for the Year, as compared with an income tax credit of
approximately RMB14.3 million for 2018, which was primarily due to the
derecognition of deferred income tax assets recognised in prior years
during the Year.

The Group's effective tax rates in the Year and 2018 was approximately
(7.2)% and 11.2% respectively.
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As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss for the Year of
approximately RMB194.7 million, as compared with a loss of approximately
RMB112.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The loss for the Year was mainly caused by the following factors:

1. With the Group's adjustment of sales channels, the number of
offline retail shops was cut down, and the advertising and marketing
activities of online call centres were reduced, leading to the
decrease in sales revenue from offline retail shops and online call
centres.

2. The proportion of sales revenue of distributors, TV shopping
platforms and e-commerce platforms further increased as
compared with 2018. The gross profit margins of distributors and TV
shopping platforms were lower than that of the offline retail shops
and online call centres. Meanwhile, the Group promoted its honey
series products by discount, thereby affecting the Group's overall
gross profit margin.

3. At the end of the Year, the Company re-assessed the performance
of Hejian for the Year and in the coming years. As the performance
of Hejian was below the Company’s expectation, the Company
recognised provision for impairment loss of the goodwill and
intangible assets for Hejian.

During the Year, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by
approximately RMB93.9 million, which mainly comprised the net cash
outflow from operating activities with the amount of approximately
RMB68.1 million, net cash outflow used in investing activities with the
amount of approximately RMB17.4 million, net cash outflow used in
financing activities with the amount of approximately RMB9.3 million and
exchange gain of approximately RMB1.0 million.
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The Group's inventories amounted to approximately RMB89.8 million (as
at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB110.9 million) as at 31 December
2019. The Group's inventories comprised raw materials, work in progress,
finished goods and goods merchandise. The inventories balances
decreased by approximately 19.0% compared with that as at 31 December
2018. During the Year, inventory turnover days was approximately 221
days (2018: 307 days). The shorter inventory turnover days during the Year
was primarily because the Company made greater efforts in the sale of the
beginning inventories of the honey series products during the Year.

The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB44.4
million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB57.7 million) as at 31
December 2019 which represents a decrease of approximately 23.1% from
that as at 31 December 2018, which was mainly due to the decreased
sales revenue for the Year.

The Group's trade payables amounted to approximately RMB13.5 million
(as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB15.7 million) as at 31
December 2019, representing a decrease of approximately 14.0% from
that as at 31 December 2018. Turnover days for trade payables increased
to 32 days (2018: 31 days), which showed no significant fluctuation.

The Group conducts in-bound transactions principally in RMB and
outbound transactions principally in New Zealand Dollar and Australian
Dollar. In respect of the Group's risk exposure to exchange rate, the Group
had not utilised any financial instruments for hedging purposes as at 31
December 2019.

The Group had loan balances of RMB27.5 million and pledge of assets
(being the property interest of the Company in Deji Building in Nanjing
and the Company’s shareholding in Shanghai Weiyi Investment &
Management Limited Company* (_E /8% & E IR F R Q7)) as at
31 December 2019.

The gearing ratio, which represented total net debt (including interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables and
other payables and accruals) divided by total equity attribute to owners of
the parent and net debt multiplied by 100%, was 16.2% and 22.5% as at 31
December 2018 and 2019, respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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The Group invested approximately RMB25.7 million during the Year (2018:
approximately RMB39.1 million) for building the R&D centre, plant and
equipment.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have significant capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB38.8 million).

The Group's products are composed of certain raw materials such as
nutraceuticals, herb extracts, vitamins and mineral products as well as
packaging materials. The Group is affected by the increase in the prices of
these raw materials and packaging materials, which are determined
principally by market forces and the Group’s bargaining power vis-a-vis
the Group's suppliers. If the prices of these raw materials and packaging
materials were to increase significantly, the Group may not be able to
offset all price increases by raising the prices of the Group’s products.
Moreover, the Group may lose competitive advantage if the prices of the
Group's products increase significantly.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for its purchases in
Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars from third-party manufacturers
in Australia and New Zealand. The appreciation or depreciation of RMB
against Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars may have a significant
impact on the Group's profitability. For example, a depreciation of RMB
could increase costs of purchasing products from Australia and New
Zealand, as such depreciation would require the Group to convert more
RMB to obtain the equivalent foreign currency necessary to tender
payment. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to foreign currency risk.

The value of RMB against foreign currencies, including Australian dollars
and New Zealand dollars, fluctuates and is affected by, among other
things, changes in the PRC and international political and economic
conditions and the PRC government'’s fiscal, monetary and currency
policies. There remains significant international pressure on the PRC
government to adopt a more flexible currency policy. The Group cannot
predict how RMB will fluctuate in the future. As a result, the fluctuation in
the exchange rate between RMB and other currencies could have an
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition and results of
operation.
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Currently, RMB still cannot be freely converted into any foreign currency,
and conversion and remittance of foreign currencies are subject to PRC
foreign exchange laws and regulations which would affect exchange rates
and the Group's foreign exchange transactions. It cannot be guaranteed
that under a certain exchange rate, the Group will have sufficient foreign
currencies to meet the Group's foreign exchange requirements. Under the
current PRC foreign exchange control system, foreign exchange
transactions under the current account conducted by the Group,
including the payment of dividends, does not require prior approval from
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC (ISR 4N & 12
B) ("SAFE"), but the Group is required to present documentary evidence
of such transactions and conduct such transactions at designated foreign
exchange banks within the PRC that have the licenses to carry out foreign
exchange business. As a result, the Group will be able to pay dividends in
foreign currencies without prior approval from the SAFE by complying
with certain procedural requirements. The Group's foreign exchange
transactions under the capital account, however, must be approved in
advance by the SAFE.

There can be no assurance that the policies regarding foreign exchange
transactions under the current account and the capital account will
continue in the future. In addition, these foreign exchange policies may
restrict the Group's ability to obtain sufficient foreign exchange, which
could have an effect on the Group's foreign exchange transactions and
the fulfillment of the Group’s other foreign exchange requirements. If
there are changes in the policies regarding the payment of dividends in
foreign currencies to shareholders or other changes in foreign exchange
policies resulting in insufficient foreign exchange, the Group’s payment of
dividends in foreign currencies may be affected. If the Group fails to obtain
approval from the SAFE to convert RMB into any foreign exchange for
foreign exchange transactions, capital expenditure plans, and even the
Group's business, financial condition and results of operation, may be
adversely affected.
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The continued success of our business is particularly subject to changing
consumer trends and preferences and our ability to anticipate and
respond to these changes. If the Company are not able to respond in a
timely or commercially appropriate manner to these changes, our
customer relationships and product sales could be harmed significantly.
Furthermore, the nutritional supplements industry is characterized by
rapid and frequent changes in demand for new products. The Company’s
failure to accurately predict these trends by introducing new products
could negatively impact consumer opinion of the Company. This could
harm our customer relationships and cause losses to our market share.
The success of our new product offerings depends upon a number of
factors, including our ability to accurately anticipate customer needs,
innovate and develop new products, successfully commercialize new
products in a timely manner, price our products competitively,
manufacture and deliver our products in sufficient volumes and in a timely
manner, and differentiate our product offerings from those of our
competitors. If we do not introduce new products or make enhancements
to meet the changing needs of our customers in a timely manner, some of
our products could become obsolete, which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results.

Quality and dedicated staff is indispensable asset to the Group's success in
the competitive market. By providing comprehensive training and
corporate culture education periodically, the employees are able to obtain
on-going training and development in the nutritional supplements
industry. Furthermore, the Group offers competitive remuneration
packages commensurated with industry practice and provides various
fringe benefits to all employees. The Group reviews its human resources
and remuneration policies periodically to ensure they are in line with
market practice and regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group employed a work force of 448 employees. The total salaries and
related costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB86.0 million (as
at 31 December 2018: approximately RMB111.1 million).
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The Board consists of six Directors, including three executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors.

EEGMARERAN  BR=Z2HTEER=
BENIFAITES -

The information of the Directors is set out as follows:

EEMEREIIMT

Date of joining Date of

Name Age the Group Position/Title appointment Roles and responsibilities

®A FEE MAXEENBH BB ZERH ABRBE

Mr. Gui Pinghu 60 24 May 1999 Chairman and 24 May 1999 Chairman of the Strategy and

Executive Director Development Committee;

being responsible for strategic
development of the Company

E L 605% 1999F5A24H EEREPTES 199965248 BEREREZEEIR BF
KRG BB IEER

Ms. Zhang Yuan 50 25 May 1999 Chief Executive Officer 17 June 2011 General manager, being responsible

and Executive
Director

for the management, organisation,
implementation of Board decisions
and member of the

Nomination Committee

SRR L 5088 19995 A25H EBERRTERBRITER 201MF6A17A  #KE BEEE A8
EmEERREMIELEZEGKE
Ms. Zhu Feifei 38 29 July 2003 Chief Production Officer 25 October 2012 Chief production officer; member of
and Executive Director the Remuneration Committee
it Eog 385% 200367 A298 HEFRLEBFRWTES 202F10A258 BEELEER FHEEEKE
Mr.Zhang Jitong 47 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Nomination

Non-executive Committee; member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
SREERY A 47%% 201810238 BUIENITES 20185F10H23H REZEEFR  FZREEEK
HERMERZESKE
Ms. Cai Tianchen 46 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Audit Committee;
Non-executive member of each of the
Director Remuneration Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee
BREZT 465% 2018F10H 230 BUIENTES 2018F10H23A BEZZE2IR FTMWZREER
HBRLERZESKE
Mr. Wang Wei 37 23 October 2018 Independent 23 October 2018 Chairman of the Remuneration
Non-executive Committee; member of each of
Director the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee
FEEL 375% 2018510 A 238 BUIFERITES 20185F10A23H HMZEEEER  FZRZEEER

REZBEGKE
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Mr. Gui Pinghu (#£4), aged 60, the founder of the Group, is the
chairman and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 May 1999. Mr.
Gui s also a director of Australia Cobayer Health Food Co. Pty Ltd. and GHP
(Shanghai Weiyi's wholly-owned subsidiary). He is primarily responsible for
the strategic development of the Company.

Mr. Gui graduated from Nanjing Xiaozhuang University (formerly known as
Nanjing Institute of Education* (B %A £F7)), majoring in Chinese in
July 1989 and was awarded a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Fudan University
in June 2010. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gui and his spouse
were interested in approximately 78.75% of the domestic shares of the
Company (the “Domestic Shares”). Mr. Gui was also interested in
approximately 2.37% of the H shares of the Company (‘H Shares”).

Mr. Gui was the general manager of Hainan East & West Advertisement Art
Company* (7 R 477 & & E4iTA 7)) from November 1992 to October
1994, the general manager of Nanjing Tangshan Garden Hotel* (R 55
ILFERDE E) between January 1995 and December 1996 and the general
manager of Nanjing Xin Chuang Mould and Die Factory* (F§ =& &I#E A
&) from January 1997 to December 1998. In May 1999, he established the
Company and has since then been the Director. Mr. Gui has more than 20
years of experience in the nutritional supplements industry.

Ms. Zhang Yuan (5&J&), aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Group on 17 June 2011. Ms.
Zhang is also a director of Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (&
R A EYEHE AR AR, Beijing Zhongsheng Wonderful Health
Technology Co. Limited* (b J A2 S 47 B L B BR 2 &), Guangzhou
Zhongyuan Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (BM# B EMEHFBR A F]),
Zhenjiang Zhongsheng Health Bio-Tech Co. Limited* ($E)T A AR EHE
APBR A ")), Nanjing Buy-in-house Ecommerce Co. Limited* (B R E 58
B F %A R A A]) and Shanghai Welyi. She is also the director of Hejian,
Hejian (Najing Branch), GHP, Living Nature Natural Products Limited and
Living Nature Limited. Ms. Zhang is primarily responsible for the
management, organisation and implementation of Board decisions. As at
the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhang was interested in approximately
0.98% of the Domestic Shares and approximately 0.08% of the H Shares.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the nutritional
supplements industry. She was appointed as the office supervisor of the
Company in May 1999 and the deputy general manager of the Company
in January 2008.

Ms. Zhang obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Nanjing
University in June 2012.

Ms. Zhu Feifei (5RMRA), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 October 2012. Ms. Zhu is also a director of Suzhou
Zhongsheng Health & Biological Products Co. Limited* (&R A AR &
W?‘%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬂ Wuxi Zhongyan Health Products Co. Limited* (£&85
HERE M AR A 7)), Shenzhen Zhongsheng Chinese Commerce Bio-
Tech Co. L|m|ted* é&t’ﬂm':PEiE?iﬁE%ﬂ&ﬁﬁE . Ms. Zhu is
primarily responsible for the production of the Group. As at the date of
this annual report, Ms. Zhu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the
Domestic Shares.

Ms. Zhu joined the Company as a sales clerk of the sales department in
July 2003. She was promoted to be the chief production officer in January
2008. She was appointed as a Director in October 2012

Ms. Zhu graduated from a part-time programme of the Open University of
China (formerly known as China Central Radio and Television University*
(PR EFEER KE)) majoring in Business Administration in January
2008.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Mr. Zhang Jitong (5R#£%), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Zhang holds a doctorate
degree in management majoring in agricultural economics management
from Nanjing Agricultural University and has been an associate professor
and a professor of the School of Business of Nanjing Normal University
from September 2005 to April 2011 and from May 2011 onwards,
respectively.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws majoring in ideological
and political education, and a master’s degree in management majoring
in enterprise management, from Nanjing Normal University in July 1994
and June 2000, respectively. After Mr. Zhang had obtained a doctorate
degree in management from Nanjing Agricultural University in June 2005,
he further obtained a postdoctoral certificate in laws from Nanjing Normal
University.

Mr. Zhang was an independent director of Jiangsu Gaoke Petrochemical
Company Limited* (I & = BHA{L AR 1D B BR A 7)) from February 2014
to February 2017, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002778).

Ms. Cai Tianchen (3 X 8), aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Ms. Cai completed an
accounting programme at Hangzhou Dianzi University (formerly known as
Hangzhou Institute of Electronic Engineering* (/N &+ T 2 £2f57))
October 1993, and is a non-practising member of the Institute of Certlﬂed
Public Accountants of Singapore since June 2001, a Chartered Financial
Analyst charterholder of the CFA Institute at Charlottesville, Virginia since
September 2004, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 2007 and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2012.

Ms. Cai has extensive experience in initial public offering, merger and
acquisition and restructuring gained at international accounting firms. Ms.
Cai has been a partner of the Shanghai office of Grant Thornton (ZX [ &
FTEM SIS FT (FFRR TR A %)) since October 2013. Prior to joining Grant
Thornton, Ms. Cai has joined the Singapore office of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as an auditor in February 1998, and was later promoted to a
manager in 2003 and then to a senior manager at the Shanghai office of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Ms. Cai has been an independent non-executive director of China Jishan
Holdings Limited since 28 December 2017, the shares of which are listed
on the Singapore Exchange (stock code: J18).

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Mr. Wang Wei (£ ), aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Wang holds a doctorate
degree in food science. Mr. Wang has been a lecturer and an associate
professor at the College of Food Science and Technology at Nanjing
Agricultural University from December 2013 to December 2015 and from
December 2015 onwards, respectively. Mr. Wang has also been a council
member of the seventh session of the council of the Jiangsu Association
for Instrumental Analysis* (L&R& 53T RIFA &) since July 2016.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in food science and engineering
and a master’s degree in food science from Nanjing Normal University in
July 2006 and June 2009 respectively, and a doctorate degree in food
science from China Agricultural University in June 2012.

The board of supervisors (“Supervisors”) of the Company currently
consists of four members. The following table sets out certain information
about the Supervisors.

Date of joining

Name Age the Group Position/title

HE Fip MAXEENBE B TEH4

Ms. Yu Min 41 16 September 2002 Chairman of the board of
Supervisors

R 415% 2002569 A 16 A S

Ms. Wu Xuemei 41 25 September 2005 Supervisor

REFL L 415% 200599 A 25 A EE

Ms. Lu Jiachun 41 20 June 2001 Employee representative
Supervisor

PEEAEA L 415% 200156 A20H BTRRES

Ms. Chen Xiu 35 30 August 2003 Employee representative
Supervisor

RE L 355% 200348 A30H BTITRRES

*  For identification purpose only
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Date of Roles and

appointment  responsibilities
ZEHH ABRBE

25 October 2012 General manager of the sales

department of the Group in
Nanjing

202F10A 258 AEEERIEEIREE

25 October 2012 General manager of the
distributor affairs
department of the Group

012610 25 8 AEELHE EHIPLaKE

25 October 2012 Accounting clerk

20129610 A 258 KRB

16 May 2013 Supervision specialist

013%F5A168 EB=EE
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Ms. Yu Min (&#)), aged 41, was appointed as the chairman of the
board of Supervisors on 25 October 2012.

Ms. Yu graduated from Jinling Institute of Technology* (& FERHY E35%)
(formerly known as Nanjing Agricultural School* (B &R 2 2 B RIEKY))
majoring in Accounting in June 1999. As at the date of this annual report,
Ms Yu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

In 2002, Ms. Yu joined the Company as an accounting clerk and was
promoted to be the sales manager of Nanjing in September 2004 and
customer relations manager in January 2008. Ms. Yu was subsequently
appointed as the chairman of the board of Supervisors and continued to
be the customer relations manager. In July 2018, Ms. Yu was promoted as
the general manager of the sales department of the Group in Nanjing.

Ms. Wu Xuemei (RE#8), aged 41, was appointed as one of the
Supervisors on 25 October 2012. Ms. Wu graduated from a self-learning
programme of the Nanjing Normal University majoring in English in June
2003. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Wu was interested in
approximately 0.08% of the Domestic Shares.

In September 2005, Ms. Wu joined the Company as sales clerk and was
promoted to be the deputy sales manager of Nanjing in January 2010. In
October 2012, she was appointed as a member of the board of
Supervisors. In March 2014, Ms. Wu was promoted to be the general
manager of the Cobayer business department of the Group. In July 2018
she was promoted to be the general manager of the distributor affairs
department of the Group.

Ms. Lu Jiachun (FE{£#E), aged 41, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 25 October 2012. Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from a part-time programme of the
Open University of China in October 2005.

Ms. Lu has been an accounting clerk of the Group since June 2001. In
October 2012, she was appointed as a member of the board of
Supervisors.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Chen Xiu (FR55), aged 35, was appointed as the employee

representative Supervisor on 16 May 2013. Ms. Chen graduated from
CIERSERERME

Jiangsu Institute of Commerce*

BT) (formerly

known as Jiangsu Vocational and Technical Institute of Economics and

Commerce*
2004.

Ms. Chen joined the Group in August 2003 as a customer service clerk.

(TER B HEREET)) majoring in Accounting in July
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Since July 2009, she has been a supervision specialist (EsE H 8). 200967 A8 F—HEFEEES -
Date of joining Date of Roles and

Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities

" Fip MAXEENAE B B E ZEAH ABRBE

Ms. Zhi Hui (32 7F)

39 4 June 2002

Human resources manager,
joint company secretaries

25 October 2012

Human resources
management and
company secretarial

matters
XAE L 395% 200296 A4H AT BRI 20126108258 ANBREERRAT
HF}_\_Z\\E%’Z‘E WEEH
Mr. Li Bin (Z=38) 40 1July 2013 Chief financial officer 1 July 2013 Finance management
ESnpit 405% 20137 A1 H BRVMEE 20137 A1 H MBER
Mr.WuJun ((Rf8) 36 4 September 2006 Financial controller 1 September 2013 Finance management
RIEFEE 36 5% 2006F9 A4 H s HREs 20139 A1 H e

Ms. Zhi Hui (Z#F), aged 39, has more than 10 years of experience in
the nutritional supplements industry. She joined the Group in June 2002
as an office clerk. She was promoted as the human resources manager in
January 2008. In October 2012, she became the secretary to the Board and
served as the human resources manager and joint company secretaries
concurrently. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhi was interested in
approximately 0.07% of the Domestic Shares and 0.12% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhi graduated from Sanjiang University majoring in Modern Company
Secretary in June 2002.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Li Bin (Z=38), aged 40, was appointed as the chief financial officer in
July 2013. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of accounting experience. He
obtained a bachelor degree in Accounting from the Nanjing University of
Finance and Economics in August 2003 and was admitted as a Certified
Management Accountant of the United States in July 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the financial controller of the finance
department of Nanjing SIXIN Scientific- Technological Application
Research Institute Co., Ltd* (FA RUFTRHZERMTFABR AR, a
company engaging in the development and production of Silicone and
non-Silicone foam control agents, between October 2003 and March
2007. He worked in the finance department of CEEG (Nanjing) New Energy
Co, Ltid* (FEER(FER)FBIRAMR A F), a company that engages in
the research and development, production, sale and services of solar
energy components, between June 2007 and September 2009 and the
finance department of the solar energy business unit of Jiangsu Sainty
International Group Machinery Import and Export Corporation Limited*
CIHRABEREERMELORDBR AR
engages in import and export trade, between October 2009 and October
2010.

), a company that

Mr. Wu Jun (R8), aged 36, was appointed as the financial controller in
September 2013. Mr. Wu has more than 10 years of experience in the
nutritional supplements industry. He joined the Group in September 2006
as an accounting clerk of the finance department of Hangzhou Zhongyan
Biological Products Co. Limited* (/N &M B @ BR A7) and
became an accounting clerk of the finance department of the company in
August 2008. He was promoted as the finance manager of the Company
in January 2011.

Mr. Wu graduated from Nanjing University of Technology (F 52 T % A £2%)
majoring in Project Management in June 2006.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Zhi Hui (3Z7F), serves as the secretary to the Board and one of the
joint company secretaries. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Senior
Management” above for her biography.

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (H X&), FCS (PE), FCIS, aged 52, was
appointed as joint company secretaries of the Company on 7 November
2013. Ms. Kam is an executive director of Corporate Services of Tricor
Services Limited, a global professional services provider specializing in
integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has over 20
years of extensive experience in the corporate secretarial field and has
been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed
companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms.
Kam is a Chartered Secretary and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries ("HKICS”) and The Chartered Governance
Institute. Ms. Kam is a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS.

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various committees. In
accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the corporate
governance practice prescribed in the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company has formed four Board
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, and the Strategy and Development
Committee.

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company. At present, the Audit
Committee comprises Ms. Cai Tianchen, Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang
Wei, the independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Cai Tianchen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

XHFuL BEEEFSNE  UABELANE
Z— FREEE F2ELX[SMRERE] —

B e

HEELZL  FCS(PE) - FCIS » 525% » FA2013 411
R7BEZEAERRRNEEATWE  BAS
EEERBERAR(—HERENEERB A
A ARFPREBE CERREEFRARY)
TERBINTES - HRETROERBEEHE
BRNFNEELS  —ERAEBLEMAR N
MEBEBRAR - ARG RBEEARREEEND
¥R HA T AFHWE  URBBRITWE
NE([EBEHIREQAE ) REFFRAFRERS
MEREE - HEXTNEFERBEEFTNELE
BEMPEERUZH o

EXeRN O BEZRGZEZES - RETH
MEZERIERARBEBERZMAR DA
(B Fr )& EmR A ([ EWRRA D TR
XERER ARFERINEEEZES A
BEVLEE FHEZES RERZEEREER
EEEE

ARBRIEZZE S UHEEEBERLE -
ERZBENIZRARHDEZTSENYBE
B REBHIZF - BREE RAEZEGE - A
BRBEEN AR RINEZBEM AN EZBE NS
£ AR A AR R EE AR E TR
NE B R - AR AT EAEHEZ
TETRZZY - BRI - ERRESRBIUIFH
TEFEERARXLT  REMTERTIERLA
B BERRXEIRERZEGELR -

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH



55 EF SAEEENEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.
At present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang Wei and
Ms. Cai Tianchen, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhu
Feifei, an executive Director. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent
non-executive Directors. At present, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang Wei, the independent non-
executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Yuan, an executive Director. Mr. Zhang
Jitong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Company established a Strategy and Development Committee with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the Strategy and
Development Committee are to conduct researches and submit proposals
concerning the long-term development strategies and material
investment decisions of the Company. At present, the Strategy and
Development Committee comprises Mr. Gui Pinghu, the Chairman and an
executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Jitong and Ms. Cai Tianchen, the
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the chairman of
the Strategy and Development Committee.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EE KT RAEEEREER

EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains good working relations with its staff. It has not
experienced any significant problems with the recruitment and retention
of experienced employees. In addition, it has not suffered from any
material disruption of its normal business operations as a result of labour
disputes or strikes.

In the PRC, in accordance with relevant national and local labour and
social welfare laws and regulations, the Group is required to pay in respect
of its employees in the PRC various social security funds including basic
pension insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
occupational injury insurance, critical iliness insurance, insurance for
maternity leave and housing provident fund.
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The Company acts as an investment holding company and is engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the trading of
packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and New Zealand.
Particulars of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, for the year ended 31 December 2019, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company.

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from
its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manages
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and
adopting green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade
equipment such as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to
increase overall operating efficiency. To identify energy efficiency
opportunities, the Group measures and records the energy consumption
intensity from time to time.

The results of the Group for 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 118 of this

annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil) or any special dividend (2018: Nil).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”

in this annual report for a business review of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019
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Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during 2019 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during 2019 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

The amount of the Company’s accumulated losses as at 31 December
2019 was RMB(225.1) million. Details of the movements in the reserves of
the Group during 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 122 of this annual report.

The Group has total borrowings of RMB27.5 million as at 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB27.5 million). Please refer to note 35 to the financial
statements in this annual report for further information in relation to
financial risk management of the Company.

For the Year, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% and the revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer was less than 10%.

For the Year, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier was less than 10%.

For the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the number of the Company’s issued shares, had any interest in the five
largest suppliers or customers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ERTWME

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2019 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xu Li (Resigned on 15 January 2020)
Ms. Zhu Feifei

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Fan (Resigned on 15 January 2020)
Mr. Xu Chuntao (Resigned on 20 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jitong

Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

SUPERVISORS

During 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, the Supervisors of
the Company are as follows:

Ms. Yu Min (Chairman)

Mr. Tao Xingrong (Resigned on 15 January 2020)
Ms. Wu Xuemei

Ms. Lu Jiachun

Ms. Chen Xiu

The board of Supervisors has held two meetings during 2019. Details of
the meetings and events conducted by the board of Supervisors during
2019 are set out in the work report of the board of Supervisors of this
annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management
are set out on pages 21 to 28 of this annual report.

34 LNANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

=E

R2019FREEARFHRAYNEENT ¢

HITEE

TEHEE(EER)

RRZL (BEHTE)

BBt (72020451 B 15 BEHE)
KRR L

FHITES
2 R4+ (FA 20204 1 A 15 BEHE)
FFEESA (201942 B 20 BEHE)

BYFEHTES
SRAER S
BERRRL
I=EAEE

MEEEENKERANBRAEAFAE LHEER
BIE o

B

R2019F RBERFHRBE - ARRIMNESMOT

Rt (EE)

PR ELLE 5 A (FA20204E 1 A 15 B ERE)
REELL

BEfEAl 22+

AL+

AAREESCDR09EBHMASH - BES
R2019F BTN E 3 MBS FBHRAFERP
HEES TIERE -

B EELSATERABHNERIBSHNAE
WENE28H o




Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment (for non-executive Directors) with the Company for a term
of three years and shall be elected by shareholders at the general meeting.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office,
which the successive terms of office of independent non-executive
Directors shall not exceed six years, in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”).

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and may be re-elected. No Director or
Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect
the Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising
from the Group's activities which such Directors and officers may be held
liable.

The remuneration of each Director is approved at annual general
meetings. Other emoluments will be determined and recommended by
the members of the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and the highest paid
employees are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report respectively.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends will be reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution
to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were
a party subsisted at the end of 2019 or at any time during the same year in
which any Director or Supervisor or any entity connected with the Director
or Supervisor had a material interest, either directly or indirectly.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Company during the Year.
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As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, are set out below:
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Class of share

Name Capacity Nature of interest  of the Company
H®E 5% BEME ARRRGER
Mr. Gui Pinghu Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
('Mr. Gui")” % ERBEAA W&
ER it Interest of spouse Domestic Shares
([HEEE])? [ 5 W&
Beneficial owner H Shares
ERBEAA HA&
Ms. Zhang Yuan Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
FRL L S ERBEAA W&
Beneficial owner H Shares
BRBEAA HA&
Ms. Xu Li® Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
HELLY 3 BRBEAA W&
Ms. Zhu Feifei Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
KRARZL = BRBEAA W&
Ms. Yu Min Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
Rt EF BRBEAA W&
Ms. Wu Xuemei Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares
RSt EF BRBEAA W&

Number Approximate Approximate
of shares shareholding shareholding
held as at percentage percentage

31 December in the relevant in the total
20197 class of shares® share capital®
R20195 RERER iy
12A31H R4 B N E Y
FEROBE BERESH® BFRESL®
(%) (%)
477,676,030(L) 70.89% 50.48%
52,965,000(L) 7.86% 5.60%
6,456,000(L) 2.37% 0.68%
6,599,550(L) 0.98% 0.70%
218,000(L) 0.08% 0.02%
5,498,570(L) 0.82% 0.58%
659,340(L) 0.10% 0.07%
659,340(L) 0.10% 0.07%
51,480(L) 0.08% 0.06%
ERAEBARBERAT —2-NEER
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Q) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

) Mr. Gui is the spouse of Ms. Wu Yanmei. Under the SFO, Mr. Gui was deemed to be

interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Wu Yanmei was interested.

(3) As at 31 December 2019, the percentages are calculated based on the total issued
shares of the Company of 946,298,370.

(4) As at 31 December 2019, the number of issued domestic shares and H shares of the
Company was 673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

(5) Ms. Xu Li resigned as an executive Director on 15 January 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, or any of their spouses,
or children under 18 years of age, has any interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company, recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares”, at no time in 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors
and Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors and Supervisors, or any of their spouses or children under
18 years of age was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised
any such right.
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As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the persons
who hold 5% or more of the class shares in the issued share capital of the
Company (other than Directors and Supervisors of the Company), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO and so far as it was known to Directors are set out

below:

Number Approximate Approximate
of shares shareholding shareholding
held as at percentage in percentage

Class of share 31 December the relevant in the total
Name Nature of interest of the Company 20197 class of shares® share capital®
R2019F REERER R#&
12A318 B3 B4 RAHBEL
®E BRME RARRGER FrEReBE BERESH® BEREIK®
(%) (%)
Ms. Wu Yanmei®? Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 52,965,000(L) 7.86% 5.60%
R Lo EHBAA NER
Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 477,676,030(L) 70.89% 50.48%
Ao B NER
Ms. Zhou Li Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 44,084,321(L)° 6.54% 4.66%
BB+ E=EAA NE R
Mr. Cheng Xiaowei® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 44,084321(L)” 6.54% 4.66%
RMERES RiBHER NER
Mr. Gui Ke Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 61,111,000(L) 9.07% 6.46%
ERAE EnBERA NER
Ms. Li Shi”) Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 61,111,000(L) 9.07% 6.46%
FHEL0 ALiBER WER
Mr. Chen Xuelin Beneficial owner H Shares 27,576,000(L) 10.12% 291%
BREMEE EHHAA H &
Hin Sang Group (International) Beneficial owner H Shares 59,121,600(L)® 21.70% 6.25%
Holding Co, Ltd. ExBEEA HiR
DTSR (BIR) ZERER LA
Genwealth Group Holding Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600(L)® 21.70% 6.25%
Company Limited corporation H A%
PTEEBERARAH R LERER
Ms. Kwan Lai Man® Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600(L)® 21.70% 6.25%
BEZEr Lo corporation HE&
R EE RS
Interest of spouse H Shares 404,000(L) 0.15% 0.04%
[ HAR
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600(L)® 21.70% 6.25%
ZOITEE corporation HiR
X LR R
Beneficial owner H Shares 404,000(L) 0.15% 0.04%
EREEA H &

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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The letter “L" represents long position in such securities.

Ms. Wu Yanmei is the spouse of Mr. Gui. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu Yanmei was deemed to

be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui was interested.

As at 31 December 2019, the percentages are calculated based on the total issued
shares of the Company of 946,298,370.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of issued domestic shares and H shares of the
Company was 673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

On 17 December 2015, Ms. Zhou Li, Mr. Zhou Dong, Shanghai Jiahanyin Investment
Company Limited*, Shanghai Zhongwei Chuangye Investment Centre Partnership*,
Shanghai Baojiehui Chuangye Investment Partnership Limited*, Hejian and the
Company entered into an acquisition agreement (as supplemented by supplemental
acquisition agreement dated 22 January 2016), pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed, amongst other things, to issue and allot 44,084,321 domestic
shares of the Company to Ms. Zhou Li, as a part of the consideration of the acquisition
of Hejian. The allotment was completed on 14 June 2016.

Mr. Cheng Xiaowei is the spouse of Ms. Zhou Li. Under the SFO, Mr. Cheng Xiaowei was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Zhou Li was
interested.

Ms. Li Shi is the spouse of Mr. Gui Ke. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Shi was deemed to be

interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui Kei was interested.

These 59,121,600 H shares were held by Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co.,
Ltd., an exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
whose issued shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893). Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co., Ltd. was held as to 50.68% by Genwealth Group
Holding Company Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin
and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.
Accordingly, Genwealth Group Holding Company Limited, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms.
Kwan Lai Man were deemed to hold interests in these H shares under the SFO.

Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Under the SFO, Ms. Kwan Lai Man
was deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin
was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors, Supervisors or the

chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in

the shares or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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Details of the related party transactions of the Company for the Year and
undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of reference which are
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr.
Wang Wei. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process, and risk management
and internal control system. It has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the audited final results of the
Group for the Year.

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations. Please refer to
section “5. Gratitude and give back to the community” in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this annual report for
details of the donations made by the Group.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the PRC where the Company is incorporated.

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries (as defined under the Listing Rules) during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Gui Pinghu and Ms. Wu Yanmei, both being the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, have made
non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company. They have
confirmed compliance with the non-competition undertakings. The Board,
including the independent non-executive Directors, is of the opinion that
the relevant controlling shareholders have been in compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in favour of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing
the Directors in their dealings in the Company’s securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry with the Directors and all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company's listed securities during 2019.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the listing of shares of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the issue of
the over-allotment shares amounted to approximately HK$428.7 million
(equivalent to RMB336.4 million).

As at 31 December 2019,
(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB72.0 million and RMBO0.8
million has been used on the acquisition of GHP, and for Living

Nature’s product function enhancement;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB95.1 million has been used
to build a R&D testing centre;
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(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB19.3 million has been used
to build information technology and logistics centre;

(iv)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB80.9 million has been used
on the marketing and promotion activities;

(v)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB13.3 million has been used
to expand the sales network and explore new markets; and

(vi)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB33.6 million has been used
for working capital and the remaining of the Net Proceeds of
approximately RMB21.4 million has been deposited into banks,
which are intended to be applied in accordance with the proposed
application set out in the circular of the Company dated 22
September 2017.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total
issued share capital was held by public as at the date of this annual report.

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three
years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 were audited by Ernst & Young, who holds office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution of the reappointment of Ernst & Young as the
external auditor of the Company respectively will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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In 2019, in order to establish a healthy environment for the development
of the health product industry, the Chinese government regulators further
strengthened the supervision and rectification measures to ensure that
the health product market will become more and more standardised.
When people take the initiative to boost healthy immunity as a rigid
demand in life, the consumption of health products will become more
normalised, and the management of product research, development and
product application will also become more refined, thereby guiding
consumers to improve their level of health in a more scientific way. For
enterprises in the industry, high-quality products, standardised production
and brand credibility will be the most important core competitiveness.
The Good Health brand exactly meets the above requirements.

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus epidemic in early 2020 has caused
material impact on the PRC's economic operation and the living of the
public. The epidemic also affected the Company's daily operation to a
certain extent, especially in the product distribution and logistics. Recently,
with the gradual control and mitigation of the PRC's epidemic, logistics
and distribution have basically resumed to normal. The Company has
evaluated the epidemic with due care and believes that it will not bring
material impact on the Company’s daily operation and cash flow. The fight
against the epidemic also arouses the public to reflect on the importance
of health and immunity. After the SARS epidemic, the health product
industry ushered in a wave of growth since 2003. With the subsequent
vigorous efforts invested by the PRC into the big health industry and the
improvement of the living standards of the public, the health product
industry has maintained growth year by year. According to the data from
third-party statistical agencies, the global health product market reached
US$266.7 billion in 2019, and the PRC has become the world’s second
largest health product market with its market share of up to 21.8% and a
volume of approximately US$58 billion which demonstrated year-by-year
growth. In 2020, the Company will continue to implement its established
development strategy and focus on the Good Health brand. In particular,
it will increase investment in research and development, market
promotion, and channel construction of products under the maternity
and child series to increase the Company’s results in 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 27 March 2020
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During the reporting period of 2019, the board of Supervisors carefully
and thoroughly performed its supervisory functions in favor of the
Company and the shareholders in a responsible manner according to the
Company Law, the Articles and the Rules of Procedures for the board of
Supervisors, and the requirements under the relevant law and regulations,
while duly monitoring and examining the operations, financial conditions
and investment conditions of the Company according to the laws. In
addition, the members of the Board, the managers of the Company, and
other senior management members performed their duties under the
supervision of the Supervisors.

In 2019, the board of Supervisors convened two meetings.

On 29 March 2019, it considered the 2018 Work Report of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company, the Resolution on the 2018 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, the 2018 Financial Settlement
and the Resolution regarding the 2019 Financial Budget, the
Resolution on 2018 Profit Distribution Plan, the Resolution regarding
the Appointment of Accountant and the Authorisation Granted at
the General Meeting to the Board to Determine Its Remuneration,
the Resolution regarding the Authorisation Granted at the General
Meeting to the Board to Determine the Remunerations of the
Directors and Supervisors, the Resolution on 2018 Statutory Reserve
Withdrawal of the Company, and the Resolution where the Board is
granted the general mandate at the General Meeting to issue,
allocate, and deal with additional Domestic Shares and H Shares,
both numbers of which will be no more than 20% of the total
amount of Domestic Shares and H Shares of the Company in issue
respectively, and the Board is authorised to revise the Articles, as it
sees fit, for the purposes of reflecting the new shareholding
structure upon the allotment or issue of additional Shares under the
relevant mandate.

On 30 August 2019, it considered the Resolution on Interim Results
for 2019 and Interim Dividend Distributions, the Resolution on
Material Internal Audit Findings for the Period Ended 30 June 2019
and the Resolution on Proposed Measures regarding Employees in
respect of Financial Reporting, Internal Auditing and other
Misbehaviours.
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The board of Supervisors of the Company attended the meetings of
the Board during the reporting period, and duly performed its
supervisory duties of production and operation activities of the
Company. It effectively discharged its supervisory duties on the
development strategies of the Company on a timely basis, thus fully
delivering its duties in the development of the Company in 2019.

In the opinion of the board of Supervisors, the Company persisted
in standardised operations with due diligence in strict compliance
with the provisions under the Company Law and the Articles, as
well as conscientiously carrying out all resolutions at the general
meetings of shareholders; the internal control system of the
Company was well established; disclosure of all information was
made on a timely and accurate basis; no violation against the laws,
regulations, or the Articles, or prejudice against the interests of the
Company was committed by the Directors and senior management
of the Company in the line of duty.

The board of Supervisors reviewed the proposal on business
operation of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2019 and the
proposal on business plan of the Company for the financial year
2020.

In the opinion of the board of Supervisors, the financial report of the
Company reflects its financial position and operation that are
complete, true and accurate. The annual operating results of the
Company have been audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP who
has also issued an audit report on the Group’s financial statements.
The audit report is factual, fair and objective.
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WORK REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EEeTIFRE

IV. INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF 0 EEEYHRABRRIBERNEB LR
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 1=}
The board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no BEE e AREBENR2019F E LM
connected transaction in 2019 which was subject to the reporting, SEERE FTHRAFE 4ASEHETRHE FF
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ A~ NE RIBI IR E o
approval requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

V. REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON I ESgfRSEsaRTERS
THE INTERNAL CONTROL SELF-ASSESSMENT HNEEER
REPORT
The board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the internal EXEeW N NaRIEREETT TERN TR
control report of the Company, and considered that the Company BARBEMBERTEHEN TEESNNA
has established an appropriate internal control system in all EIR IS IR RS TR AL I T AR
important aspects and the internal control management system has ERT A4 5 ENBE BN ITMNE® 3
operated effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation BHIEERE -
and normal business operations.

VI. IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED AN BRREAEEBHRBRNHTE
AT THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS W
The members of the board of Supervisors had no objection to the ek EHRTSFRERSHREEREDN
contents of resolutions submitted to the shareholders’ meetings. NARTHEREZ EEeEBRREASEIS
The board of Supervisors supervised the implementation of E’]RIEJ& EEMHITIE R - WP %E%ﬁ‘
resolutions adopted at the shareholders’ meetings, and considered BEEARERITTEBARZ -EFE2RA
that the Board was able to implement the relevant resolutions 7%% & ﬁ‘é%’jwﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁk/‘\ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ%&
earnestly. The board of Supervisors is of opinion that the Board of 2 KBAFBEREMNZENTA -
the Company will carefully follow through the relevant resolutions
at the general meetings, without prejudicing the interests of the
Shareholders.
We hereby submit our report. Bt o

On behalf of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited* RERERPEBERD AR AR

The board of Supervisors Exe

Ms. Yu Min FE

Chairman Kzt

27 March 2020 20206F3 H27H

* For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to report to the shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the
Company's corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 December
2019, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a

Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the
Director is spending sufficient time performing them.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, consisting of 3 executive
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, the members of the Board are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xu Li®

Ms. Zhu Feifei

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Li Fan®@
Mr. Xu Chuntao®

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Jitong

Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

Notes:
(1) Resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020
) Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020

(3) Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 20 February 2019
The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” on

pages 21 to 25 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019. Code provision A.2.7
of the CG Code has been revised to require that the chairman of the Board
should at least annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other directors. Arrangements have
been made for compliance with the revised code provision which took
effect from 1 January 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board held 5 meetings. The
attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the
section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members” on page 59 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Gui
Pinghu and Ms. Zhang Yuan respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company'’s
business development and daily management and operations generally.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Ms. Cai Tianchen possesses the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles, Directors shall be elected by shareholders at
shareholders’ general meeting and their term of office shall be three years.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of office,
while the successive terms of office of independent directors shall not
exceed six years. Subject to the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory
rules of the place where the Company is listed, if the Board appoints a
new director to fill up any interim vacancy or increase the members of the
Board, the term of office of such newly added director shall expire at the
next shareholders’ general meeting and he/she is eligible for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed
for a specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then
current term.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a
balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading materials
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have attended
trainings/seminars on topics such as (i) disclosure of information and
insider dealing; (ii) the corporate governance and directors’ skills; (iii)
updates on the regulations under the Listing Rules and directors’ on-going
responsibilities; (iv) connected transactions and the regulations on it; and
(v) the management of employees’ incentive scheme. The following
Directors have attended the trainings during the year ended 31 December
2019:
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Name of Directors BEENF
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Gui Pinghu A
Ms. Zhang Yuan sRIRAZ L

Ms. Xu Li® REBEZLTO
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRMIZ L
Non-executive Directors HBITESE
Ms. Li Fan® FREL?
Mr. Xu Chuntao® HEBTEY
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Mr. Zhang Jitong SRS ST A
Ms. Cai Tianchen BRERLT
Mr. Wang Wei FREE
Notes:

(1) Resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020

) Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020
(3) Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 20 February 2019
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Strategy and Development Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which specify clearly
with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei.
Ms. Cai Tianchen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review, amongst other things, the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The Audit Committee also
considered significant issues on the internal audit, review the effectiveness
of internal control systems, appointment of external auditors and relevant
scope of works and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year
ended 31 December 2019, without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the table under section headed “Attendance Records of
Directors and Committee Members”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhu Feifei, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions
of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee
met twice to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The attendance of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee
at the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of
Directors and Committee Members”.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhang Yuan, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Zhang Jitong is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of
the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board
diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy (as explained
below under the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”’). The
Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on measurable objectives
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met twice in 2019 to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also
considered the qualifications of the retiring executive and non-executive
Directors and recommended to the Board for re-election. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Xu Li and Ms. Li Fan resigned as an
executive Director and a non-executive Director respectively. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

The attendance of each of the members of the Nomination Committee at
the Nomination Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors
and Committee Members”.
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STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Strategy and Development Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong and Ms. Cai Tianchen
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Gui Pinghu. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the
chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.

The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are to
conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the long-term
development strategies and material investment decisions of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Strategy and Development
Committee met once to review the development strategies for the year
2019 and the material investment decisions of the Company.

The attendance of each of the members of the Strategy and Development
Committee at the Strategy and Development Committee meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the section headed
“Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. A true diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
Directors. These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account the diversity (including gender
diversity). The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of
the Company. It aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and
the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity
Policy;

Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors

at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each director at the Board meetings, Board

Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRHEER HERY
Other
Strategy and Annual General
Audit Remuneration Nomination  Development General Meetings
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting (if any)
BB HttRRAE
E=png Exg ENRZEE FMESe REZEE BREEE RFRAEXE (1K)
Mr. Gui Pinghu 5/5 - - - 1/1 1/1 1
ER i
Ms. Zhang Yuan 5/5 - - - - 1/1 /1
RRLL
Ms. Xu Li" 5/5 - - 2/2 - /1 /1
3 el
Ms. Zhu Feifei 5/5 - /1 - - /1 11
ARRZ L
Ms. Li Fan® 4/5 - - - - 1/1 -
FREL
Mr. Zhang Jitong 5/5 2/2 - 2/2 71 /1 1
RUER K
Ms. Cai Tianchen 5/5 2/2 /1 - Il 1/1 11
ERERT
Mr. Wang Wei 5/5 212 1 212 - 1/1 11
FEEE
Mr. Xu Chuntao® 1/5 - - - - - /1
FEBREY
Notes: iEs3

Q) Ms. Xu Li resigned as an executive Director on 15 January 2020.
2) Ms. Li Fan resigned as a non-executive Director on 15 January 2020.
(3) Mr. Xu Chuntao resigned as a non-executive Director on 20 February 2019.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and
reviewing their effectiveness annually. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing, maintaining and
evaluating effective risk management and internal control systems. The
board of Supervisors is responsible for supervising the Board on the
establishment and implementation of risk management and internal
control systems. The management is responsible for coordinating and
monitoring the risk management and internal control progress. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in leading and coordinating matters
regarding internal control, overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Department
examines key issues in relation to accounting practices and all material
controls and provides its findings to the Audit Committee.

The objectives of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and
improve operational efficiency, so as to achieve strategic development.

The Company'’s risk management and internal control systems include
different functions and areas, namely organizational structure, strategic
development, human resources, asset management, sales and purchase,
finance and accounting, information technology, internal audit, contract
management and administration.
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The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by
key business processes. The control activities are mainly carried out
through the following:

1. Implement segregation of duties when establishing defined
business processes and work responsibilities;

2. Based on the actual needs of business processes of each business
unit, define approval and authorisation limits, approval process and
responsibilities;

3. Establish accounting procedures by strictly following accounting
standards and framework, enhance the quality and level of
accounting work and improve accounting work procedures; and

4, Set up and evaluate regularly on the procedures regarding the use
and management of assets and safeguard the Company'’s assets by
defining clear business processes and work responsibilities.

The Company'’s self-evaluation on internal control systems has the
following features and processes:

1. Communicate with middle and senior management to collect risk
information, conduct analysis and identify high risk areas that the
Company may face for establishing and implementing internal
control systems and defining the scope and key areas;

2. Identify key risk information, define clear risk management
responsibilities and adopt the requirements of risk management
and internal control, based on the conditions of internal control
systems of all business processes of the Company;

3 Identify design defects by verifying and evaluating the
implementation and efficiency of internal control systems through
walk-through testing;

4. Discover defects during the implementation of internal control
systems by evaluating key control activities samples which are
extracted based on the frequency of occurrence; and

5. Identify material weakness of internal control systems from business
process perspectives and improve according to the findings and
report of the Audit Department. Implement and test on the
improved internal control systems and verify its effectiveness.
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During the self-evaluation process, the Company has adopted methods
such as interviews, walk-through testing and sampling to broadly collect
evidence in relation to the effectiveness of internal control design and
implementation, accurately analysing and identifying the defects of the
internal control systems. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to
confirm that the control policies are properly complied with.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal
audit findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems, including the financial and non-financial controls for the year
ended 31 December 2019, and considered that such systems are effective
and no material defects were found.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed disclosure policies, such as Procedures for
Information Disclosure Management, Procedures for Internal Reporting of
Material Information and Procedures on Registration of Insiders, which
provide a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees of the Company in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 111 to 117 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy have been appointed as the
Company's joint company secretaries. Ms. Zhi Hui is experienced in the
health food and nutritional supplements industry and has a thorough
understanding of the operation of the Board and the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, Ms. Kam Mei Ha
Wendy of Tricor Services Limited, an Asia’s leading business expansion
specialist specialising in integrated business, corporate and investor
services, has been engaged by the Company as its joint company
secretary. Its primary contact persons at the Company are Ms. Zhi Hui,
another joint company secretary of the Company and Mr. Li Bin, the chief
financial officer of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, both Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei
Ha Wendy have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Articles 55 and 67 of the Articles, shareholder(s) individually or
collectively holding 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the
Company carrying voting rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition with an
explanation of the matters proposed to be discussed at the meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders who individually or collectively holding more than 3% of the
shares of the Company may submit a proposal to the Board in writing 10
days before the date of the shareholders’ general meeting, at the
Company’s registered office in PRC or the principle place of business in
Hong Kong. The Board shall notify other shareholders within 2 days of
receiving the proposal and include it for consideration at the shareholders’
general meeting. The matters stated in the proposal must be within the
functions and powers of the shareholders’ general meeting and it shall
have a clear subject and specific resolutions.

Apart from aforesaid matters, the convener shall not amend the proposals
stated in the notice of the shareholders’ general meeting or add new
proposals upon issuance of the announcement on the notice of the
shareholders’ general meeting.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Address:

30/F, Deji Building

188 Chang Jiang Road

Xuanwu District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 86-25-86819167
Email:  zhihui@zs-united.net
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-25-86819188 for any assistance.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders’, both individual and institutional, views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has adopted a
Dividend Policy on declaration and payment of dividends. The Company
do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions
and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year or period and any
final dividend for a financial year which will be subject to the shareholders’
approval.
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This report is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
referred to as the "ESG") report of Nanjing Sinolife United Company
Limited (referred to as the “Company” hereto, collectively with its
subsidiaries referred to as the “Group” or “we”) (Stock Code: 3332), which
focuses on disclosing the ESG performance of the Group.

This report covers the financial period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019 (the “Reporting Period").

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set forth in the Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules issued and amended by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2015, which is in
compliance with the principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance”,
and “consistency”.

The contents of this report are determined in accordance with a set of
systemic procedures. Such procedures include identifying and listing
important stakeholders and ESG-related issues, determining the scope of
the ESG reports, collecting relevant materials and data, compiling reports
based on information and verifying data in this report.

The policies, statements, and data given in this report cover the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The subsidiaries of the Company involved in the production of products
mainly include: Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (g &/ A4
¥ & £ B R A 8 ) (‘Zhongsheng Bio-Tech"), Living Nature Natural
Products Limited (“Living Nature”) and Good Health Products Limited
("Good Health").

Information and cases adopted in this report are mainly sourced from the
statistics report and related documents of the Group. The Group
undertakes that this report does not contain any false record or misleading
statements, and is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of its contents.

The report was approved by the Board on 27 March 2020 after
confirmation with the management.

30/F, Deji Building, 188 Chang Jiang Road, Xuanwu District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, The PRC

Tel: 86-25-86819188

Fax: 86-25-86819167

Website: http://www.zs-united.com

E-mail: sinolife@zs-united.com
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1. ESG GOVERNANCE

1.1 ESG governance structure

The Group is committed to promoting the science and
system application of the ESG governance so that our ESG
governance capability will continue to improve. By
establishing the top-down ESG governance structure, we
continue with ESG implementation and improvement by
strengthening the three-pronged management system,
under which, the Board is extensively engaged, the ESG
Management Committee provides horizontal coordination,
and the ESG Taskforce carries out the actions.

1. ESGEHR

1.1

RIBAE

RNEE T R HEBESGEIRMRIZL -
BRI THIRFESGEIEKTE &
FBBEY B LM FHESGRIBARE -
THZEMREESSRELHE  £SG
BEZESEMAWA ESGL1ENAA
RETE I MN=ABEERER 2
EFEESGEEEIRF T 1E o

ESG Management

Committee
ESGEEEZES

ESG Taskforce
ESGT{E/M4E

Responsible for assessing and determining the ESG risks of the Group
BEMEMNEEEEAERE g kERnAR

Ensuring the establishment of a proper and effective ESG risk management
and internal control system of the Group

EREERISBEMARNRE - 8 REARRETEMAEE RS
Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies

EMRE - e REAHEERR

Reviewing and approving the ESG report

EMRE  HEREARS

Implementing the ESG risk management and internal control
HITIRIR - e RERRRERERAEDEE

Directing the work of the ESG Taskforce

BERE g RERIIEENTIE

Reviewing the ESG related policies

FHRIR - e REREBBUR

Reviewing the ESG report, and verifying the accuracy of the

performance indicators
EHRE g REBRE - BRERUEFEIR R

Appointing personnel to collate the ESG related data and prepare reports
and other work

ZHHEANB BESCHAZBBNKREMBERESTIE

Assisting the management of the Group in assessing and determining
whether the Group’s ESG risk management internal control system is proper
and effective by submitting regular reports

FHREEEREER  UBEFEMEETAEEHRRE -
HERERNEREERANEZZFERSERLEN
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1.2

R REARE

Identification of and communications with
stakeholders

The Group's development is driven by the support from
various stakeholders, and we strive to establish a trusted
relationship with our stakeholders by actively persisting in
two-way communications with six major stakeholders,
including government and regulators, shareholders and
investors, suppliers, media, employees, consumers, and the
public.

Employees
BT

Consumers
and the public
HEEHEAR

Suppliers
HrEs

The Group persists in developing a diverse communications
mechanism that allows us to hear and respond to
expectations and concerns from a spectrum of stakeholders.
During the Reporting Period, we engaged in exchanges and
communications with our stakeholders via various channels
in a more active and extensive manner, enabling us to join
hands with all parties to achieve sustainability in economy,
society, and environmental values. The following table sets
out the topics that are of particular interest to different
stakeholders during the Reporting Period.
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1.2 EHARBRRE

AEBEHBERENFSEREANT
£ BPIBRMBTRE EHE - )
REKEE - gD K BT
HEERDNZEANKEZRE AR
BB ERER  SHMER AZETL
MHEEERFRE -

Shareholders
and investors

BRERREEE

Governments
and regulators

BUFEREE E AR

AEBRFEEZ TN BBES
B EREE Ol TR S AR B2
HERY) - MEHAR - RFIBESER
BEES NETERE  BEZHOR
AR BFETHARERLE &
SMRREENAFEER - TR
I E AT RS AR ERRE
R




Stakeholders
A

Governments and
regulators

B R E R

Shareholders and investors

BRREEE

Suppliers
HrEn

Media
e

Employees
8T

Consumers and the public
HEENDR

RiE - g MEATRE

Expectations and propositions

HIEERER

To fully implement national policies,

laws and regulations
To promote local economic development
To drive local employment
BRZRERRBRERER
R 7 B R
wENM T R

To provide return

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure safety production

W g @ 57

BRES

TEREE

To fulfill contractual obligations
according to law

To ensure honest operations

To manage supply chain

LA

MEEE

HrEsEE R

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure product responsibility
To participate in public activities
BRES
EmEE
NI )

To protect employee rights

To provide remuneration and fringe benefits
To provide career development

R &

#rEME A

BEER

To provide products and services

To be involved in public welfare and charity

To ensure green raw materials and
productions

E fn S AR S

N

RRERME R EE

Means of
communications and responses

BEEEELT X

To file reports

To provide advice and recommendations

To engage in discussions and submit
special reports

R

EERE

YA HE R

To issue company announcements
To release special reports
To invite to site visits

NCIVN=
BRER
BEBEHER

To engage in business negotiations
To engage in on-site studies

To engage in exchanges

[EREy: 2

WG A

2532y 2
M E ER

To publish news release/announcements
To hold meetings

To invite to site visits

Gl /N

@it

= A

BREASER

To hold employee representative meetings

To ensure collective negotiation

To provide democratic communication
platforms

BIREZARE

SEHm

REBEETA

To provide a company website

To release company announcements
To address customer feedback
NSNS

NGIVNGS

BEPRE

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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In accordance with the requirements of the Guide, the Group
determines the ESG issues and makes materiality judgments
in various forms, including counterpart benchmarking, media
analysis and in-depth interviews with stakeholders, so as to
provide strong merits for formulating our long-term ESG
strategy.

During the Reporting Period, we conducted onsite interviews
with our stakeholders to understand their opinions and
expectations as to the ESG performance of the Group, and
took into full consideration the impacts brought by various
issues on the sustainability of the Group and our stakeholders,
in which case, the materiality matrix for the Reporting Period
was derived following adjustments and upgrade made to the

1.3 Determination of material issues 1.3 EXMEEERS

REBEREGEIDMER - BBRT
HIE A AR S
FRBHBRE AR ABMELE
TERMHE BRI REN
ESGBUBIREA T A D KIS -

HEMA - HPIFRRT #E ARG
Ho THAEHAEERE  HERE
ATHMBERMME  REERTE
HEH A RE AR RMER AN
TE U -FEESCERMEREE
FEREETT T FHEBMER - U T AR
SN ERNEZEEERE - &RIT

ESG materiality matrix for last year. The results are as follows:

n
Q 3]

Medium Q High materiality

materiality Q 25] E?ag Ex
hEEE

Medium
materiality

PEEE

materiality

BEEEE

~ Materiality to the Group’s ESG management # . BESGAR MBS |
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No.
F

Concerned topics

BXEE

Culture and business value
MR B D

Industry trends and policies
ITEBZREE
Anti-corruption

RIB1ERR

Operating compliance
BRRE

Supplier management
HEmEE

Intellectual property rights
HHERE

Water resources management
KERER

Pollutants management
EAME TR

Energy management
RLIRE IR

Carbon footprint

ik Fe B

Climate change

TR

Impact of business on natural environment
EBURARETE
Product quality

EmEE

No.
35

15

16

17

22

23

24

25

R g NEAWRS

Concerned topics

BXEE

Product innovation

P dn BT

Customer interests and rights

EFRES

Customer complaint management

EFRFEE

Customer experience

EFER

Communications with communities and governments

i@ - BAER

Community engagement

HEeE

Public charity

INCY S

Employee remuneration and benefit

8 TH#rBf ez 7

Occupational safety and health

ETHXERERS

Employee development and training

BT #REET

Employee equality and diversity
IRFEZT

Protection of human rights

ARERE

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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Honest and compliant operation underpins the business
survival, and also the source of a healthy and sustainable
business development. In this regard, the Group will continue
to implement and improve the compliant measures against
corruption, monopoly, and unfair competition so as to
safeguard the legitimate rights of consumers, shareholders,
and other stakeholders.

Ethical rules

The Group promotes a fair and lawful competition
marketplace, and wishes to promote an orderly industrial
development and drive industrial potential by regulating its
own business conduct. In accordance with various laws and
regulations, including the Law Against Unfair Competition of
the People’s Republic of China and Certain Opinions of the State
Council on Promoting Fair Competition in the Market and
Maintaining the Normal Order of the Market, the Group strives
hard to pursue the regulated and transparent development
model in the midst of maintaining a normal and healthy
market competition landscape, and subjects itself to public
scrutiny to establish a good reputation in the industry and
even the community.

Clean and honesty

The Group is committed to building a business environment
of fairness and integrity, as well as pursuing the moral values.
We require our employees and suppliers to comply with
various laws and regulations, including the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, as well as to pursue practices in
compliance with the business ethics and norms. We provide
in our Employee Code of Conduct and Code of Business Conduct
that our employees shall follow the business etiquette when
engaging with the customers, business partners, and
suppliers. Over the course of purchase, the Group strictly
implements the centralized procurement standards, and
stipulates the terms governing anti-corruption and anti-
commercial bribery in procurement contracts, pursuant to
which, corruption and bribery risks arising from the
procurement process are brought under strict control. As
regards sales, we redouble the efforts to supervise key
department and positions, and our employees are
encouraged to actively build the good corporate image. In
addition, we will continue to improve our compliance
development and management capability. In the meantime,
we will constantly improve the whistleblowing management
system and procedures in respect of bribery practice and
corruption, while keeping various complaint and
whistleblowing channels available. Furthermore, we will
continue to improve the protection mechanism for our
whistleblowers. During the Reporting Period, we did not
identify any case involving corruption and litigation.
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General
Manager

Internal Managers in ‘ Headquarters’
whistleblowing different

Sy locations
WDB%#& %iﬂj@ﬁ

Monitoring

Department
B

R

External General
whistleblowing Manager

SNERER ¥R VT

‘ Board

EE

The Whistle-blowing Procedures of the Group
FEEERERRRE

LEAN PRODUCTION, INNOVATION, AND SERVICE 2. B=AlF - \BER%E
COMMITMENTS

The Group recognizes the importance of quality, pursues the green TEERKEERAED  BHECEERA
development standards, and believes in product innovation as the B BERBIFERE N BARKEBE
engine for our business growth. Whilst striving to provide our ERHESEEBNER  THRABRFH
consumers with trusted products, we continue with our own REEITHEES  AIEERNHEEE-

business development to drive the industrial development and
Create greater community values.

2.1 Quality assurance 21 EERE
We always consider “Quality First” as the source to translate BMEREMEZELERBER
thoughts into actions. By constantly improving the quality BB MITEIR S - T EE
management system, we are fully committed to providing EEHRER 2NWARFPIRHESE

our customers with premier, safe, and healthy products, and 2 ZENRENER BHGERD
try our utmost to build a quality and healthy life. ERERAE o

ERRERARAERAT —T—AEER J 75
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Quality control

The Group stresses the importance of ensuring product
quality. To this end, we exercise stringent quality control over
the procurement of raw and auxiliary materials and
production activities so as to ensure raw and auxiliary
materials in supply will be qualified and our production
activities proceed in accordance with the Good Manufacturing
Practice (GMP). Upon completion of production, all testing
items shall comply with the national food and drug
inspection standards before being packaged and distributed.
We also comply with local health quality practices overseas
such as the Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985, the
Biosecurity Act 1993, the Animal Products Act 1999 and the Food
Act 2014. We are committed to building the “whole-industry
chain quality management ecosystem”, while incessantly
striving to develop an “all-employee, all-process, and all-
dimension” quality management system. In addition, we
provide our product management officers with training
programs focused on related laws and regulations, specific
requirements, and new product line projects, which are
aimed at continuing to improve our product quality, as well
as developing the sense of responsibility among our
employees for quality control.

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech, a subsidiary of the Group, possesses a
variety of quality management system certifications, including
HACCP food safety system certification, ISO 9001 quality
management system certification and 1SO 22000 food safety
management system certification. Our production workshops,
operated by the 100,000-grade dust-free workshop standard
with on-site quality assurance personnel, can fully ensure our
production conditions fall in line with the relevant
requirements.

The raw materials of Living Nature, a subsidiary of the Group
are in compliance with the Cosmetic, Toiletry & Fragrance
Association (CTFA) certification, the highest international
standard; and the established quality management system
and related manual requirements which are equivalent to or
stricter than the CTFA GMP/ISO standard. We will continue to
improve our testing capability for various indicators of
product and raw materials, and streamline the control process
to achieve the quality assurance.
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Cobayer, a subsidiary of the Group, continues to optimize its
product sampling management, including testing
requirements for raw materials of products, packaging
materials, and finished products. Over the course of
production, we maintain and keep a good record of samples
at different stages so that product traceability can assist with
the references of physical items.

Product recall

In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Food Product Recall Management Rules,
and other laws and regulations, we formulate a collection of
policy documents, including the Incoming Food Inspection
Procedures, Food Recall System and Defective Food Product
Recall System, all of which aim to constantly improve our
product recall system.

During the Reporting Period, we established the “recall
taskforce group”, and formulated and published various
procedural documents, including the Product Recall
Instructions, Product Recall Schedule, and Product Recall Records.
Furthermore, we provided training sessions for employees at
those departments involved in the product recall. In addition,
we had recall drills during the Reporting Period to test the
effectiveness and operability of our recall procedures. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any recall
incident.

The Group stayed focus on product research and innovation,
and is committed to providing consumers with higher-
quality, healthier, and more diverse product lines. In
collaboration with our partners, we will strive to assist the
public in pursuing their dream for a healthy lifestyle. In the
meantime, we strengthen our research exchange and
collaboration with higher education institutions, research
facilities, and industry associations, while promoting industry
and technology research, high-caliber talent development
and industry incubation so that all parties join hands to
pursue innovation by supplementing each other with their
own resources.
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Product research and development

The Group is committed to product innovation and
exploration, as well as industrial upgrade, while continuing to
enhance our capability to understand market demands and
product preferences. During the Reporting Period, we
adopted a strategic combination of marketing channels and
product diversification, and persisted in collaboration with
our customers to improve incentive mechanism for
innovation research and development, consolidate research
resources, and focus on deepening the research areas. During
the Reporting Period, our new laboratory was officially put
into operation. With the sophisticated research, laboratory,
and inspection facilities equipment in place, we continue to
explore the innovation of products, technologies, and
processes, while constantly providing our customers with
premier products and services.

The Group adopt the market-based research and product
development processes to accommodate the changing
customer demands. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had a total of five technology innovation projects, and
introduced 25 new products, including 2 Heijan products, 20
Good Health products, and 3 Living Nature products. These
product lines diversify the healthcare product choices for our
consumers.

Intellectual property rights protection

As regards innovation research and patent applications, the
Group continue to consolidate its competitive strengths in
intellectual property rights. In compliance with the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China, we formulated relevant
policy documents, including the Intellectual Property Rights
Management and Patent Protection System, pursuant to which,
various working processes, including collection, production,
approval, and distribution of information in respect of
intellectual property rights, are unified and regulated. While
strengthening our standard management of self-owned
patents, trademarks, and other intellectual property rights, we
fully recognize the importance of intellectual property rights
of others. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any incident involving infringements upon
intellectual property rights.

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Cobayer Good Health
RAERE =220 HieE

13 licensed patents

ERTE

AEEEINERAFIRENEEA
F o BERSEHMSERKNERBD
IR - MEHR - BRFARDZRE
i ZEEMBERKAES - B
BEHE - BBTE TS AIFHED
HENE - ERAEERNEEG AR
B AR B o EHAN - RAIFE
NEBRZEENRAMER SR EE
e - ERAMBARMERE - B8
BMFERRER MM IEMNE
U THARFIRESEENER
AR o

NEERATIS AR REMF
BERE UmBRTHELELNEFRE
ZoREMA - NEBHAFTERSIE
BHL AT MRIER - HEH 25 TBHER
HAPBE2BRBERIER - 20I84F
fi Bz Z 5| B S BA B2 3 3H Living Nature &
NER  AEBEREENZ T/IH
R i o

HRERERE

HEFAENENHRTE - AEE
MBZBEANMBEES TN - RIMKR
(PEARKMBEEMNE) SIETE
FHONBEREIERBEMNREHZ)E
PR E AR B I A - A — AR B AN E
BONERKRSE  EL  BEREBRMNSE
RED - RAVERENR A S HER
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Living Nature

WSR3 4 4 trademark applications 7 trademark applications 55 trademark applications
2 licensed copyrights FEEIR4 FREEIE 71 BRI S5 1

WO R 2 1
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2.3 Supply chain management

Product quality is directly dependent upon the quality of raw
materials and auxiliary materials, which also is closely
connected to users’ health. The Group operates as a business
integrated with research, development, production, and sales,
and therefore highly appreciates the management and
maintenance of our supply chain. We will continue to
advance the development of the supply chain system, which
will help facilitate the establishment and development of a
long-term and stable partnership. The Group has established
a comprehensive supply assessment and grading

2.3

HEEE
FHANEEERFEEERNE
B THEIAFPNIEREE -FS
—RKENE  AEMEER —EBMHD
¥ AKEFREREEENEIEN
M THENEEHERERRER
ERBRTAFRENZLMER -
AEEERYBREHEREAEAN  &1F
BIEFE BRATESRAOEANH
e A T EMD RETRHS - HIR
HEEEEERKFTERT -

management mechanism, which covers supplier access,
cooperative process evaluation and review evaluation, so as
to continue to improve our supply chain quality
management.

-
Prior to procurement of raw materials, we scrutinize and verify the commensurate
qualifications of the suppliers, and propose the relevant safety requirements, which

Supplier will be subject to assessment by the competent department.
access RERME RS HEREHOEEEEETEERAWRLERLEE
fHAER A ko R EFPIH R ERETAHE -
J
We conduct regular inspections over the suppliers, and make timely rectifications
Cooperative and remedies when relevant issues are identified.
process THFREEEBE T S TR R TSRS -
evaluation
afFBRE J
+FHE
-
Our performance assessment focuses on various dimensions, including food,
service quality, food brand awareness, punctuality of delivery, pricing, and
aftersales services.
WEm - REEE  EmmhiE  HEREME B85
Review BRERGEZEAEERREZTEIE -
evaluation
ETE
J

During the Reporting Period, to avoid procurement risks and
regulate procurement procedures, the Company holds
regular procurement meetings, where each department is
required to submit their procurement application for
discussion and study so as to safeguard the quality and safety
of product procurement. As regards to overseas cooperative
suppliers, we will continue to improve the qualification
certification process, while minimizing overseas procurement
risks to safeguard production and operation stability.

HERA - BRERERR  REK
BRiE ARREHSERRESS
HEBPIRAERNRBRFLETH
W URBERRBNEER
2 HEBINEIEHRER - RAE
EEHHEERENWRE - THRE
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During the Reporting Period, we performed audit work over
various suppliers, including paper audit and field audit. In
addition, we carried out extensive investigation into the plant
premises, production sites, and quality management of our
suppliers to ensure that their quality management is up to
standard. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of
454 suppliers of raw materials, among which, there were 253
overseas suppliers and 200 Chinese suppliers.

The Group is committed to enriching service channels and
improving our service standard, which will provide our
customers with pleasant experiences in both comfortable
services and health.

Service channel
For our service expansion, we continue to pay close attention
to the service requirements of our consumers by further
optimizing our multichannel marketing strategy to achieve
the full-range coverage and multichannel services for our
target customers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to improve
our warehousing, transportation, and distribution network by
optimizing our marketing channels and models, which were
aimed at providing a convenient and expeditious consuming
experience. We achieved direct distribution from shopping
platforms, which means that our warehouses can receive
orders placed with the shopping platforms for direct
shipment. Such arrangement not only reduces transactions
but also reduces product wear and tear and makes logistics
and distribution more convenient, efficient and cost effective.
By the end of the Reporting Period, we had a total of 6
shopping platforms for direct delivery.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has made great effort
to develop domestic distributors, TV shopping platforms and
e-commerce platforms. We have built cooperation with a
number of platforms including yougou.com, hao24.com,
best1.com, jiajiamall, CNRmall, happigo.com, ocj.com.cn and
Global Home Shopping to sell general trade and cross-border
trade products, and continued to cooperate with
e-commerce platforms such as Tmall International, JD.com,
suning.com, xiaohongshu.com, pinduoduo.com and Health
Post.
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The Group’s overseas sales platform is mainly comprised of
the international distributor network that covers the United
Kingdom, Germany, Singapore, Vietnam, and Thailand, and
large chain pharmacies, healthcare product supermarkets,
and souvenir shops in New Zealand and Australia.
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Distributor network widely distributed in many countries
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Advertising compliance

The Group always pays attention to managing the
compliance of advertising and promotions. In strict
compliance with the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Advertising Management Regulations of the People’s
Republic of China, the Interim Provisions of the People’s Republic
of China on Publishing Food Advertisements, the Interim
Provisions of the People’s Republic of China on Censorship of
Healthy Food Advertisements, and the Tort Law of the People’s
Republic of China, we also observe various overseas laws and
regulations, including the Guidelines for Therapeutic Advertising
Pre-vetting Service and TAPS. In the meantime, we established
the advertising publication and approval mechanism to
ensure the accuracy of online and offline advertising contents
without any misleading or exaggerating content. During the
Reporting Period, we teamed up with TV shopping platforms
to launch various marketing campaigns to ensure marketing
compliance. We worked with TV channels to carry out the
whole-process control over the pre-airing, airing, and post-
airing of sales activities. As regards to marketing forms, we
guide consumers to a healthy living practices by focusing on
advocating healthy living concepts.
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Brand building

The Group continues to push forward with brand building by
constantly identifying the brand attributes, and establishing
product differentiation. By assisting our consumers in fully
recognizing the inherent values of our products, we will
continue to enhance our brand awareness and consumer
conversion rate. During the Reporting Period, we participated
and organized a series of consumer activities in the PRC and
abroad, including 2019 SIAL China, Healthplex Expo 2019
2019 Alibaba E-commerce Expo, the 19th Children-Baby-
Maternity Expo (CMBE), New Zealand Fashion Week, and Baby
Show (the largest parenting exhibition in New Zealand), so
that we continue to broaden our horizon, deepen our
communication with customers, showcase our products, and
develop our global brands.
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The Group is actively building a comprehensive customer
service system, as well as a timely and effective consumer
response system. These systems allow us to deepen our
understanding of consumer requirements through
communication and provide inclusive and considerate
services, thereby improving the consumer satisfaction.

Protection of rights and interests

In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Tort Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Fair Trading Act 1986, and laws
and regulations where we operate, the Group promotes the
healthy living practices and safeguard customers’ legitimate
rights. During the Reporting Period, we optimized the
customer complaint procedures and complaint handling
mechanism. In cases of customer complaints or feedback, to
ensure customer satisfaction, we established prompt
communications with our customers, and identified solutions,
including return of products, based on the complaint
contents and negotiation results. As regards to complaints
about imported products in the PRC market, we promptly
took pictures or recorded videos, which were referred to the
manufacturers, and proposed timely solutions. Furthermore,
we conducted analysis and provided rectification with
respect to the issues in question.

As for products sold on the TV shopping platform, we provide
regular training sessions as to aftersales customer services of
TV shopping platforms, which are aimed at assisting our
customer service agents to understand the products of the
Group and health-related knowledge, as well as encourage
them to consider issues from the perspective of our
customers on their best effort. This will help customer service
agents fully understand and meet our customer
requirements, and resolve the issues that concern our
customers the most. As a result, the customers’ recognition
and satisfaction of our brand and services will continue to be
enhanced.

Privacy protection

We highly recognize the importance of information security
and privacy protection for customers. In strict compliance
with the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other laws and regulations, we establish safeguards for
customer privacy, and introduce restrictions as to access to
private information. Furthermore, we establish a clearance
mechanism for department heads, which prohibits the
employees from leaking or unauthorized access to customer
information. This mechanism aims to prevent the leakage of
customer information from multiple aspects.
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In the midst of increasingly severe environmental pollution and
waste of resources, minimizing negative environmental impacts
caused by various processes, including production and operation,
has become an material issue for corporate sustainability. In
response to climate changing challenges, we continue to improve
our environmental management, enhance the resource utilization
rate, and reduce pollution emissions, so as to make positive
contribution to environmental sustainability.

In strict compliance with various laws and regulations
governing environmental protection, including the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention and
Control of Air Pollution of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation, the
Group has developed the Corporate Environmental
Management System, Corporate Drainage Management System,
Corporate Solid Waste Management System, Energy
Conservation Management System and Vehicle Management
System. During the Reporting Period, all environmental
protection indicators of the R&D Centre project of
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech, were in compliance with regulatory
requirements, and it successfully obtained the approval and
commenced its operation.

Over the course of daily operation, we ensure that use of
energy and resources, pollutant generation and disposal are
subject to compliance management measures under the
assistance from the leading environmental taskforce. During
the Reporting Period, Living Nature was certified by Toitu
(which is formerly known as EnviroMark and provides
environmental management solutions) after an evaluation
conducted over the environmental management of Living
Nature in various areas, including its supply chain, business,
and risks. The “Toitu” certification endorses the compliance
and risk prevention awareness of Living Nature which signifies
our active commitment to sustainability in our resource
management, sewage control, waste minimization, use of
hazardous chemicals, and other aspects.
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Over the course of production and operation, we encourage
the practice of simplicity, comfort, and green and low-carbon
emission by launching water conservation, electricity
conservation, and energy-saving campaigns for our
employees, and take the initiative to address climate change
as part of our sustainability commitments.

Energy management

Over the course of production and operation, we mainly
consume gasoline, diesel, liquefied petroleum gas, and
purchased electricity. Therefore, we explore methods
including equipment transformation and processing
improvement to reduce energy consumption as much as
possible on the basis of safeguarding quality and
performance. For the purposes of reducing purchased
electricity, we will substitute LED lights for obsolete
fluorescent lamps, and install time-controlled air-conditioning
systems. We encourage our employees to take public
transportation for outbound travel so as to reduce the use of
self-owned vehicles. By rationalizing the schedule of our
production and processing activities, we save the use of
diesel and gasoline.
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Efficient Lighting Renovation Project for Underground Parking Lot

W TEERAHEHRIEER

During the Reporting Period, we carried out an efficient lighting renovation project for our underground parking lot at
the office building of the Group. We substituted the timer switch for the original lighting switch based on the traffic
volume of the underground parking lot at various time slots. In doing so, we estimate that approximately 5,000 kWh can
be saved on an annual basis.
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HEHR - HAIERBERBERNT :

Set forth below is our energy consumption during the

Reporting Period

Consumption
H¥EE

Unit
Consumables categories SHEYER 2017 2018 2019 By
Gasoline badii 57,291 62,128 67,731 Litre F
Diesel oil ] 7,708 7371 499 Litre Ff
Liquefied petroleum gas bty R 0.64 147 287 Cubic metres 37 /5K
Total direct energy BB EH#ES 7165 75.30 81.22 Tonnes of standard
consumption Coal equivalent
WEAZ B
Purchased electricity SMNEE 236301 195282 261421 MWh JK LB
Total indirect energy BERER A S 29041 240.00 321.29 Tonnes of standard
consumption Coal equivalent
pedes
Total energy consumption B BEIFEFE 362.06 315.30 40251 Tonnes of standard
Coal equivalent
gEdes
Integrated energy consumption BTUBGEEEHE 732 6.96 1248 Kilogram standard

per revenue of RMB10,000

Coal equivalent per

RMB10,000
TRiER/ &L
In promoting green and low-carbon operation, we pursue HBPEEZLERRKE EATLEERE

scientific and rational management of energy use during our

AR/ ﬁﬁﬁ’\ /Riﬁﬂﬂfﬁ CREEE

daily production and operation activities to minimize PR B =R 2Eemk - MEEAAN - HFH
greenhouse gas emissions. Set forth was our greenhouse gas B E R B |E,,R;zu‘|? :
emission during the Reporting Period:
Emission
BHE
Unit
Greenhouse gas category BEREER 2017 2018 2019 By
Greenhouse gas emission Scope | HE— B RN 174 161 168 Tonnes of CO, eq
MECO, 58
Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il HE B TR 972 828 1,195 Tonnes of CO, eq
MECO, 5 &
Greenhouse gas emission Scope lII* HIE= R E RN 19 65 56 Tonnes of CO; eq
WECO, 88
Total greenhouse BEREHNEE 1,165 1,054 1419 Tonnes of CO, eq
gas emissions WECO,EE
Greenhouse gas emissions per BTz B EREHNE 23.56 2326 4398 Kilogram of CO, eq

revenue of RMB10,000

* Note: Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il includes emissions generated

from business flights of our employees.
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Water resource management KEREE

By acknowledging the importance of water resource to BPUREKERERALEAE - £
human production and domestic activities, we continue to MEZH - WRRBEHEEKERE
implement the water resource management system, and BHE|E - IR E TE/KEHE  TEIE
strengthen the awareness of water conservation among our SREREERRE - SHEBR - T
employees so that efficient use of water resource can be PMEKEEEXES :

constantly improved. During the Reporting Period, we mainly
implemented the water-saving practices as follows:

Water-saving management

EiKERE

* Implemented scientific production planning by considering the
processing procedures at the preliminary research stage to avoid
preliminary processing that consumes substantial water;
BBMBLHEMEERS - CHENIERTERIE
REBPFKERANARELE ;

® |nstalled water-saving devices and environmental pipeline equipment
to prevent gas leakage, water gushing, dripping, and water leakage;
EAEKBEAMRREBRE - WIERERRER

® C(Centralized the cleaning and disinfection of work uniforms to save the
consumption amounts of tap water and disinfectants.

HITERETHRER  HERE  SHEBRKFESTHNERE -
Rainwater recycle

7K E A

® The rainwater and sewage separation facility was built for the production and
office premises located in Nanjing for recycling rainwater;
AR EREER NSRRI DMK - HRAETEA

® Rainwater collected from the roofs and road surfaces were used for greening,
irrigation, cleaning vehicles and roads.

Wk EE KRR E R RK AR OB - ERBR - BRBAFREAEM -

Tap water is the main source for water consumed during the BRKEAEEEZERKOHETENR
operation of the Group. Daily operation and office premises B BN EZENAKRSARREH
within the industry park are the major sources of water BEEMPBD - REPR - MO
consumption. Set forth was water consumption during the KIERAT -

Reporting Period:

Consumption

FHE
Unit
Consumables category SHEEY R 2017 2018 2019 B
Water resources TKE R 40,630.22 18,463.80 19,646.50 Tonne ME
Water consumption per BT s KOEFE 0.82 041 042 Tonne per
revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Y=V
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Packaging materials management

We continue to regulate the management of packaging
materials by striving to enhance the efficient use of packaging
materials. Over the course of production and operation,
cardboards and plastics are our major packaging materials. In
2019, we continued to evangelize about simple packaging
practices and improve the logistics system to prevent waste
of materials due to excessive packaging.

To streamline the management of packaging materials, we
establish the packaging committee, which shall review and
control the selection and recycle of packaging materials, and
the environmental impacts brought by such packaging
materials. Owing to our commitments, cardboards used for
products under the brand Living Nature are sourced from the
secondary forest, which is free from toxic or bleach.
Furthermore, all packaging materials used for products under
the brand Living Nature are 100% recyclable materials. To
further enhance efficient use of resources, we are actively
exploring research on the alternate packaging solutions.

We changed the distribution system and logistics system for
the TV shopping services in 2019. Originally, commodities
were delivered to the warehouse of the TV station before
being shipped to consumers. Now, orders are placed with the
TV station, which is relayed to the warehouse of the Company
for direct shipment from the factory. Apart from cutting
logistics costs, we manage to reduce the waste of packaging
materials due to secondary shipment.

Set forth below was the consumption by the Group of
packaging materials during the Reporting Period:

Consumables category SHFEYE R
Packaging materials ey
Consumption of packaging BT e B HFE
materials per revenue of
RMB10,000
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Green office

e
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We encourage our employees to play an active role in pursuing environmentally friendly practices, and urge our

employees to identify means to save resources in their best ability, including:

RPN EE TRERETREREE A TUNMERNSTABHHER - HPEHE -

Turning off the lights and computers upon the work being completed or being absent for a long period of time;

ERERTFRIERERRAE - BEHAEENER

Trying to reuse or recycle paper, cardboard, and other materials in the office;

BESRERACBRAEENMAR - AEMEAMLIE

Making full use of the recycle station in the office in strict compliance with garbage classification;

FAMBMRENEU T, - WEAR B TR DB

Disposing used ink cartridges and batteries in a designated area to prevent pollution;

ABNEENEDEIRRETHE - BEe53
Using environmental paper gift bags for promotional campaigns;

ERRERNMERRBETRIEAD

Trying to register electronic communications means for receiving bills and correspondence and avoid paper mails.

Bl MR U AREME TBIE - @PAEET -

We are actively exploring effective measures to reduce
emissions. In accordance with the requirements of the
relevant laws, regulations, and standards, including the Law
on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the People’s
Republic of China and the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Air Pollution of the People’s Republic of China, we uphold the
environmental bottom line, and exercise stringent control
over pollutant emissions.

Wastewater emission

In accordance with production conditions and local laws and
regulations, we established our strict wastewater
management rules. Based on the Class-3 wastewater emission
standards set forth under the Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard (GB8978-1996), we adopt the scientific, rational, and
efficient method to treat wastewater so as to comply with the
discharge standard. In particular, wastewater generated from
our laboratories is treated in the water collection tank for
acid-base balancing until it falls within the compliance scope.
After it is tested for the discharge standard upon
precipitation, it discharged through the outdoor sewage
pipeline.

BPIER R R E TR E RIEE
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We evangelize about clean production, and strive to control
wastewater at source level to mitigate its negative
environmental impacts. We propose that:

No coal-fired or gas boilers are used over the course of
production;

No corrosive acid, alkaline, chlorine or other solvents
will be used for any closed-loop cleaning system;

Excessive use of water resources is avoided in a
production environment to reduce consumption of
water resources and wastewater discharge.

Set forth below was our wastewater discharged during the
reporting period:

Effluents category BB Rl

Total wastewater JTIKEEE B E
discharged
Chemical Oxygen (COD) discharged COD Bt &

Ammonia and nitrogen discharged & BEE

Air emission

Our air emission is mainly comprised of a small amount of air
emission produced by the laboratory, which will be collected
in a centralized manner and absorbed by activated carbons
before its emission in accordance with relevant laws and
rules.
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St 4n

Amount discharged

Bk E
Unit
2017 2018 2019 By
15,682 12,974 6,223 Tonne WA
0.0300 0.0360 0.0310 Tonne [
0.0100 0.0058 0.0049 Tonne §
BERHEK
BZMNERFEAEREELANLE
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Solid waste management

In strict compliance with the relevant requirements of the
laws and regulations, including the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste
Pollution and Prevention and Control of Waste Hazardous
Chemical the Law of Pollution, and according to the National
Catalogue of Hazardous Waste, we sort out and collect waste
generated from our production and operation, all of which
are uniformly disposed of by local qualified municipal
sanitation units.

General non-hazardous waste generated from our operation
mainly comprises of packaging waste, personal protective
equipment waste, electronic waste, office waste, and food
waste. We promote the practice of paper-free office and
waste classification to minimize the generation of non-
hazardous waste.

Our major hazardous waste includes mineral oil waste and
drugs waste. To ensure safety compliance, we maintain a
detailed record by establishing a record system and filing
these records with the relevant regulatory department.

Set forth below is our solid waste disposal during the
Reporting Period:

Disposal category B Bl
Hazardous waste EREED

BT e EEY

Hazardous waste per revenue of

RMB10,000
Non-hazardous waste BmERERY)
Non-hazardous waste per BTG EEEEY
revenue of RMB10,000
* Note: due to the completion and services of Zhongsheng Bio-Tech

Park, there is an increase in the disposal of non-hazardous waste in
connection with the operation of the park, personnel, offices, and

cafeteria during the Reporting Period.
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2017

17.02

0.34

43.00

0.86

B R EE

TAPI B AR B SF (P E AR E E 82
RS RREIAR) (BEERBRILE
A RREPOAIOE) ERAER
REKBERERERZRY R HRMAE
EREBETELENERMETIE
WE - YRHEMEEENTNEIRE
Blum—sERE -

BPMELEN —REZERVEIES
BERER - SRR - BT RN W
REFME R RE - FPTRBIET
BAARRAARNIF SR BEES
BEEVNELSE -

B E B RN BRI -
BHESS - RERBARETHERE
8 TEAMBEERBETER M
RRE2AM -

WEHAR - BMWEEEEMHERE
WA

Amount disposed

e
Unit
2018 2019 B
28.00 28.07 Tonne
Mg
0.62 0.87  Kilogram per
RMB10,000
FTr/Br
4421 51.93* Tonne
Mg
0.98 1.61  Kilogram per
RMB10,000
FTr/BT

* i AR AR R R AR - 8
HHREPNERESE  ABRARRE
EREREEEZMNEAMEM -

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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4. SHARED GROWTH BASED ON OUR PEOPLE-
ORIENTED VALUES

We uphold the “people oriented” philosophy by pursuing a
sustainable development, promoting the people-oriented practices.
To respect the employee rights and interests, we continue to
optimize the working environment to build a healthy and pleasant
workplace for our employees. Given our growing employee size, we
continue to expand our training programs, build transparent
channels for promotion, and provide a wide platform for career
development.

4.1 Employment overview

In strict compliance with local laws and regulations, including
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Human
Rights Act 1993, the Employment Relations Act 2005, and the
Holidays Act 2003, we formulate and continue to improve the
Employee Recruitment Procedures and Remuneration
Management System to regulate our employee management.
We prohibit any form of discrimination in any areas, including
ethnicity, nationality, religion, sex, and family, as well as forced
labour. For the purposes of our recruitment, we
conscientiously review the information of applicants to
prevent the employment of any underaged candidate. In
case of any use of child labour or forced labour, we will
address these issues in strict compliance with the relevant
procedures, and the personnel involved will be seriously
disciplined. During the Reporting Period, we did not identify
any violation case involving the use of child labour or forced
labour.
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We recruit talents in considering the business needs of our P PR IR TS H S A EITHREE
Company, via various channels, including new media, human RBHERE  ANERTS - RER
resources market, campus recruitment, and internal referral, BAANISHEBESEERE  TEHELRM
to optimize our talent pool. At the end of the Reporting BAA TR c B 2ME AR - It
Period, we had a total of 448 employees, details of which are BEI448%  FFIBEAT -

set forth as follows:

= 30 years old or below

= Male employees 30EBRSIAT
FET l = 31 t0 40 years old
= Female employees 31-40/EB%
“ 8T V % 4110 50 years old
B 41-50F 5%
above 50 years old
50/EmR A £
Distribution of total employees by gender Distribution of total employees by age
EHRIB D HNERAR RERESNEBAR

= Senior management
RREEE
Administrative
THRAER
Healthcare supplement
technicians
REEBERMAE
Sales

HEAR

Other

A

Distribution of total employees by profession

BEEIDTHERAR

ﬁﬁ*iﬁéﬂﬁﬁwﬂﬁ:z—hiiﬁAJ 93
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To accommodate the business development, we provided
our employees with various training programs, as well as fair
and transparent career development and promotion
channels. As for employee training, we continue to improve
the training system based on the Employee Training
Management System. For the purpose of improving the
employee’s knowledge of the maternity and infant market, as
well as enhancing their expertise to expand the maternity
and infant market, we provided training which focused on
the maternity and infant business segment, which cover
sessions related to nursery coaches, and assist and encourage
them to obtain the relevant qualifications. To continue with
the overseas market expansion, we also provided our
employees within the PRC with training on Good Health, our
overseas brand. To further enrich the knowledge of our
employees, we implemented the online training model in
addition to conventional training management and training
programs, including WeChat and livestream platforms.

We made strategic arrangements as to the training contents
based on the department development requirements. In
2019, we formulated 219 training programs in total, including
company-level and department-level training. During the
Reporting Period, we had a total of 2,495 attendees with a
total of 16,915 training hours, and average training hours of
38 hours per person.

As for employee promotion, we persist in the notion of
“fairness, impartiality, and openness”. By conscientiously
selecting talents suitable for the positions, we ensure each
outstanding employee has access to equal promotion and
development opportunities. Based on the Employee
Promotion and Management System, we carry out a
comprehensive assessment over our employees in terms of
their work performance, work attitude, and development
potential, the results of which serve as the merits for
providing our employees with promotion opportunities. We
aim to promote continued learning among our employees to
improve their individual capability and make progress with
the Company. The Group offers three promotion paths,
including sales, management, and technology paths, where
our employees may specifically improve their expertise based
on their individual features and business requirements. If our
employees are willing to realign their career development
path and demonstrate outstanding performance, we will also
permit such employees to pursue their career change or
promotion on a different business line.
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4.3 Communications and caring 43 EBERE
We recognize our employees as the core engine to drive our BMAMEIRCEZERAOZL N
business development, and highly appreciate their £ EREIEIEFHRE - M
commitments to our work. In response to our employee FITEBIRE AEITIRHYEEZEK
health, we provide a variety of benefits and caring gestures to HEMMEAE - 4R B A sE I T
our employees, including flexible work schedule in the midst fEHl - FEBR - FAMM - KRE
of special periods, annual body check, birthday celebration, B ZIERBE B/ MEME - Bt
visit to the sick with solicitude, and Women’s Day presents. EHESERET AR  AETIRMHE
We also actively engage in communications with our TEMNRE - FHAMS A - &
employees at all levels, and provide them with premium HEH  BEI—H—XXnkB8IEHA
services, including regular recreational events, and one-on- g UEDHETIRRE N REIE
one communication exchange, and employee meetings, to G ZETEZETHNIETRT S
assist them in mitigating their work pressure, as well as EL0NCE

maintaining their enthusiasm at workplace. In this way, our
employees will have a sense of belonging at their busy work.

Employee Communication of Good Health

HREENEIBE

Good Health implements various measures to deepen communications with its employees, and further enhance their
workplace morale. To ensure that our employees can relieve their work pressure timely and effectively, as well as to
safeguard their mental health, we establish an employee hotline that provides our employees with continuous
psychological consultation services. Besides work, we offer our employees with birthday celebration and cultural
diversity activities, so as to encourage them to achieve a work-life balance. Furthermore, Good Health sets aside team
building funds for each department so that each department can design and organize team building activities to further
strengthen inter-department interaction and exchange.

IFERREZ B ANREINAE THRMNMER  IBABIITERE - RTREEINENEFIRES
MEHEER - RFEE T ORRE - BMRLTEIRG  WASTREEEN VIEEARS - ETIE2# - &
MERBARETRHAEBENMESERMLED  BEETTEMAZNTE - I BRTERHFIMAE
ZHEY  HERXNKE  FREASENMRETERERES AR BFIBRITRTLARBED -

ERAEBERBERAET —2-IEFR J 95
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4.4 Occupational health 4.4 TBERE

In strict compliance with various safety and health related laws
and regulations, including the Workplace Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
the Safety Training Management Rules, and Health & Safety at
Work Act 2015, we will continue to optimise and improve the
occupational safety management mechanisms. We carry out
regular assessments over employees’ practices of personal
protective equipment and workplace sanitation, and conduct
safety drills and safety training sessions to ensure that
management personnel at all levels implement production
safety accountability system and operating procedures to
raise the safety awareness of our employees.

Upholding the people-oriented philosophy, we recognise the
importance of safety and health of our employees during
production, and thus we pursue employee management
under the closed-loop safety management system that
covers safety production management structure to system
development, safety inspection, and regular assessment.
These initiatives will safeguard the continuity and stability of
our safe productions.
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Management
structure

EERE

To establish a safe
production
management team,
which comprises of the
general manager as the
team leader,
department heads as
team members, and
shift leaders as the
major safety officers.
XS LA B A 18 B 4R
R BBeEHMIEE
ARKE  SHER
RE-—LZZABEAN
TREEER/ M
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Safety management system

ZR2EERA
System Regular
development assessment
FERR TEHART L

To formulate the Safety
Education and Training
System and the
Administrative Rules for
Special positions
HECE 2B HFI
HEI R IEERE
=Y

To update the
Administrative Rules for
Employee Health and
Sanitation, the Mould
Management Rules, the
Management Rules for
Cleaning Tools and the
Management Rules for
Use of Containers
EFKABREAE
ERHIE)(EAERE
FIEYCERIAER
HEI (B EMRERE
=Y

To formulate corrective
measures to address
identified issues on a
regular basis, the
corrective results and
reviews of which will
be reported to the
leading safety taskforce
intime

IR MFEHIE
TERREE R e - A
BREEBARER
BT RE/ A

Safety
inspection
RERE

To organise a quarterly
safety inspection that
focuses on identifying
violation of rules and
potential hazards
NERER BBRA
TERT BFEA
B—RLZ2WmE

To launch routine
safety check at every
department at least
once a month
EHMEARRTD
R—REEMEREE
=

To inspect the
completion of
production safety
accountability at each
department in
accordance with the
Comprehensive Safety
Monitoring Form
BBA(RELRER
e HMAL e
HEBERIBTKIE
o
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During the Reporting Period, we invested RMB232,000 in
production safety. A total of 289 attendees participated
production safety related training. And we did not identify
any death toll arising from production safety accident or
work-related. There was no work time lost due to work
injuries.

WMEHA - RPN LT2EERABA
R¥23208 70 + HET289 AR HZ
PHEMRBFI  KABELT2EES
WHBARTIEREAERMILT S -
REETEGMBRTIERRE -

Safety training
T2
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The Group is actively involved in various community events so that
the public develops a better understanding of our philosophy and
actions. Whilst continuing to develop our business, we will always
uphold the social responsibility by committing ourselves to
international cultural carnivals, and disease-related donation
campaigns. By doing so, we will truly give back to the community
after benefiting from the community.

We are committed to strengthening the international influence of
Chinese culture by constantly promoting our corporate values in
cultural exchanges in the midst of economic globalization and
cultural diversity. During the Reporting Period, we provided a
sponsorship of AUDS5,800 for the two-day charity performance of
the legendary drama The Beauty in Sydney starring Ms. Liu Xiaoging,
a Chinese actress, which fully underscores the confidence and
charm of the oriental culture, as well as manifests the collision and
fusion of multiculturalism.

R g NEAWRS

AEERBSLESBHL LY BLARE

MT BRI IRZEITE) - TRAPIE AT

REFNRE  BARLETHEES

#E}‘Ef‘iﬁl,T\Xﬂ:xiﬁ/%@J 3tiEl
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BB HRELE 2L - XEZEAR
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Charity donation

We support charity organizations and non-profit organizations by
offering regular sponsorship or donations. Living Nature has
established the long-term donation model with Breast Cancer
Foundation (which is a non-profit charity trust fund to support
breast cancer patients), Look Good Feel Better (which is an NGO to
support cancer patients), and Sweet Louise (which is a non-profit
charity trust fund to support incurable breast cancer patients).
During the Reporting Period, Living Nature donated a total of
RMB15,785 to endorse our commitment to the charity cause with
practical action.

During the Reporting Period, we collaborated with Cure Kinds New
Zeal at the Baby Show. US$1 out of each sold item was donated to
the non-profit charity organizations. The fund will be used for
important medical research to improve, extend, and save the lives
of severely sick children.
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APPENDIX | APPLICABLE REGULATIONS AND POLICIES Fff#¢— BRAZERREE

Environmental Aspect

RIRE R

Regulations and Policies

ERRBER
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(RE AR JEMBURFREE)
the Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the People’s Republic of China
(PEEARKEMBEIKSREE)
the Law on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMBARFISRIE)
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution
(hEARAMBEEBEYTRRENAE)
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMBEIRBRER L)
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation
(hE AR HEMBEGERET 955
the Law of the Prevention and Control of Waste Hazardous Chemical Pollution

(BERERILERFRARENRIDE)

Corporate Policies

DARBIE
Corporate Environmental Management System
(REREEHIE)
Corporate Drainage Management System
(BERRGEESE)
Corporate Solid Waste Management System
(EREEEHIE)
Energy Conservation Management System
(EPEEEIEHIE)
Vehicle Management System

(EMEEHE)

ERAEBERBERAET —2-IEFR J 101
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Social Aspect

HEHEE

The PRC Regulations and Policies:

HEIEAERBR ¢
the Law Against Unfair Competition of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKMBERPEERFE)
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hEARAMBERE)
the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMERRETEE)
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMBERNE)
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKMBEESZE)
the Consumer Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMBEEBEEERREER)
the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMBEREETE)
the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMEBRLEE)
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKMBELEE)
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARKMBESBEHERE)
the Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARKMBEZ 24 EE)
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(RE AR HEMBIBERYEE)
the Safety Training Management Rules
(R EERIIERIE)
Certain Opinions of the State Council on Promoting Fair Competition in the Market and Maintaining the Normal Order of the
Market
(BN EET S A TP EET S EERTFHETER)
the Food Product Recall Management Rules
(RmAEEERIHE)
the Advertising Management Regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARKEMBEEEEIREH)
the Interim Provisions on Publishing Food Advertisements
(RmESFEMYITRE)
the Interim Provisions on Censorship of Healthy Food Advertisements
(RREMBEEEEITRE)
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Social Aspect (Continued)
HEEE(E)

Overseas Regulations and Policies:

WINERBUR -
the Dietary Supplements Regulations 1985
(RE R FTE 6 - 1985)
the Biosecurity Act 1993
(EMREIESR » 1993)
the Animal Products Act 1999
(BMERESR » 1999)
the Food Act 2014
(RMER " 2014)
Guidelines for Therapeutic Advertising Pre-vetting Service, TAPS
ComEERERBGRLE)
The Fair Trading Act 1986
(RFRFESR > 1986)
Human Rights Act 1993
(AREEZR - 1993)
Employment Relations Act 2005
(RLERBIEOXRE - 2005)
Holidays Act 2003
(BREDEZ » 2003)
Health & Safety at Work Act 2015
(IEREZRZIER © 2015)

Corporate Policies

NEHE
Incoming Food Inspection Procedures
(RmEEERTIE)
Food Recall System

(RmBEFIE)

Defective Food Product Recall System
(RRERMmAERFIE)
Intellectual Property Right Management and Patent Protection System
CRBEREE IR RENIRESIZ)
Employee Code of Conduct
(BI=FAD
Code of Business Conduct
(BEER]D
Employee Training Management System
(BIIEAIERGIE)
Employee Promotion and Management System
(BEIEAEEHE)
Employee Recruitment Procedure

(BTHEHE)

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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Social Aspect (Continued)

MRS (&)
Remuneration Management System
(HrEEREHE)
Safety Education and Training System
(ZE2HEFIIHE)
Administrative Rules for Special Positions
(FHRIEEEGIE)
Administrative Rules for Employee Health and Sanitation
(NERFEHEEESZE)
Mould Management Rules
(BAEEHE)
Management Rules for Cleaning Tools
CERIAEBREHE)
Management Rules for Use of Containers

(RREAEEHE)

APPENDIX Il AWARDS AND HONORS IN THE REPORT [ — SEAFFEREREE

Award and Honors

BERKEER

The Green Parent Natural Beauty Awards
MERABRER

Natural Health International Beauty Awards
BAREEREER

Free From Skincare Awards
TREZEMAR

The Beauty Shortlist Mama & Baby Awards
“The Beauty Shortlist” £} 82 4%

Pure Beauty UK Awards

Verve Beauty Awards

Pure Beauty Awards International

SIESES3 PN
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APPENDIX Il CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT GUIDE
OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE [ff$f= B EBEAIRIE - HEREBREIESINBED|

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI) Chapter
BN HEREAEHBE—REERBRERIER KP) FEES
Environment
RE
Al: Emissions General Information on Emissions compliance
Al BERD disclosure @  the policies; and BB

— (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer.
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERRERBAN - AKRLHNEES  AEREEEEY)

HELEH
@ BR:R
b BEBTFHETABEATENEZERROINER -

A1 The types of emissions and respective relevant emissions data. Emissions compliance
Bra e B R AR - AR

A12 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, intensity. Use of resources
MERBESNE R (ER)EE ERER

A13 Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity. Emissions compliance
FELXEEREENEER (WER)TE - BRI

A4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity. Emissions compliance
FIEAREEZMES R (WER)BE ° AR

A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Emissions compliance
R BB EERAAERR o AR

A16 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous waste are handled, Emissions compliance
reduction initiatives and results achieved. BB

HARERELBEERRNONE  REELENEREMEAR -

ERAEBERBERAET —2-IEFR J 105
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAEBRE-RRBERBEERERKP)

A2: use of
resources

A2 BRfEM

A3: the environment
and natural

resources
AT IRIER
KAER

General
disclosure

—RNE
A2
A2.2

A23

A24

A25

General
disclosure

—RIE

A3

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw

materials.

BRERER(BIERIR - KREMERME) BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in

total and intensity.
RERESNEE R IEEELR(INE -
Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKERTE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
R IRE AR A B R B AR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HSKEGER AR LRI A ERPE - A REF AR 8 R PG
PR

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with

RIoH) BRERETE -

reference to per unit produced.

HRBAAENHNEERIER) BLEEEMUEE -

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BEZETAURBERAARAERERNEATZEOHE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

WA EBRDHRERARERNEAY ERCRNERAHETE
H178 -
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Chapter
FREEE

Use of resources

BREM

Use of resources

BREM

Use of resources
BRERA
Use of resources
BIRERA
Use of resources

BRER

Use of resources

BEREM

Use of resources

BREM

Use of resources

BREA



ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAERE-RRBRBEEERKP)

social

He

B1: Employment General

B : BIE disclosure
—REE
B1.1
B1.2

B2: health and safety General
B2: i@ E%Z2E  disclosure
—MRIE

B2.1

B2.2

B23

Information on
(@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer.

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFMEEE BABLER  TERE RE T5HE -
1t R A R E A 7538 R AR A -

@ BE: R
b BFHBEITABEK

region.

mIER - BEEL - FRARtESI N HE
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

RIER - FRAMNLEEEDNRERKLE -

Information on
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards

BRRRLZ2THERENREREMEBELREN

@ BE: X
b BIFHBTABEKX

Lost days due to work injury.

EAIGREATERE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored.

TR AN BE R RE R 250 - ARBERTR

HRREERAGINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

BRI R AR R -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

ETEREMETHABML X -

RiE - g MEATRE

Chapter
FrEEH

Employment overview

EEHR

Employment overview

EREER

The Company is pushing
forward the refined
management of staff
turnover and strives to make
related disclosure in the
future

RARIEHES TRAX
EREREALER - ki
RIRIER

Occupational health

BxEmE

Occupational health
BEREE
Occupational health
BRRERE
Occupational health

BEEE

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI) Chapter
B HERERERE-REERERENIEZ KP) FREEE
B3:development  General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties  Employee development
and training  disclosure at work. Description of training activities. ET%RRE
B3 : BRKEI —MRIE ERRAEERITIIEBENMH R REENEER - HEIIES -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. Employee development
rUpIRESEHNESNXIEERDL - BET%RE
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee  Employee development
Category. BT%RE

BRI EEERED - BRER KN TR -

B4: Labour standards General Information on Employment overview
B4 : BT AR disclosure (@  the policies; and BER
—REE (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer.
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRE aETRAH%ITH -

@ BE: R
b BTFHETABEATENHWEEZLROINER
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Employment overview
forced labour. ERER
iR R E DI A A R E T KGR HIST -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Employment overview
HEERERBEARERBRBE MRS - ERER
B5: Supply chain General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain. Supply chain management
management disclosure ERHEEARE R ERBIUR - HEER
B> : fEHER —RIE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply chain management
miEE DR HERHE HEER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers Supply chain management
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and ~ {f fE& 12
monitored.

HAAREAHLEANED  MENTEREMNNHEERHE - A
NERERNRTRERTX -
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAERE-RRBRBEEERKP)

B6: Product

General

responsibility disclosure

B6 - EmAE

—RBE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Information on

(@)  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and methods of redress.

BRMRMERNRBNEZERE  BS  BERMBFEUR

RRODE

@ BHE:R

b BEBTFHETABEATENRBERZLROINER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons.

EERRERERBATRAR 2 BEREMMALKNEILL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are

dealt with.

REBRERRREORFHRE AR -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

H B R RE AR ERE R R IENI -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

WS ST RIE RERBWIERT o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HIUEBEEANRERLBEE - ARAERTRERTE -

Chapter
FrEEH

Quiality assurance

BEERE

Quality assurance

HERE

Communication with
customers

The Company continuously
promotes refined complaint
management and strives to
make related disclosure in
respect of the number of
complaints received in the
future

BPER

AR A BHERFRER
LER » IRERKEKE
RFHE

Innovation research

Bl E

Quality assurance
HERE
Communication with
customers

RPER

ERPEBEROARAIE —T-NFFH
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

BE HEREAEBRE-RRBERBEERERKP)

B7: Anti-corruption ~ General
B7: RES disclosure
—RR R
B7.1
B7.2
B8: Community General
investment  disclosure
B8 : #EIZE —REE
B8.1
B8.2

Information on
(@  thepolicies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion

, fraud and money laundering.

BEPDRMR - DR - BEFRAREN -

@ BE: X

b) BTEHRETAEEATENERERIROINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of

the cases.
REEREI A 81T A E
RIS -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they

EERMYCEENETHFARFAZE

are implemented and monitored.

TP # S i X SR AR

A RABBERITRER T

Policies on community engagement to understand the need of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into the

communities' interests.
BRENMHR2ERT He
MR MR EER o

Focus areas of contribution.
HIER®E

EMEHRFENRRAXBIDEER

Resources contributed to the focused area.

HEERIRBHAHHAER
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Chapter
FREEE

Operating compliance
aRge

Operating compliance
AREE

Operating compliance

ARRE

Gratitude and give back to
the community
DERE - EErE

Gratitude and give back to
the community
DERE - BBt E
The Company is pushing
forward the refined
management of community
investment and strives to
make related disclosure in
the future
ARAIEHEHRIRER
BREEER - IRER
AR5
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To the shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group’) set out on pages 118 to 226, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of
our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives
EEREREASn TREFEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives of RMB43,413,000 and RMB14,544,000,
respectively, which represented 8.00% and 2.68% of the total assets of the
Group, respectively.

F2019F 124318 EXEHEEBRFHANHERBLEED R
BARME 43413000 TTRARME 14544000 7T * HREER BEE
A ER)8.00% X 2.68% o

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets, the
Group is required to perform annual impairment tests for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives. Management performed impairment
tests on these assets by using discounted cash flow models as at 31
December 2019. This is considered as a key audit matter because the
assessment was complex, and it involved significant judgements and
assumptions such as the long-term growth rate and discount rate.
REEBSAERNECREERNE EEEAYERFHNOHE
&ﬁﬂéFL TERERER - R2019F 128318 - EEEKRA
BRRERBEAURTEEETRENS - AR EBRER - &
NAEMRPEER LR ROER G RERR - B EER R
BFTEE -
The related disclosures are set out in notes 3, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ZERBERBEHN RSB BHRERME3 16 K17
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R ES ERIDRBERPIOE AL ﬁﬁﬁ%
AR BHRR BT RAEENER
ﬁ$ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁAW%ﬁ$&%%ﬁ
AERRETRE RATSHREFREHRE
BOER - WATEFEME - RN P
Bz EHNAIRIEZEIR -

BPE BT ARRE D EBEIBLF 47 & I BEHREK
AEZEL—ESz BE - BIERZEREN
FAREDT - At - RfIESF TERERETE
FEH R I 476 SRR B A RBOA R 2 5F
MiZf - RPIBAIEFNEREERE TR EE
FTEAITROAZE » REBEM AR & BT S MR e EFT
BRITOLERE -

We reviewed the appraisal reports prepared by the
external valuation specialists engaged by the Group,
and evaluated their competency and objectivity. We
reviewed the basis of preparation of the forecasts used
for the impairment tests for goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. We involved our internal
valuation specialist to assist us in reviewing the
methodology and certain assumptions adopted in the
assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. We also reviewed
management’s assessment of the sensitivity of the
Group’s impairment model to reasonably possible
changes and considered the adequacy of disclosures
for impairment testing in the consolidated financial
statements.

BMEH T ESEREIIMBAEIRE FROME
BHRE  WAHEHERLEEL - RS EHE
RF R R MBI E ESRER ST ATERE
R - HPIMBABEEZER BB RMEH
R FHRE MBI B ERER A PR ER AN A
RETRRZ - BRAMERHEREHESERER
HXESIBAREHNGERMERTE - WE BN
BMBBREATDEERERR -



Ner realisable value of inventories

FE A #5FE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded inventories of
RMB89,751,000. Management judgements and estimates are required in
assessing whether the carrying value is higher than the net realisable
value ("NRV") of the inventories on hand at the year end, especially of
those slow-moving inventories which may become obsolete.

R2019F 12 A31H - EEEEFSHFEARES9,751,0007T o IRFHH
¢$$%T SHEREAERGeRN R FE(EREE])  LH
AIRERK AR RSN B - BIEREIEE M XAt -

Significant judgements and estimates are also required in determining the
write-down of inventories to NRV, which involves management’s
expectations of the forecast inventory sales and usage and the estimated
selling price of inventories based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. Therefore, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

EEFEMRERE ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁikﬂ%&ﬁﬁ R EE
EREBEAFTAMHERUMEERNBELRETE ZHERR
EREFERBARBEGRFEEE - Bt &fFﬁuIb\ﬁEﬁF‘aﬁfkﬁqu%
I8 o

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HRER BN R A M RAME3 K18

We evaluated the design and implementation of
management’s controls over the assessment of the
net realisable values of inventories. We obtained an
understanding of the Group's inventory provision
policy and checked the calculation of the inventory
provision based on the Group's policy. We evaluated
management’s assumptions used to calculate the
provision by checking the ageing of inventories,
subsequent sales and usage of inventories on a
sampling basis. We also checked the subsequent
selling prices to the sales orders and invoices on a
sampling basis.

BTG ERENFED
Rt kB o KM THE %lff%ﬁﬁﬁi@
BESERR REFERENE - RAEBEH
ETAEREFENREK FENHRFEERALE
AR HEREANSERBORR - ZMM
REMEOHETENPREBIER -

I A TR R
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

B 2B S
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence KW. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE2019F 12 A31 B ILFE

REVENUE e

Cost of sales SHE KA

Gross profit EF

Other income and gains H AU Bz

Selling and distribution expenses SHE RASTHFA

Administrative expenses THRAX

Finance costs R AR

Other expenses HMf

LOSS BEFORE TAX B AR

Income tax (expense)/credit Frs®i (), HEe

LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEBR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2EBA

Other comprehensive income that may be  7AB&1% BAfE Al pE E 37
reclassified to profit or loss in B EMEEEA
subsequent periods, after tax: BRiiiz -

Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETSHIE K =5

foreign operations

Other comprehensive income that will REER BB T eEHHES
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BaEMmEmEmEA
subsequent periods, after tax: g

Gains on property revaluation MEEH KRG

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEERHEBEEHE
FOR THE YEAR

Loss attributable to: LI RIEEMLER :

Owners of the parent BARHA A

Total comprehensive loss attributable to: LA T & IEEE 2 EEEALE !

Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ =N
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREEESFEAEMN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BRE®E
THE PARENT
— Basic and diluted — HEARN S
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2018

2018 4F
Notes RMB'000
B ARET T

5 453,199
(204,229)

248,970

5 9,053
(225,550

(79,768

7 (3,363

)
)
)
(76,465)

(127,123)

10 14,286

(112,837)

1,363

(111,474)
(112,837)

(111,474)

RMB AR #&
12 (11.92) cents 7



NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepaid land lease payments
Right-of-use assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Pledged deposits
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepaid land lease payments
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities
Tax payables

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FRBEE

ME - BB MEE
REME
BN EE R
EREEE

e
Hip L EE
EENIREE
[BEER ks
HibIERBEE

FRBEERTE

RBEE
ﬁf(b
B 5 EWR
i‘EHj:i‘MEfE\ KA

NI - RE R EMREKKIAR

A Yg Bl B8
[BEER ik
Re MREEFEY

RBEERRE

EERE

RBE R
53

2 8 4 08 R 3T
R

EHM@

RBEERE

REBEEFE

REERRBDAER

Notes

Bt

13
14
15(a)
15(b)
16
17
26
29
30

18
19
15(a)
20

29

FARPLEBE

AR E

B BERAR

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

ROBERAT —

2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFIT

140,825

10,216

77,269
69,707
34,871
1,170
6,734

340,792

110,904

57,654
247

24,134
5,405
434
201,411

400,189

740,981

15,678
73,211
20,000

6,303

115,192

284,997

625,789



Are MR R

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provision

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the
parent
Share capital
Other reserves

Total equity

Gui Pinghu
T
Chairman and Executive Director

EFRFHUTEF
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Notes
B 5T
FREBEE
FTEIRITIE K 24
HEBRE 15(c)
ELEFIRAE 26
BiE 25
ERBEEHALE
EEFE
xR
BATEEAEGER
[N 27
H 28
RZEE
Zhang Yuan
IR
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
BHREANITEFHITEE

2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFTT

7,500

14,021
714

22,235

603,554

94,630
508,924

603,554



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I\‘/j_\ T_”_/\/\’%:“‘%b%

Year ended 31 December 2018 EE2018F 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SYNGIE PN L
Retained
Exchange Statutory profit/
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other  (accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
BX EEEH REBFE/

Bx BEARRE  KIEE e AMREE  EtEE (RHEB) B

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(W) (MisE28)  (Waks)  (Makos)  (Mikos)  (iskos) (M)

At1January 2018 R2018%F1R1H 94630 544223 (5,186) 56,175 (3871) (2022) 31,079 715028
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = = = (112837) (112837)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ AEAAE I ERKH

foreign operations EREE = - 1,363 - - - - 1363

Total comprehensive income/(loss) REE2ERA/

forthe year (Bl ez - - 1363 = - - (112837 (111474)
Transfer from retained profits BRAMEEA = = = 2055 - - (2,059) -
At31 December 2018 R2018%E 12831 B 94630 544 223* (3823 58,230* 3871)* (2022 (83813)* 603,554
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GABRBBE

Year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 31 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARREAELE
Exchange  Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other revaluation Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve®* losses equity
ER  iTE% BEEf
BRE  BEX@EE  RBREE RE afRE Hib e e RHER aEs
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR%TRT AR%TR AR%TRT ARETR AR¥TRT ARETR ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(Wat27)  (Maxes)  (Mfak2s)  (Meies)  (Fiskas)  (Wsfas)  (Mfafas)  (Mfatas)
A1 January 2019 R019%1 A 1R 94630 544223 (3823) 58230 B87)  (2022) - (83813) 603554
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (194,658)  (194,658)
Changes in fair value of investment A7 Bt AR 2E
propertyatfairvaluethough ~ Wias 2R &M E
other comprehensive income, MEED
net of tax MBHE - - - - - - 101 - 101
Exchange differences on translation 7 B A& B NEFEH)
of foreign operations EEER - - 2,153 - - - - - 2,153
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ZAEE2EWA,/
forthe year (BB g - - 2,153 - - - 101 (194,658)  (192,404)
Liquidation of subsidiaries WEAAER - - - (1,223) - - - 1,223 -
At31 December 2019 #2019% 12831 94630 544223 (L670F 57007 (387IF  (2022F  101* (277,48 411,150
@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB316,520,000 o W EFER B BREEREVBRARANGE EMhEHEA

(2018: RMB508,924,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

*x

property to an investment property carried at fair value in 2019.
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The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-occupied **

¥ 316,520,000 7T (2018 F = AR ¥ 508,924,000 7C) °

BEBHFHEREANR09FBETARNEEZTRAEA
RARENRZIZEMEMEE °
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE2019F 12 A31 BILFE

2018
20184
Notes RMB'000
B st ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & EBIIR &R E
Loss before tax BT AT ES1E (127,123)
Adjustments for: BT S BEL AR -
Finance costs BhE RN 7 3,363
Bank interest income HRITH BWA 5 (4,242)
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment  #1% « &= M REITE 13 8,786
Depreciation of right-of-use assets/ FRAREENE TEREN
recognition of prepaid land lease payments T EFRIB 15 247
Amortisation of other intangible assets H{th 4 128 A 17 3,651
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  WEMKEEIE
and equipment 6 163
Write-down of inventories to net WoR T &= Al &5 )FAE
realisable value 6 28,227
(Reversal)/Impairment of trade receivables B 5 eI EIE (B El),E 19 4201
Impairment of goodwiill B ERE] 16 70,050
Impairment of other intangible assets Hib |y & EmE 17 -
(12,677)
Decrease in inventories FER 23,460
Decrease in pledged deposits, prepayments, D EF « AN A - e &
deposits and other receivables H fth pE s Imm A 10,710
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B 5 W EIER L (1) (12,833)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B SR EIE G ), /180 1,629
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HEmEMRIENEASER
accruals CRA) /180 27,877
Cash generated (used in)/from operations w (FTA),/FiiERe 38,166
Income tax returned/(paid) RE(BER)FTER (7,589)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating ESEE) (ATA) B e RE
activities FEE 30,577
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETZHRERE
Payments to acquire property, plant and WHEMZ ~ BB MR BRI IR
equipment (51,060)
Deposits for other intangible assets EMEREERS (934)
Additions to other intangible assets HEmBEEERE 17 (365)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB RBHETSHRIE
plant and equipment 650
Interest received EHFILE 4,368
Net cash flows used in investing activities WEEBFMARESREFE (47,341)

BMRALEBEROGERAR —Z—LFFk
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE2019F 12 A31 B ILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans

Interest paid

Repayment of bank loans

Principal portion of lease payments

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of cash flows

Notes
B 5T
BEEBHHEERE
HERTER 31
B FLE
BEBIRITER 31
HMEMREEED 31
BEEESTAR S REFE
ReEMRESEBMRIFE
i@ﬁ@&ﬁ@ﬁ%%

REBNTE  FEE
FRBENIREEEY
ReRBEeEEBMERDIT
B RIRTTHES 21
W RRHE A=A AR

R EIR I E HATE R
2]

Iﬁimu%%ﬁﬁﬂ E
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2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFTT

(3/479)
(49,500)

(52,979)

(69,743)
269,592
1,562

201,411

91,074

110,337

201,411



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATAREEEE
The Company is a joint stock limited liability company established RNATTIRPBRKIORDER AT © it
in the PRC. The address of its registered office is 30/F, Deji Building, MrEEtit AP T& 4 @R AR R
188 Chang Jiang Road, Xuanwu District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, RITHK 1885 = E KE 30 o
the PRC.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of NEBTEAFER - B AF T LATARERE
nutritional supplements and health food products in the PRC, ERLE NI EEER R RN R ER S
Australia and New Zealand.
Information about subsidiaries BB AR ZER
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31 BARREEMERAZ
are as follows: FE =g (U N
Place of incorporation or
establishment and place
of operation/date of Fully paid Percentage of
incorporation and share capital/ equity attributable
establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
k{1 A 32 3R B 32 3tk B %
AR b B TR AR SL R BR SZ BRERE/ NG A
=g B, EAER &R ZBED TEEEK
Hi# 2
BRPEEYRIEERAA The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - Manufacture, processing and
17 June 2003 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
FE AR HE - MIKKEERERSR
200356 A 178 50,000,0007T
BRAF
MR AEREEMRERERAR  ThePRC RMB600,000 100% ~  Retailing of health food
26 March 2008 products
Limited liability company
T E AR 600,0007T TERERM
2008463 A 26 R
BRAF]
IERPEERFRRBHRAEBR AT The PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
9 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
FE AR 600,0007T TERBRM®
200854 A9 R
BRADE
EHHIHERRARAR The PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
10 April 2008 products
Limited liability company
FE AR 600,0007C ZERERM

20084 A10H
BRAR]

ERPEBESROARAIE — T NFFR J 125




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR M oL

31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

1.

126

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RXAREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEKEBARIZEE (&)
Place of incorporation or
establishment and place
of operation/date of Fully paid Percentage of
incorporation and share capital/ equity attributable
establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A PR R 32 5 R 37 3t B %
R SEMA R AT BRHERE, AR EEEERS
=1 BE,/EAER EfER AR TEXK
Hi# G
BN B £ R AR A A The PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
27 June 2008 products
Limited liability company
HE AR ¥ 600,0007T ZERRERM
20086 A 27 H
BRAF]
RN EEEEYRIE The PRC RMB600,000 100% - Retailing of health food
BRAR] 23 April 2009 products
Limited liability company
HE AR #6000007T TERRRM
200944 A 23R
BRAE
HIPERBERBRERAR The PRC RMB100,000 100% - Retailing of health food
28 April 2011 products
Limited liability company
E AR#1000007T ZERERM
2011548280
BRAA
ARESEEFREBARAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Retailing of health food
21 April 2015 products
Limited liability company
F AR #:1,0000007T ZERRERM
2015648218
BRAE
Australia Cobayer Health Food Co Australia AUD2,000 100% - Trading of food products
Pty Ltd. 2 March 2009
Limited liability company
AN 2,00027C EmES

20093 A2H
BRAT]

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 20194 12 831 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EEKEBARIZEE (F)
Place of incorporation or
establishment and place
of operation/date of Fully paid Percentage of
incorporation and share capital/ equity attributable
establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
k{1 B 32 3 AR 37 3tk B %
R B TEMRAR LR AR L BEHERE, AP A EEERS
=L B, EAER A& ZESH TEXEK
HiE i3
AR EEEAER AT The PRC RMB120,000,000 100% —  Investment holding
21 October 2014
Limited liability company
H AR REZR
201410 A 218 120,000,000 7T
BRAF]
Good Health Products Limited (GHP) ~ New Zealand NZD2,200,002 - 100%  Manufacture, processing and
22 December 1987 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
g 2,200,002 PRI T HE  MIKHEERERR
1987412 A 228
BRAF]
EERREERMAERRAA The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Retailing of health food
(Hejian) 30 May 2007 products
Limited liability company
T E AR 20,000,0007T TERER®
20074E5 A 308
BRAF
HEEREEREARAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Information technology
30 September 2011 maintenance services
Limited liability company
i AR 1,000,0007C = BB 4IRS
201149 A 30H
BRATF
Living Nature Natural Products New Zealand NZD14,784,444 100% - Manufacture, and sale of
Limited (LN) 1987 cosmetics and skin care

Limited liability company
AR

1987

BRAE

14,784,444 {1 AR TT

products

HEREE R NS R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAIREEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) ERMBATIZER (&)

Place of incorporation or
establishment and place

of operation/date of Fully paid Percentage of
incorporation and share capital/ equity attributable
establishment/ registered to the Company
Name type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EAR AR ST B0 RR 3T 3 R %
R SEMA R AT BHERE, AN E RS
£ BE,/EAER EfEE A=Y TEXK
HiE &
Sinolife (Cayman) Holding Company ~ Cayman Islands usD100 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited 6 October 2017
Limited liability company
HERS 1005 7T REER
201710768
BRAR
Zhongsheng Health Company British Virgin Islands usD1 100% - Investment holding
Limited 6 October 2017
Limited liability company
RERARES 17T REER
2017106 H
ARAA
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

BT SRR M ot
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ZEMBBRERDREZEEAMAE(EH
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HEER - BEGTER(TEESER))
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FEOIRBERERE - ZFYHMKRVIZE
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MERIEXBIEAI FAREDHNEER
BATH)TAL o

REVBRERBEARRRENB AR (5
WMAETARER])REZE2019F12A318 1k
FEZHMBRR -MBRRNDARARERE
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The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HK(FRIO)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,

2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28, and
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the
nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@)  HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17.
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(Continued)
HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where
the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the
comparative information for 2018 was not restated and
continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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(Continued)

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property,
motor vehicles and other equipment. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether the
lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on
a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12
months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).
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(Continued)

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019 in the statement of financial position. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-
of-use assets separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

A lessee applied a single discount rate to portfolio of
lease with reasonably similar characteristics;

Applied the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application;

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.
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(a)

(Continued)

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1

January 2019 was as follows:

Assets

Increase in right-of-use assets

Decrease in prepaid land lease payments

Decrease in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Increase in total assets

Liabilities
Increase in total liabilities
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The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are as

follows:

Operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018

Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and
those leases with a remaining lease term ended

on or before 31 December 2019

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate

asat 1 January 2019

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019

(177)

22,951

22,951
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation, the
Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions
arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based
on the Group's tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing
policy will be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly,
the interpretation did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BEE(BEBRHBREREBEES)-
%%%23%?%2; Eféfﬁﬂlﬁ/ﬁ&%;
FERBE S ERE 125 HEE I+
%(—xaﬂa [THEERIEMR ) Y
Frisi (BIEA RORIE ) 5T R 18 © %72
ENEAREBSTERE 1258 E
SNFRIE ST - ML E T BEET
HEBIBEEEBFE RS FHARE
T ZARBEANATER: B
HEZED%J%ETTT]EE@%IEL??ﬁgﬁfg
B () ERYSBHEAEESHIERE
FTERIBRER ¢ (i) BB an{a) & & FE AR 7R
mASKFIEEE  BE - KBAFIE
18 - ﬁi%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ%%&ﬁam}ﬁ A
ERNAEESERBERLED - REK
Mz RER AEBZSERERESH
FUREERNARMEENEZTE
MEBHNNEEMRBFIBR - BRIEBEAE
ERNHBEREEREERR  £&
ERAHRGEREBRIEESHER
EEEXK - Al - ZR2BTZHAE
Er S ERA S RIREE ML -



The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as

Current or Non-current*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
? No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Other than further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group as described below, the
Group expected the adoption of the above new and revised
standards will not have any significant financial effect on the
Group's financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is
on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or
other events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and
joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption
now and not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is
material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

XBEHDIABEEI R - CEREET
NEEBEHO DR EFE  ZaNER/R
SEHEZRNEERKERHNARE K
SERREBTAERARENEE &
7R 6 B B 1T DAHR ER AR U U 42 1 4 0 AR R
Bmi @M  REXBAHT  AEEE
BRESARTEIWNUET A #AFE
ERRAELLD - StERRUE T IR KR
#am B TREAEBRKRLAIDE
FEEMREMAEES - FFEBRERD
A EMARBO R AR EFTE - WE
MHEAKARELRSBFHEX -

EAKENE-BEXHE  @RESRIK
o RUE B B R OB IR IR AR BE R
AEEAENEREENREE  AELE
BN BARER  EheEOMEKES
EFARFRARNTETA -

MEBEHFIREBRET  EAKANERAE
RERANKBERMN AR EENRAE
FEAMERR eGSR EBRERE PR -

W A E AR A EREE B H
MARERER - "EREEXBBNRR
HERAAEFE HAREEPNESR
AIER - DB IR HARHETEN
B HREBGERaEPAR -



Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group'’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed

in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person'’s
family and that person

()

(i)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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(b)  (continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between the depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33%-49%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Any gains or
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for
as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
"Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

WE - BENIKEHER (BREENSER
EREARD) RHERRBEHERTIER
150 R 38 H 5 T 7 R AR R ) e B AR LR FERR o
ERIBABAZAEBEZR—FE KRBz
ARLEXBENEANREREHEEL
HEMSRIBFREERRAEZ Z5H

ERETIREEZET  THRKARAEMAR
BEEBAR  T&HITE - KABERE
MHEZEERARABEBREZEAARLE
ERA EEIRRBRIRERAFERRKE
M BEME  BERSBEEER -

REWMERERRIES WA R, HEKRT
B (M IEEREE SR E mIRBRITH
RE)XARAEREBRETHEMFAEL
THREBFT LS - RFVERIILAA
(BRERGRAR)TE - REARERE &R
BYMERRMRBERRTRZ AR BT -

REMEAABEEHELN WD HERS
A EEELEFENBEE REMER
WHRA - RELHEREYVEELZE
M mREERREILEFEERRE N
Hith 2w s R MR o

HASERENEBYEEERREYE -
AEEBRE[ME  BE &R 1%&?)?%J
BTAIIBEEYEAR BENER

Z B WRE B[R -~ BB R& %&ﬁ
EIETAIIEER - mWEEZANKREE
ENSEZRCABMBE -



Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Licence and health food certificates

The licence acquired as part of a business combination is valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. The licence
with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually. The
health food certificates acquired as part of a business combination
are valued at fair value based on the replacement cost method and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
life of 5 years. Health food certificates acquired separately are stated
at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 5 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of business combinations
were valued at fair value based on the multi-period excess earnings
method. Customer relationships are assessed as having finite useful
lives and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to 14 years.

BT SRR M ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

7 BB B 48 T B B TR ) 20 RERR B R B AR
AR BEXBEHFUBNETLEERATE
WEAHNARE - B EEMNAERSF
HAFESBRYNERY - BRHER
BEHERIZAIERAKHEFNT ASE X
WET R ER e LB E R AR E -
BIREAR] R 6 BRI & rO B 55 1 o
HAR VBN S A RFRERETER

ERMAEAFM 2BV EE - @Ri%
ReELBEUARNSFETRENR - %
FERVEEDAEE BREFHIELR
BEZVUERFHEEF RN NEER
BNHRBAFESERFH - L NER
AERFRFEIEEERERMAER
FHE=ERAIEAFHE - THRARK
ERAEEARK -

AUREREERESE
EREBAHN— O WBNFAEDE
RBREFRERENTTEL RO EE
ThE - ERBR T EENFAEEFE
T—RBENH - EREBEHN D
WENRRRMEE DENRBBRRANER
NREETHE  XRSFOGHERFH
NI EREEETHE - BHRBORRE
RmiEE DIERAR IR ERERSRK -
WS FRfbHERFHRREREEET
5

EFEBE

EREEAH I MESHEPHEEZ
SHIBBN S EARREGLE - FPBARE
BIXTHAERPAIEAFY  AAER
AREGGH A ERAFHTE+HFETE

BMRALEBEROGERAR —Z—LFFk



BT Rk MY

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

Trademarks

The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations are
valued at fair value based on the relief from the royalty method.
Trademarks with finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful life of 10 years. Trademarks with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually.

Distribution network
Distribution network acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its useful life of 10 years.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 to 6 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years
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Group as a lessee (Continued)

()

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for
as finance leases.

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FEMEREBEA ()

(©

MHHEREEEEEHE
AEBEERERESHERRBNEE
EMRENEHEE(NE MG A S
RAEEANREAIUNNETEESHE
BEEENZEHEE) HNEREK
BEEEHEERARENERREE
EMHEE -

RMHEMEEEEEEENHEHEN
FNERRNREREERR QAT -

FEEESHBA
EAKEEALEBEAITE  MXAEE
Rk (KR EEBTR) $EBREE
DHERRETHENRERE -

AEEL REREERAREMNFNE
REB B K Bl A E D R K&
HE - EAHBEcHENIFEES
D AEEREHBYNEEEER
EHREDEEZERHD - H2WRAR
HENREGEEARY AR ELE
MEREGE R EMEERERAETA
Wtk o AN CHHEEHEMELT)
MEEKRANAEEEEMNREE -
Wiz EBHE WA R EERERA
R - AAHE R R ERER LK

S o
I

AR B E B R RV B A B L
BN EHEE T AEANEEARRS



Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

BT SRR M ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 B

SR ()
WERAR B A2 MAE (H)
BARAEN(RESBAETR) NITE
TATEBEBIE e BRAETRER M
AP TAABRAORBETEALE
SABRNSRERE -

CREE(X(MER) EMEEN—FDHK
REcREEARNN—ED) TBEUATE
ner IR (B AEELGES MBI E
RERR)

BEEWDRSRENENE ER
%

AEBCEEHEALERIIRERE
RRER - B REASIRIE [ 1F] 8k
EEEAERBERATAE=ZF2EE
HBEURSHRE K@ K%lkﬁﬁ
BB A B LR K B 3R ¢ 5K (b) A
Eﬁiﬂ%ﬁﬁm BRI D Mﬁ@
WEENRE HOEREENT
T o

EARBEEREREERDREREN
%ﬂ&aﬁixﬁtw%'ﬁﬁl%ﬁﬁ
BERBZEEMAENRR K EHIA
&W@ﬁr BHYEEEIREZEE
MBARDER KRR MEEEZEE
RPRHIIERS - AEBEERACEBEEE
HARRBERFE2ELR - RZBERT
AEETHER - AEABAGE  CEREE
EZBEBAERERRANEEEREOE
MEEBHEREE -

B REEFEROZAFENRE
HIZZBEM VAR ER AN EER 2
EENSESREMERNBREESE -

W

)

BMRALEBEROGERAR —Z—LFFk



BT Rk MY

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) R

BEFEH W ()

Some contracts provide customers with rights of return and volume
rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable
consideration.

(a)  Rightsofreturn

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-of-
return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

(b)  Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future
rebates, the most likely amount method is used for contracts
with a single-volume threshold and the expected value
method for contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the amount of
variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of
volume thresholds contained in the contract. The
requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the
expected future rebates is recognised.
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Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the
goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any
expected costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in
the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the
measurement of the asset for any revisions to the expected level of
returns and any additional decreases in the value of the returned
goods.
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A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or
all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer
and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will
have to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain fixed percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees of
the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e,, assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

B TS R B e

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

WiE - ZRILEEREREBE (BIBHER—
BEBHETEEFEREREIHE) BE
BHEZERTRAERNMERRETEEZHD
AR BEEEAREAIEERER G
& ARFEFIXREAEEFLERE - R
ERFARAEREEZFEMEKIERBIR
BEFREZ B WA TIHE R B AL Z 55K
AR HIER o BT A A B SR AN E £ 5
B - ERKABREBRABAZESM
EEHF S R B

RAEIR B EBRRA S LR R ERTER
RAME -

EEARHBE WER M B HRRME
THIRERERZARER  BAAQE
ZHABERKMAMANREESTST KT B

BB o Bt - R AR AN R B B R B A
BHRALME -

BMRAEHEROERATE —Z— 55k



BT Rk MY

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are currencies other than Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwiill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2019 was RMB43,413,000 (2018: RMB77,269,000). Further
details are given in note 16.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. Estimating the recoverable amount requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The carrying amount of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2019 was RMB14,544,000
(2018: RMB45,098,000). Further details are given in note 17.
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Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting date. At
31 December 2019, the net carrying value of inventories was
approximately RMB89,751,000 (2018: RMB110,904,000). Further
details are contained in note 18 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different. The net carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses and deductible temporary differences at 31
December 2019 was RMB12,763,000 (2018: RMB34,871,000). Further
details are contained in note 26 to the financial statements.
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The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker that
are used to make strategic decisions. For management
purposes, the Group operates in one business unit based on
its products, and has one reportable segment which is the
manufacture and sale of nutritional supplements and the sale
of packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and
New Zealand.

Most of the group companies are domiciled in the PRC and
the majority of the non-current assets are located in the
Mainland China, New Zealand and Australia. The Group’s
revenue from external customers is primarily derived in the
Mainland China, New Zealand and Australia.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its
major markets:

Mainland China SlETpN 173
New Zealand ol |
Australia SBAF TR
Vietnam i)
Other countries EmBER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Non-current assets

BT R T ot
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N

4. BEIHER(HE)

(0 FRBEE

2019 2018

2019 % 20184F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T AREFIT

Mainland China el 173 172,191 190,055
New Zealand BPEES 43,582 29,965
Australia SR A 25 1,064 728
216,837 220,748

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, deferred tax
assets, pledged deposits and other non-current assets.

Information about major customers
No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the

year (2018: Nil).

N EFRRBEEERTIERNEER
BN EMBERREE  BERIBEE
B RE FEMIFRBEE -

d) EBRXTEEFHEHR
BEERE N IRER SRR ERE AR
EBEAFEWZA10%E A £ (2018
F )
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Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WHERAFEACDEERSNBESE &
allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the value of services BN EFELTIRERSSNE
rendered during the year. R
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: gz s HU A REF BT -
2018
2018%F
RMB'000
ARETTT
Type of goods or services & i =5 AR 7 28 Bl
Sale of goods HEEM 453,165
Rendering of services RAARTS 34
Total revenue from contracts with REEFAELZ W =BT
customers 453,199
Timing of revenue recognition REERERE
Goods or services transferred at a TREEEE ok AR TS A A R R 2
pointin time 453,199
Total revenue from contracts with REBPAAIZ W%
customers 453,199
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(CONTINUED)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

BT R T ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

1

Wi - At AR BEF (&)

TRIFERARE AR A A RS HBIEH
BEKERBERREXBOEEAERD
EERK S SR

2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Revenue recognised that was included

RERTFAGHNERE

in contract liabilities at the beginning 2 B MRS
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEEm 7,957 15,196
2019 2018
2019 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®Tx AREFIT
Other income Hil A
Bank interest income RITHEWA 6 2,895 4242
Government grants* BB € * 6 3,333 3,068
Foreign exchange differences, net PE X =R 55 6 1,539 1,486
(Reversal)/Impairment of trade B 5 kA (EE),/
receivables S E 6 663 =
Rental income HE WA 64 =
Others HAh 179 257
8,673 9,053
% Various government grants have been received for the Group’s contribution to * ARARESEI T EBERRNER - EWBIEE

the development of local economy. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these grants.

BAFSEIS - B AR S HEIS M AR A%
pre s B -
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Tl

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(2018: amortisation of land lease
payments)

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Amortisation of intangible assets*

Auditor's remuneration

Research and development expenses

Employment benefit expense
(excluding directors’, supervisors' and
chief executive’'s remuneration):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions
Other benefits

Foreign exchange differences, net

Impairment of goodwil **

Impairment of other intangible assets **

(Reversal)/Impairment of trade

BEETFENRA

ME - BEREETE

FREEERE
(20184 : tHFHE KA
)

Kt AHEEE=EN
fHERIEA

A

1% 55 BT 357 A

R

ETRMAX (TERES
EFRITHAZNFH) :

TEMNFHS
BREFT SR
H At 48 F
PE X R
R (E
Hib®\ i EERE
B SRR (B R, TRE

receivables

Write-down of inventories to net WOR T & 2 AT 3R E
realisable value***

Bank interest income RITH BHA

Government grants BT faBh &

Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEL
plant and equipment HEEBEMEE

* The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Selling and

distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

*k

The impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets is included in “Other

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Hxx The write-down of inventories to net realisable value for the year is included in

“cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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13 8,786

15(b) 247
15(d) 13,710
17 3,651

1,950

2,551

88,222

3,649

14,571

5 (1,486)

16 70,050

17 -

19 4201

28,227

(4,242)

(3,068)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB AT ¢
2019 2018
20194 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR® TR AREFT
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 2,333 3,363
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 15(c) 1,268 =
3,601 3,363
DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EXE EERITHRAITMH
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BiE ETRA - BERERHIZE 383(0)@)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(), (b), (¢) and () of the 0 QOROEARABI(HEEEHEER)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies RO 2 MBRFERE F RITHAE N F A
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is Ban T
as follows:
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tx AR¥ET T
Fees ko 240 190
Other emoluments: HAthFZrBA -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e I NEWET 1,838 1,848
Performance related bonuses BRI RS 1,770 2,386
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIH R 199 231
3,807 4465
4,047 4,655
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EX EERTHARETM(E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during MAREEEIBIIERTES L EHE

178

the year were as follows:

TN

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARET T

(note i) (note i)

(PB&ED) (MF3ED

Mr. Jiang Fuxin (note i) B0 (ki) - =
Ms. Feng Qing (note i) ili=geaul o) - 45
Mr. Vincent Cheng (note i) Bl 5z 8 5 A& (MI5ED) - 105
Mr. Zhang Jitong SRR A 60 10
Ms. Cai Tianchen BREZL 120 20
Mr. Wang Wei FEEE 60 10
240 190

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2018:

Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EX EENRTHARETM(E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and supervisors (b) FITEERES
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2RR EXEE  BiettE
ik BNEA #®e R At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR¥TR ARET:R

2019 2019
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu HEREE - 703 300 59 1,062
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRLL - 243 545 24 812
Ms. Xu Li (note i) B L (M) - 123 13 15 151
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRARLL - 202 242 20 464
- 1,271 1,100 118 2,489
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yu Min STt - 204 249 2 475
Ms. Wu Xuemei REWTT - 123 294 20 437
Ms. Lu Jiachun BeEmzt - 124 64 20 208
Mr. Tao Xingrong (note iii) Gl
(B =Eiii) - - - - -
Ms. Chen Xiu BRELL - 116 63 19 198
- 567 670 81 1,318
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EX EERTHARETM(E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b) FITEERE=E(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e RER BHEE  BAREEE
ik EmEH e 3 et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTL ARBTT ARETT ARKTRT ARETR

2018 20185
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Gui Ping Hu HEEREE = 713 = 67 780
Ms. Zhang Yuan FIRZ T = 225 661 27 913
Ms. Xu Li HRERT - 203 639 27 869
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRR - 201 390 py) 613
- 1,342 1,690 143 3,175
Supervisors B
Ms. Yu Min Rt - 189 328 2% 541
Ms. Wu Xuemei REBRT - 110 232 2 364
Ms. Lu Jiachun Befrmirt - 105 44 2 171
Mr. Tao Xingrong (note iii) GlEEPd
(P =Eiin) - - _ _ _
Ms. Chen Xiu BEx+ - 102 92 20 214
= 506 69% 88 1,290
Notes: BiE
(i) Resigned as independent non-executive directors on 23 October 2018. (0} 12018510 A 23 BB B IEMITES
(ii) Resigned as executive director on 15 January 2020. (ii) 20201 A 15 ABHERITES -
(i) Resigned as supervisor on 15 January 2020. (i) H20205F1 A 15 HEHEES -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the RAFE  SBEEFIHTHRAHAR
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration SR BB EAFHEO L -

during the year.
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The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors and the chief executive (2018: three directors and the chief
executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
two (2018: one) highest paid employees who are neither directors
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e M EYET
Performance related bonuses EREREES
Pension scheme contributions RN ETEIEER

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

Nil to HKD1,000,000 = 2 1,000,000 7T

B TS R B e

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 B

RAFERA G TNETIRIEMEZES
RITHBEHQ08F : ZFREEBRITHA
) EHMAEBHRAEM TS - RAF
B AREBRTMAQ0I8E: —R)IFE
ERTHARNTSHIE TR
I

2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFIT

189
328
24

541

FHBATHREMNIFES MIFTHRAR K
SEHEMETHAZNT

2018
20184F

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000 4 7T -
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The amounts of income tax expense/(credit) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent:

Current BIER

_PRC — &

— New Zealand — PR
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE
Deferred (note 26) IRAE (P 5E26)

Total tax expense/(credit) for the year

One of the Group’s subsidiaries obtained the Certificate of
High and New Technology Enterprise in 2019 and was
approved by tax authorities to enjoy the preferential tax rate
of 15%. Except for the aforementioned subsidiary, the income
tax of the Company and its subsidiaries established in the PRC
are subject to the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable
profits as determined in accordance with the relevant income
tax rules and regulations of the PRC. New Zealand Income tax
is calculated at 28% of the assessable profits of the
subsidiaries operating in New Zealand. Australia Income tax is
calculated at 30% of the assessable profits of the subsidiary
operating in Australia.
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2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFT

4,920

4,920

(19,206)

(14,286)
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss (b)

before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax
rates are as follows:

II/

BT R T ot
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10. FTS% (&)

BARBRERNERS M B A BFER
SERE R MR E TR & BB AR BRBLAT
BROTIERX (EKR) BIZERR
KA EOBIERX(ER) WEREK
AT RAERFRMEIRMOT -

2019 2019
Mainland China New Zealand Australia Total
B KR il ) BAFE st
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥TR % ARETR % ARETR % ARETR %
Profit/(loss) before tax BHAIAE/ (B8) (180,660) 10,424 (11,318) (181,554)
Taxatthe statutory taxrates AT HEHEMHE  (45,165) 250 2919 280 (3,395) 300 (45,641) 25.1
Lower tax rates enacted by~ EHIEEHFHTE
local authority MBER 218 (0.1) - - - - 218 (0.1)
Derecognition of deferred tax  £& |FRERRIBAFEH)
assets for the previous year ~ EEFRIEEE 13,090 (7.3) - - 2,443 (216) 15,533 (8.6)
Additional deductible HERXBINTMH
alowanceforresearchand 25158
development expenses (279) 0.2 - - - - (279) 0.2
Expenses not deductible for tax R AT IR FI 9,897 (5.5) 801 7.7 - - 10,698 (5.9)
Taxlossesand temporary  FIEEIB R AHSA
differences notrecognised  EHEH 31,608 (17.5) - - 3,410 (30.1) 35,018 (19.3)
Tax losses utiised from BHAREBAER
prior years MEEEE (2,671) 15 - - - - (2,671) 15
Others it (363) 0.2 591 5.7 - - 228 (0.1)
Taxexpenseat the Group's ~ IRAEEELH =
effective rate STEMHERR 6,335 (35) 4,311 M4 2,458 QL) 13,104 (7.2)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. FTE% (&)
(b)  (Continued) by (&)
2018 2018 4F
Mainland China New Zealand Australia Total
YN il | BAR|E b
RMB000 % RMBO0O %  RMBO0O %  RVBO0O %
ARETTL % ARETT % ARBTRT % ARBTT %
Loss before tax RRAIER (63324) (62:835) (964) (127123)
Texat the statutory taxrates  WARHEHORE  (15831) B0 (17594 20 (289 00 (33714 265
Lower taxrates enacted by T B HFI4IE
local authority HREDx (%47) 15 = - - - (947) 07

Additional deductible e B B oM T H1%%
allowanceforresearchand 2558

development expenses (309 05 - - - - (309 02
Expenses not deductible for tax AT FIR B 13450 212 4882 (78) = = 18332 (144)
Tax losses and temporary RBBRRAER

differences not recognised ~~ Z £ 2,169 (34) - - - - 2,169 (17)
Taxlosses utilised from EYRRBBATE

prior years HWREER (1,022) 16 = = = = (1,022) 08
Others Hith 611 (10 594 (09 - - 1,205 (09

Tax credit at the Group's RAEEERH X

effective rate SENFERS (1879 30 (12118) 193 (289) 300 (14,286) 112
11. DIVIDENDS 11. BE
2019 2018
2019 2018 4
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Dividends approved and paid EHOETR AR S - -
The board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year EEeEATHEER2019F 12 A31H1E
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). FREREMARARE (20185 : F) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12.
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
946,298,370 (2018: 946,298,370) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

BT R T ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

BAREERERAARLGER
B8

BRENSEDZSARERESEE A
EEAFEBEBRRAFEDBITERRN
1 £ 5 £1 946,298,370 (2018 £F : 946,298,370)
fRETE -

HE2019F K2018F 12 A3 BIEEE » K
EEWEBEHEEDRITEE -

FREREBEBIVIRATEEE -

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Loss B8
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of ~ FARA ERENE B E AT A7)
the parent used in the basic loss per share LTRERIEAE AEGEE
calculation (194,658) (112,837)
2019 2018
2019 F 20184F
Shares 4y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ ARG IREARNEIBHE R
for the purpose of the basic loss per share @A AN 19 X
calculation 946,298,370 946,298,370
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRZHE
Leasehold Furniture
improve- Plant and and Motor  Construction
Buildings ments machinery fixtures vehicles  inprogress Total
BT HELE EERHE BEREE hE kRIE @it

RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOOD  RMBO00  RMB'00
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARMTn  ARMTn  ARRTR  ARMTR

31 December 2019 R2019%E 128318
At T January 2019; RN9FIA1A:

Cost KA 55,589 6,789 17,661 2391 8918 70,809 182,157

Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (13,532) (3,225) (9,352) (9,229) (5,994) - (#1,332)

Net carrying amount RETE 42,057 3,564 8,309 13,162 2,94 70,809 140,825
At T January 2019, net of RO9F1A1E

accumulated depreciation BHREHTE 12,057 3,564 8,309 13,162 294 70,809 140,825
Additions 0 - 687 995 1,570 836 25,705 29,793
Transfers #A 93,417 3,097 - - - (96,514) -
Tansfer toinvestment properties  ERERENE

(note 14) (KizE14) (25529) - - - - - (2529)
Depreciation provided KEEHRIE

during the year (note 6) (H3ko) (5,969) (1,314) (1,346) (3,063) (1,149) - (12,841)
Disposals RE - (226) (82) (163) (88) - (559)
Exchange realignment EREE - b)) 197 8 30 - a7
At31 December 2019, R09E1A3NA

net of accumulated depreciation EARZiE 126,976 5,830 8,073 11,534 2,553 - 154,966
At31 December 2019 R19F12A318:

Cost B 144,897 9,196 18,682 22,59 8,495 - 203,860

Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (17,921) (3,366) (10,609) (11,056) (5942) - (48,894)

Net carrying amount RHTE 126,976 5,830 8,073 11,534 2,553 - 154,966
At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net R2019F12A318 ' AEBEETHREFE
carrying amount of approximately RMB5,704,000.00 (31 December #3 A R #5,704,000.00 7 (2018 F 12 A 31 B
2018: Nil) were pledged to secure a bank loan. E)REFOEPVESRRITER -
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BT R T ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

1

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 13. Y% BMERBE (&)

Leasehold Furniture
improve- Plant and and Motor  Construction
Buildings ments  machinery fixtures vehicles i progress Total
g8F HERE REREE HKERKE 8 ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT AREBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
31 December 2018 2018512/31R
At 1 January 2018: R18F1A1A :
Cost A 24,564 4166 15923 17113 8997 63429 134192
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (12,099) (25520) (8,170) (7,207) (5057) - (35,053)
Net carrying amount FEFE 12465 1,646 7753 9,906 3940 63429 99,139
At 1 January 2018, net of R2018F1A18 -
accumulated depreciation EARZHNE 12465 1,646 7753 9906 3940 63429 99,139
Additions 1 - 3,248 2355 6,903 497 38420 51423
Transfers EN 31,025 - - - - (31,025) -
Depreciation provided KEERINE
during the year (note 6) (KFo) (1433) (1,324) (1618) (2913) (1498) - (8,786)
Disposals RE - o (121) (692) - = (813)
Exchange realignment R - (6) (60) “) (15) (15) (138)
At31 December 2018, netof KA 2018F 128318
accumulated depreciation EARZHNE 42057 3564 8309 13,162 2924 70809 140825
At 31 December 2018: R018%12A318 :
Cost A 55589 6,789 17,661 22391 8918 70809 182,157
Accumulated depreciation 2:rE (13,532) (3225) (9352) (9229) (5994) = 41332
Net carrying amount BEFE 42057 3564 8309 13162 2924 70809 140825
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

14.

188

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REW=E
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BMEREE - -
Transfer from owner-occupied property BEEFERMEBEA
(note 13) (BftEE13) 2,529 -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RE A 2 ERATER T
recognised in other comprehensive income A7t (BT F U 25 101 -
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A 31 BWERMEE 2,630 -

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial properties
in Mainland China, which were revalued at RMB2,630,000 by Asia-
Pacific Consulting and Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on 31 December 2019.

The investment properties are leased to the third party under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's investment properties:

AEEMNKEDEBREPBRAENEAY
¥ KBUBESEWRMGEMERTHE
HAERARNKR2019F12A3BEGHEES
AR¥ 2630000 7T °

REMERBEREHERETE=1 "8
BB E — PR B EN I IRKRMES -

DABEER
TERHAARNEEREMEN AR BEFESE
FAv

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using

R2019F 12 A1 BN AAEHERAUTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

REBME EATERE EATTEER
HEE BAYE BAYE st

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(E5—F8) (=) (=)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRET ARMTR ARBTRT AR®TxR

Recurring fair value measurement for.  EE AR ETE

Commercial properties [EiEkuES - - 2,630 2,630
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During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2018: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

BT SRR M ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 B

ERNF-BRE_EB2ETENLE
SRR NEEASENE=E(2018F ¢
/) o

AT REREMEEEMRBAEERMNEE
R ABBEME

Significant Range or weighted

Valuation techniques unobservable inputs average 2019
ERRAEHE S E K T

fEER A BB 20194
RMB'000

ARBTFT

Investment property Term and reversion

Market rent
RMB1.23 to RMB2.20

(per s.g.m. and per month)

KEWE FHREE mHHEe AR 23TE
(BRABTHK) AREE2207T
Long term vacancy rate
REZEER 15.0%
Discount rate
ALIR X 4.6%

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent would resultin a
significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term
vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties. Generally, a change in the fair value of the investment
properties is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
market rent and an opposite change in the long term vacancy rate
and the discount rate.

mISHEEKEENORD) BEBUKE M
MARERBEMCORD) - REZEXRK
MEREFHAREMORD) BEEHREY
ERREAREBRD BN - —RME > &
BYMENDRENESHEMSESH
BERTAESHRERRAEE R NEER
KHIRRAEAE -
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The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and other equipment used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms
between 2 and 6 years, while motor vehicles generally have lease
terms between 2 and 3 years. Other equipment generally has lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group. There are lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below:

(@)  Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019):

AEBEFAREEBLENSHE LS
REREMEEEEEHEESN - BR
BIYEH — IR AR ZEF RERE Tt
FEAS0F - MIBEZE LA ENR
B eSS M EMFRIE - WA &# R
HHBEE R 2Z6F  MAENHEHAEA
2E3F c HMFRENHEEBE A 12 Ak
AR K, s B Bl B (B ERIE - — A
TAEBETAMAEBAIATEHER
HHEEEEE - SBEERMKRIEBREREK
AIEAENFMAESNE—FFImMT :

(@ FENTHEEMNZKR2019%1 /18

Al)
RMB'000
AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 20184 1 A1 BREREE 10,710
Recognised in profit or loss during the year (note 6)  F R IBZHER (M5E6) (247)
Carrying amount 31 December 2018 720184 12 A 31 AMAREIE 10,463
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31 December 2019 20194 12 831 H

15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. & (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERREA (E)
(b)  Right-of-use assets: b) FREEE:
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and FRAANEBFRAEESENERENLE
the movements during the year are as follows: BN ¢
Prepaid land Plantand Motor
lease payments machinery vehicles Total
Bttt
HEMRK ETE RE @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R AR% TR AR% TR AR® TR

Asat 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 10,463 22,943 185 33,591

Additions A0 - 2,077 91 2,168

Depreciation charge (note 6) &7 H (i 6) (247) (6,363) (127) (6,737)

Exchange realignment B i A% - (141) (1 (142)

As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 10,216 18,516 148 28,880
(©  Lease liabilities: o HMEAE:

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FAHEAGENREBEREFHNOT -

during the year are as follows:

Lease liabilities

HEAE
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
Asat 1 January 2019 20191 H1H 22,951
New leases HHEE 2,168
Accretion of interest recognised during FAEHERFEIEM
the year (note 7) (MF3E7) 1,268
Payments INE:N (6,991)
Exchange realignment M 5 S8 E (127)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R2019612 A31 HWEEE 19,269
Analysed into: DN A
Current portion MENEB D 6,256
Non-current portion SERBIE D 13,013
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities (2018: Nil) is disclosed HEBENIIESHT (20184 : &)
in note 35 to the financial statements. BRI BRI ESS -
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(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

(d) MEBEEERNEEEBFENT

Interest on lease liabilities HERENR
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERAEEERESH

Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases  EA%E HEATH & & FI&ATH AR 2019 4F

with remaining lease terms ended on or before 31
December 2019 (included in selling and distribution

1231 Bz RifEmmEmiasE
AR (T AHE KL H

expenses and administrative expense) Y RITHRAY)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEEERNE TR

The Group leases its commercial properties (note 14) under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
was RMB64,000 (2018: Nil), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —&FR
After one year but within two years —FEMF
After two years but within three years MEE=F
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1

BT R T ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

16. GOODWILL 16. BE
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTx ARETTT
At 1 January m1A1H
Cost B AR 147,715 146,134
Accumulated impairment ZERE (70,446) =
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated B A1 BRI
impairment Mk 250RE 77,269 146,134
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRE (MizEe) (34,798) (70,050)
Exchange realignment M H, B 942 1,185
Cost at 31 December, net of accumulated K12 831 BRRA -
impairment Mk 2EHRE 43,413 77,269
Cost at 31 December 12 A 31 BERA
Cost PR 148,719 147,715
Accumulated impairment Z:HRE (105,306) (70,446)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 43,413 77,269
Impairment testing of goodwill EERENR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the following cash-generating units (the “CGUs") for impairment

testing:

GHP CGU;

Hejian CGU;

LN CGU.

BREKAHMBENFTELISE FUT
ReELEV(RESEEENM]) UERE
AR -
GHPIREEA BN ¢
REEIBSEEBN

INIREEAEN -
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The respective carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

GHP CGU GHPIR&EA BN
Hejian CGU KGR EEEBN
LN CGU INIRSEAEEN

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

For each of the CGUs with a significant amount of goodwill, the key
assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 are as follows:
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ATRETERSEAEUNEENREEN
™

2018
20184
RMB'000
AREFT

33,687
34,798
8,784

77,269

£ 7 4 B P IRE 2 SR IR (2 A L

IR B 6 ) T A M TR
MRS R BB EaEAEERE - B
MR S R BT HIRM R %
THE -

HREESHEREANSHRSEESM - 2019
12 A31 B K% 2018412 A 31 HAEREE
EARRAMNEERE  REMERRE
BEMT :



GHP
GHP

Sales annual growth rate (%) HEFIERE (%)

EME(EYBEA D)

Gross margin (% of revenue)

Long-term growth rate REER X
Pre-tax discount rate K BiRTEBL IR &

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the cash-generating units and the discount rates
are consistent with external information sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of RMB34,798,000 (2018: RMB52,425,000) in
relation to the goodwill of Hejian CGU, arising from the acquisition
of Hejian, the principle activity of which is manufacture and sales of
Hejian series health food through online call centres. Since the
supervision and rectification measures of the Chinese health food
industry were strengthened, the operating performances and the
growth rate of Hejian CGU were below the expectation which
resulted in operating loss. in addition, the expected synergy effect
with Group’s other business did not happen. Accordingly, the
management provided impairment in the year ended 31 December
2019.

2018
20184

2%-10%
46%

2%
19.3%

BT SRR M ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

Hejian LN
xE LN
2018 2018
2018%F 20184
0%-3% 2%-20%
55% 64%
3% 2%
23.1% 21.2%

UTHREEEBETHEMENANRE
MEFRKAMKBESEEARR

AREENETREEMNXNEEMKA
MEEASZEBEEFEN —FAMERY
FIENE  ARFEHNRRE RFAH
BT ERMA MRS

PRABRIR RRINGHIE YRR BB
MR E R

ERBRSELBUMSPRENMEBRERNE
SRR T EE RIS BAHR—B -

HE219F12A31BLEFE  NEEHER
AUBRREENEBARERSELEN
7 2 KRB B 18 A R %8 34,798,000 7T (2018
F: AR¥S524250007T) © TEXEKAEB
TR AR DRSS E R R YIRS o
AR EBIRERITENEERENESNU
s - REEBSEABMNNEERE R
RERENTER - EEZEEIE - fhoh - B
SEEMEBNBHRHRBEL RIFEA -
Hitt - BEEHE2019F 128318 ILEE
FHRRRE ©
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. HttEREEE

Licence and
Distribution  health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates relationships Total
FAER
(5L PHPE RERMES EFH% #st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR
(note b) (note b) (note a)
(H=Eb) (H=ED) (Ftzta)
31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H
Costat 1 January 2019, net of 20191 A1 HEIBKA -
accumulated amortisation bk 255N 55,390 2,244 1,907 10,166 69,707
Amortisation provided during FREHREE
the year (note 6) (KtzEe) (1,759) (346) (250) (1,312) (3,667)
Impairment during the year (note 6) S AJRI{E (FT5E6) (30,680) - - (5,386) (36,066)
Exchange realignment ERRE 299 38 25 25 387
At 31 December 2019, net of 20195128318
accumulated amortisationand 1% Rt 8 RAE
impairment 23,250 1,936 1,682 3,493 30,361
At31 December 2019: R2019F12H318 :
Cost B AR 62,257 3,574 2,370 13,590 81,791
Accumulated amortisation and KT EHEMORE
impairment (39,007) (1,638) (688) (10,097) (51,430)
Net carrying amount FEFE 23,250 1,936 1,682 3,493 30,361
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

II/

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) BEfmEEE (&)
Licence and
Distribution health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates  relationships Total
FAER
5] DEME REEMEE EPERF Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note b) (note b) (note a)
(KtzEb) (FizED) (FizEa)
31 December 2018 R2018F12A314
Costat 1 January 2018, net of FR2018% 1 A1 BHIACA -
accumulated amortisation Nk 258 5N 57310 2614 1772 11490 73,186
Addition 20 - - 365 - 365
Amortisation provided during FREHEEH
the year (note 6) (Kizt6) (1,768) (348) (221) (1314) (3651)
Exchange realignment EHAE (152) 22 ©) (10) (193)
At 31 December 2018 RR2018F12A31R 55390 2,244 1907 10,166 69,707
At 31 December 2018; RR2018F 12318 :
Cost A 61,754 3497 2345 13,556 81,152
Accumulated amortisation S (6,364) (1,253) (438) (3390) (11,445)
Net carrying amount REEE 55,390 2,044 1907 10,166 69,707
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, since the supervision and
rectification measures of the Chinese health food industry were strengthened,
the Sinolife CGU and Hejian CGU suffered from operation losses. Accordingly,
impairment indicators were identified for the two CGU'’s non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets. The
Group performed impairment test for the relevant CGUs, for which impairment
indicators were identified. The carrying amounts of the two CGUs were
comparable to the recoverable amounts of the CGUs based on fair value less
costs of disposal. Fair value of the items of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets for the two CGUs were based on the valuation
performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuers on the basis of market value of the underlying

non-current assets.

Based on the assessment, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
RMB5,386,000 in relation to Customer Relationships of Hejian CGU (2018: Nil)
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations in 2016 are regarded
as having indefinite useful lives because the products with the trademarks are
expected to generate net cash flows indefinitely.

The licence acquired as part of the business combination in 2016 is regarded as
having indefinite useful life because the licence term can be renewed annually
and is expected to generate net cash flows indefinitely.
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(a)

(b)

HZE2019F12A31BIEFE - ARFPBERER
TENETEENEFAME  FERSEES
URRBRESELBNELZERSE - At W
EREEEENNIFRDEE(REDE  BRE
BEAREMEREE) GFERETR - &;
B ERE R - ANEE ARG EEBLE
TRERR - BREAAERHESKRANFE - MiE
REeEEBMNMEMERRSEEEMATRE
TEEE c MERSELBMNYE - BER&
HEURHEMBEEEEBENAABDNERB LR
EEERMMEME AT EEAGRARIREAS
ERBEEMNTEETHBERL

BIETE BE2019F12A31BILFEE  AE
ERRAKEReELEVRFBEEENRE
BB AR 53860007C (20184 © ) o

HitpBRFHMBEFEENBENR

016 FEREBEH — R0 TN EIRRE A
BEEERENERSS  ERAEBRERENE
ERIMBELFRERN -

2016 FAERES A Gt — 20D PRI EB HORT AT 1R
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)
(b) Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (continued)
Trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are allocated to the
following CGUs for impairment testing:
Hejian CGU; and

LN CGU.

The net carrying amounts of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
allocated to each of the cash-generating units are as follows:

1

BT R T ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

17. Hib B EE (F)

BifaE - (48)

(b) EHitEFERHEASGTONELEENRENR
ggﬁl‘&?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬂ?ﬁ DECT A
TREESEBMAMERERR

REREELEM K
INIR & E BT

DETEREELEUNEMAFERARAS
HETEEMNREFENT

Hejian LN Total

PN LN st

2019 2019 2019

2019 F 2019 2019 &

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR%TR AR®T T

Trademarks iz 8,720 4,697 13,417
Licence Hro)E - 1,127 1,127
8,720 5,824 14,544

Hejian LN Total

R LN #ast

2018 2018 2018

20184 20184F 20184F

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBFT

Trademarks [t 39,400 4,595 43,995
Licence A E - 1,103 1,103
39,400 5,698 45,098
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Notes: (continued)

(b)

Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (continued)

The values of trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are assessed
annually by using the relief from the royalty method calculated based on a five-
year cash flow projection approved by senior management. The fair values of
the trademarks and the licence were equal to the future royalty savings

resulting from ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, including royalty saving rates, long term growth rates
and discount rates used in the annual impairment testing of trademarks and
licence with indefinite useful lives in 2019 are as follows:

Sales annual growth rate (%) HEFIRRE (%)
Royalty saving rates (%) FFETHREGE A BRI AYE (%)
Long term growth rate REERE

Pre-tax discount rate B BT AL IR =&

The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate over the
forecast period. It is based on past performance and management’s
expectations of market development.

The royalty saving rates used are with reference to comparable intangible
assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers typically pay for the use of

such assets.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external

information sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of RMB30,680,000 (2018: Nil) in relation to Trademarks of Hejian
CGU, arising from the business combinations. With details set out note 16, the
operating performances and the growth rate of Hejian CGU were below the
expectation, accordingly based on the impairment test, management provided
impairment in the year ended 31 December 2019.
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FaE - (8%)

(b) HiEEERACASGNEFEENRENR
(%)
AR ERBAERSTNEERTAIEFFRAR
RAFFHREEA BN AEITAE - SHEERE
EREEEHENTFRERETEAN - BERET
BN ARESNEEEEELEMNBEFIERE
B
20194 - BASRMRR - BIFAAERAFEASHH
AR I 3 AT 35 1) S R EDRI A P PR A MO A T A
ERBHAE REIAERERMBERMNT
Hejian LN LN
Nz LN LN
Trademark Trademark Licence
Gl Gl AT A RE
3%-33% 2%-25% 2%-25%
3% 4% 1%
3% 2% 2%
23.7% 22.3% 23.0%

HEFERRDRBASRBMANTHFERER
Ko HERNERBREERLEEBETHER
BIEH] o

RS EERESH R H2RAI & LR E
WEERETHEREREERTE X NOABE
FHE-RAE -

B ER R B9 BEER SR TR BU AT RA TR R F [ iR BEARRA B8
TUEYVHEE B

DETERRRNEELRINEPER R B -

HZE2019F12A3HILFE AEEBRRHEE
BEHEENERERSEEEMNEZAEBORM
EE B AR 30680000 T (20184 « £) o JRFE
AT 16MFE  RERESELENMNEE
RERERRERES  ARERENR &
BEHZE 2019412 A31 AILFEFERE -



Raw materials R
Work-in-progress e
Finished goods BURK oh

Goods merchandise S

Trade receivables B 5 MR
Impairment BE

In general, the entities in the Group have no credit period granted
to the retail customers, and invoices would be due once they have
been issued. The credit period offered by the Group to its
distributors is generally 30 to 90 days, and the credit term granted
to TV shopping platforms is 30 days. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

B TS R B e

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2018
20184F
RMB'000
AREFIT

25,655

756
61,920
22,573

110,904

2018
2018 4F
RMB'000

ARETFIT

62,574
(4,920)

57,654

e K%E%E%Kﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁ
DA% —EHABEZAMAES A - NEE
RETHHEENEER —RAB0KRENOKX
EETFTERBYEENEEHAIKR 5
BERETHRNGPLES ER XA
MEAEENESRUGNBEZEDHE
FER A5SERMESREEETARK -
REBVERHEEZRBELHITEET
KA R E M EEEE - B 5 EKFE
BRE .

IF Em
Uﬂ?; i

—
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M et

31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. EZRWFIR (F)
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of reporting R ERRZEZAHENINBEEREEDN
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as B 5 EWBFIENRE T

202

follows:

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TF AREFIT

Within 1 month 1MEAA 17,106 34,277
Over 1 month but within 3 months BB E3@EA 15,293 15,584
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3MEAE1F 11,444 6,875
Over 1 year HBiE1F 557 918
44,400 57,654

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

BIREFIRNREBRBEEEIT

2019 2018

2019 % 20184F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARET T

At beginning of the year =] 4,920 709
Impairment losses recognised ERRRESE - 4,207
Impairment losses reversed EEEIRERE (663) =
Amount written off as uncollectible E 7] Us [ i 88 2 & %8 (43) -
Exchange realignment b R 110 10
4,324 4920
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An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEXR

Gross carrying amount REREE
Expected credit losses TEEE B &R
As at 31 December 2018

Current

BN ER

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEEX 0.3%
Gross carrying amount HERTEE 36,546
Expected credit losses TEHEEERE 110

BT SRR M ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

RE&HE B RRAREEEETREDT -
Ut ERBEEER - BEXDERAS
BUBEENNZEZF 2045 (A
B EmiER - BEPERMFEARER
FREMEERBILANRELE) &8 H
AHEE - ZtERRBEEMEER &
BREKREBSAHASNERAEEER
= AT AR RO AR AR 1 TEORI B & 3R Je AT
FER - —RME - BZEKFIAMNE
Be—FRBAZRNBFATESA T
LAHES

TRV AKEERRBEEFENES
FERRIAREERRK O -

720195128 31H

MR20184F12 A31 H

Past due
461 Hf

Less than 1to3 Over

1 month months 3 months Total
TMEALKW 1&23f8 3EAMULE e

5.2% 10.4% 41.9% 7.9%
14,109 2,917 9,002 62,574
734 303 3,773 4920
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M et

31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FE{IFIE - RE R HMEWRRIE
RECEIVABLES

2019 2018

2019 2018 £

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Prepayments TERFRIE 5,283 12,576
Right-of-return assets REEEE 569 =
Deposits and other receivables e R H MR EIE 6,556 7,075
Interest receivable JEUS I B, 4 116
Value-added tax recoverable A] U (o] 1 (B F 5,022 4367
17,434 24,134
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The B At & E @ s R E © 5T A Bt 45 65
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables e R EE S LI M HI R AR 8 FE LR
for which there was no recent history of default. RIA o
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RERRESEEY
2019 2018
2019 F 20186
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BsE ARET R AREET T
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEER 93,206 92,678
Time deposits THER 16,000 110,337
109,206 203,015
Less: Pledged depositsin current assets 3 : BV EEANKE HFKIRFR 29 (1,685) (434)
Pledged deposits in non-current ERBEENNAEATR 29
assets - (1,170)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEEY 107,521 201411
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Denominated in RMB AAREESHE
Denominated in NZD AR PERE ST EHE
Denominated in HKD LA ITTEHE
Denominated in AUD LUBRITEHE
Denominated in USD LAZETTEME
Denominated in EUR AR TEHE
Total et

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign

B TS R B e

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

2018
20184F
RMB'000
AREFIT

141,264
34,943
25,124

73
1
6

201,411

AR IEA] A i R R AR - A
AR 4% rp B K R S B B (R D) e A BE - S B
RASEERRTE @ NEBEEEEBRENR

Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

EINEXBNRITEARBLBLSEME

ﬁé}o

RITRLSREE A RITHERAN RZFEF
KR - EHEHERAETRHAR - £
BE—HE=@ER BURRAEEEIKRIE
TFE K - WIRAAR G B E IR RET R -
RITERLRBEAEREFEERNAEREFEER
AT BA0 BB KO AC SRRV ERTT o

ERPEBEROARAT —F
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SRR M oL

31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

22,

23.

206

TRADE PAYABLES 22, EZEMRE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the MNEHRNE SENRB(REEZEQH)
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: REREE AT T
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTFT
Within 1 month 1MEAN 4,487 9,021
Over 1 month but within 3 months TEAAZE3EA 4,760 5,490
Over 3 months but within 1 year IMEAE1F 2,477 320
Over 1 year Hid 1 F 1,771 847
13,495 15,678
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the credit terms BoORERNRBAREREEH KR AE30E
are normally between 30 and 40 days. 40K o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HittENRERETEH
2019 2018
2019 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt aE ARETR ARBT T
Contract liabilities aHaE @) 10,958 7,957
Refund liabilities RREE 9,315 17,509
Other payables At T FRIE (b) 19,291 22,364
Accrued payroll & 5135 B 18,353 19,771
Other tax payables HihpEFiIE 1,376 5,569
Interest payable FETHIE 25 41
59,318 73,211
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS ¥R MY et

31 December 2019 20194 12 831 H

II/

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED) 3. HittENRIERETER (&)
Notes: P 5E -
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) BHBEFBNOT
2019 2018
2019 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%¥T R ARETT
Short-term advances received from customers & P UER ) R HR AR 10,958 7,957
(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing. (b) H R RIS o
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24, ;TESEITER
2019 2018
20195 20185
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
EBRFIZ (o) ) AR®T B FI% o) S5 AREFTL
Current b
Bank loans — secured RITER—BHER LPR+0.2575* 2020 20,000 = = =
Current portion of long RERTERE
term bank loans — secured  FIERERD— B 5.70%* 2020 7,500 570 2019 20,000
27,500 20,000
Non-current £
Bank loans — secured FITER—HER - - - 570 2020 7500
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

24,

25.

208

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24, TEHBITERE)
(CONTINUED)
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tx AREBTFT
Analysed into: DITA
Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRITEN
Within one year or on demand —FRIRENR 27,500 20,000
In the second year, inclusive E-F(PREE=F) - 7,500
27,500 27,500
& The Group's bank loan at the effective interest rate of LPR (Loan Prime Rate & AEBEZERERMNR(—FRANKERER

within one year) +0.2575% is secured by the pledge over the Group's building
located at Changjiang Road 188, Nanjing, the PRC. Further details are contained
in note 13.

** The Group's bank loan at the effective interest rate of 5.70% is secured by the
mortgages over the Group’s 100% equity interests of Shanghai Weiyi
Investment & Management Limited Company (_E/& IR E ERERAF]).

) +0.2575% B BRE F K5+ BRIRITE RIARE
Bz A B R R R OT BK 188 5% MR AV IE R (B4

R o E—FRBERNRMITE3 -

* AER B2 5.70% B M X B RITERALRE
B LR E EI2 AR DR 100% B HE AR

BIEYELR ©

PROVISION 25. &
2019 2018
20194 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F ARETFIT
At 1 January R1A1H 714 678

Increase in discounted amounts arising MERF B E Mg N 2 ALIREE

from the passage of time 21 41
Exchange realignment I W, 385 (7) (5)
At 31 December R®12A31H 728 714

GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, has a restoration obligation under a
property lease agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RIS ¥R MY et

31 December 2019 20194 12 831 H

1

26. DEFERRED TAX 26. ELEFHIE

(@) Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the @)
consolidated statement of financial position and movements
during the year are as follows:

REA - EEE BRI RERNE
ERBEEANESFBOT

Financial
assets
Unrealised at fair value
profit through
arising from Write-  Impairment other
Taxable intra-group down of of trade Accrued  comprehensive
loss transactions  inventories  receivables expense income Total
REEAAE
£EH AR
ERB  RBEER ESE PEREN
BR  RERET MA%E WEERE EHIEE tREE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR AR%TR
31 December 2019 R2019% 124318
At 1 January 2019 ®019F1A1R 18,665 4,201 7,297 1,377 2,831 500 34,871
Deferred tax charged to profitor -~ FAERIB B
loss during the year RILHR (11,264) (3,507) (5,882) (403) (1,165) - (22,221)
Exchange realignment [ A% 51 - 35 18 9 - 13
Gross deferred tax at R2019%12A31H&
31 December 2019 BEHEEE 7,452 694 1,450 992 1,675 500 12,763
Financial
assets
Unrealised at fair value
profit through
arising from Write- Impairment other
Taxable intra-group down of of trade Accrued  comprehensive
loss  transactions inventories receivables expense income Total
RERAE
B FTAEAM
REEEM 2 2EYER
ERBEE  RERET HEFs  WEERE ZitHX SRAE st
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT AR%TR ARETT  AREBTT ARETR
31 December 2018 #2018 12318
At1January 2018 R2018%1 810 7918 5545 237 198 1638 500 16,036
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ RNERBIEFA/ (1K)
toprofitorloss during the year ~ JEREFIE 10,786 (1,344) 7060 1,176 1,195 = 18873
Exchange realignment S (39) - - 3 ) = (38)
Gross deferred tax at R 20181231 BE
31 December 2018 BREHIEEHE 18665 401 7297 1377 2831 500 34871
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

(b) Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the b) RERN EHEEHERARERNIE
consolidated statement of financial position and movements ERIEBELRES BN :

during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2019 7201951 A1 H
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year  RERNEH AR IREFE
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 5 2
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2019 720194 12 A 31 HRIRLERIA B B85
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition
of a subsidiary
Wi —RME
NEIEER
NRERE
RMB'000
ARETFT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 H 14,345
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year A RNEF A B Z A IELEFIA (333)
Exchange realignment PE X A 9
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31 HMELE BB EERE 14,021
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEBRPREAETBEEA
RMB164,914,000 (2018: RMB43,403,000) that will expire in one AR 1649140007 (2018 F : ARK
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 43,4030007T) - BN —ZERFAE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of B - DAKSH R R FE ER T 5 1| o I AR T
the losses of RMB38,939,000 (2018: RMB5,656,000) as they R E B A R 38,939,000 7T (2018 4F
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for A R #5,656,0007T ) P8 K 3 E 75 1H
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable BE - DEEKRBR —BRERNESE
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be EEHNMEB AR - BEXER A REH
utilised. BERT RN AREHERBES

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Issued and fully paid: BEITRBEHT
946,298,370 (2018: 946,298,370) 946,298,370 }% (2018 £F :
ordinary shares 946,298,370 J%) & @A

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 121 to 122 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in
the PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
determined under the PRC accounting standards to the
statutory surplus reserve fund, before profit distributions are
made. The statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable
and may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation
issues by way of paid-up capital.

The amounts represented the balance of the credit amount
arising from the excess of the par value of the shares from the
paid-in capital contribution. These arose from (i) the share
issue in 2012 when the Company was reformed into a stock
limited company, (i) the share issue in 2014 under the initial
public offering, (iii) the share issue in 2016 for the acquisition
of a subsidiary and (iv) the H share issue in 2016.

B TS R B e

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 B

2018
20185
RMB'000
AREFIT

94,630

AEERAFERBAFENRESRER
HEHRUBRRE 121 Z 1 2ENEEE
HEBHRER -

RIBHBUER  PERFEAETARA
EELFBDIRAT - SR RIET
Eer E£AETHRRERNBEREE
EEBRFEER  AERBRBEEZ
Ak - R] AR SH B 1R Sk DA B R
ARAEHE AL H#IT -

1B S B B SR A B B IR (|
ENERSEAER ZZEBHKE
(2012 FRIRR D B 1T (B R A A R E2K
FARMEIRT]) ¢ ()2014FRIEH X
NABEEITHRRMD LT i) LUE
— I B A AR 2016 FHIAR D BE1T 2
(V) PR 2016 FFHY H AR BE1T ©
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31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

On 24 December 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Australia Cobayer Health Food Co Pty Ltd.
("Australia Cobayer”) from Gui Pinghu (£ S 38 ) (‘Mr. Gui”).
This transaction has been accounted for using the principles
of merger accounting as a result of common control
transaction. The excess of consideration paid over the
carrying amounts of the net assets acquired was directly
debited into the merger reserve.

This reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

On 2 August 2017, the Company acquired the 40% equity
interest in Shanghai Weiyi from the non-controlling
shareholder. The excess of consideration paid over the
company amounts of the equity interest acquired was
debited into the other reserve.

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from
an owner-occupied property to an investment property
carried at fair value in 2019.
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2012128248 - NEBE M EF
(TR % & 1) Y B Australia Cobayer
Health Food Co Pty Ltd. ([Australia
Cobayer |) B 2 EBARHE o B 2k @232
S WEARXRSEZREHSHER
BIARR - TR EBLTKEER
EFEREESSEETASHREE

ZHEBBRAAEBRERINEHIT R
RELMELZHE -

R2017F8 A28 » AR &)\ IEHERK
% 3R U B | I 400 AR AE o PTSE AN
RO E R T AT URCEE IR /) A R SRIEET
AE R -

BEBMFEHBESHEN2019FKEETA
AMEEERER/RANEINRZE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

BT R T ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

1

29. CiEKFHZRE

2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARBETT

Pledged deposits in non-current assets* ERBEEANS KT IZE
(note 21) (Bf¥zE21) - 1,170
Pledged deposits in current assets* (note 21)  REIBEERK ERFIZ G *
(BzE21) 1,685 434
1,685 1,604
@ During the year of 2019, a subsidiary of the Group entered into a lease @ R2019F » REBER — M ERQRAEREA
arrangement as the lessee. Pursuant to the lease agreement, a bank deposit GHFITVAERHE - REAERZ HER
equivalent to RMB1,184,000 (AUD242,000) (2018: RMB1,170,000 (AUD242,000), AR % 1,184,000 7T (242,000387T) (20184 : AR
included in pledged deposits) was pledged for four years and will be due on 15 #1,170,000 7T (242,000)87T)) (FFAEE IR E)

June 2020.

30. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

BIRITEREEER - REAF I AR 2020 F 6
A15BE|H -

30. HitERBEE

2019 2018
2019 F 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBETT

Long-term deposits for leased properties
Prepayment for acquisition of health
food certificates

AREEMENRBTR 4 522
W RER MEENBNRE
5,450 6,212

5,454 6,734
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

31.

214

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. %R
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions: (a)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB2,168,000 and
RMB2,168,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for plant and equipment and motor vehicles (2018: Nil).

FTEFBEERS :

FRN - AEERBRERZEURTE
MNEEZHS R BFERAEEEREE
BEMNIIEREAE AR 21680007T
B AR 2,1680007T (2018 4F « £) ©

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BB THEEEE :
activities:
2019 2019
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
RITRER HESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx AR® TR
At 31 December 2018 72018 12 A31 H 27,500 -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNE BB E2ER
Fl6RMTE - 22,951
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 720191 A1 8 (KEF) 27,500 22,951
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREEH - (5,723)
New leases FHE - 2,168
Exchange realignment HE 5 8 B - (127)
At 31 December R12A31H 27,500 19,269
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

31.

BT R T ot

31 December 2019 20194 12 831 H

31. FERERERME (F)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BIEEENEMEEE : (&)
activities: (continued)
2018 2018
Bank
borrowings
HRITER
RMB'000
ARBTFT
At1 January R1A1R 77,000
Changes from financing cash flows BEReREE (49,500)
At 31 December M12A31H 27,500
32. COMMITMENTS 32, &¥E
(@) The Group had the following capital commitments (a) AEERBFEHAREBFUTES
at the end of the reporting period: I
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTFT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4V18 ) AR
Land and buildings +ih REF - 38,844
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 December (b) R12A31 ANREHEERE
2018: 2018 F:
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 &
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BEREBET A HEE L S HERN R R RIE
falling due as follows: HENFBED AT
2018
20184
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Within one year —FR 11,751
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEZRF(REEREMS) 17,912
After five years AEMNE 932
30,595
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31 December 2019 2019412 31 H

33.

34.

216

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

33.

Details of the Group’s principal related party are as follows:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

AT R

AEBETEZMB T FBENOT

AEBIEEEEASNHHM

2019 2018

20194 20184F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARBT T

Basic salaries and bonus BEREE RIEL 3,266 1,036
Social insurance and housing fund tEREEEEAES 212 229
3,478 1,265

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019
Financial assets

34. BERETNEMTH

RBERNEER B TAREERNT ¢

2019 5
EREE

Financial

assets at
amortised cost Total

TR 6 A AN ET
HeRmEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tx AR® TR
Trade receivables Z 5 REIGIB 44,400 44,400

Financial assets included in prepayments, STATENFIE - ek

deposits and other receivables Hab B HIBERN & BVE &= 6,560 6,560
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEESEED 107,521 107,521
Pledged deposits [REEwE e 1,685 1,685
Deposits included in other non-current assets 5 AE B IER B & EE A7 3K 4 4
160,170 160,170
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B175

II/

KRR

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERSTHNEMIA (&)
(CONTINUED)
2019 (continued) 2019 ¥ (&)
Financial liabilities =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
REBHR AT
HemeE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR%TR
Trade payables E Z ER 13,495 13,495
Interest-bearing bank borrowings oS fEfﬂﬁm 27,500 27,500
Lease liabilities HEaE 19,269 19,269
Financial liabilities included in other FT A A < 58 &
payables and accruals EErERANERmAE 19,316 19,316
79,580 79,580
2018 2018 F
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost Total
FTRSREE wEt
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 57,654 57,654
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABNFIE ek
deposits and other receivables HEEWRIEN S REE 7,191 7,191
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 201,411 201,411
Pledged deposits [REEw e 1,604 1,604
Deposits included in other non-current assets 5+ AH M IER BN E EERITF K 522 522
268,382 268,382
MRPEBHERAERAT —T—NFFR J 217
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Financial liabilities

Trade payables 2 S IE IR

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITENK

Financial liabilities included in other ST AR AL R R
payables and accruals

The Group does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure
to market risk, including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk. As the directors of the Company consider that
the Group's exposure to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the
Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments for
hedging purposes. The Group's risk management objectives and
policies mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of
these risks on the Group by closely monitoring the individual

exposure as follows:

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPC

fEaJr;%f’ﬁHE’\JiraﬂEfé’:

)RT 2019

=R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
IR SHPK AN T
HNEerAaE FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIT AREETIT
15,678 15,678
27,500 27,500
22,405 22,405
65,583 65,583

AEE W EETAE @R B RBER RES
A EFGTEHETEE %Tﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂﬂ
BN ERAEEMEHNT SRR -
FEERR  RBHECEAR  INERR
MERER - AREAR T%%;mﬁzli‘ilﬁfr
HHNTHRAREFNRKEKT  NEEH
3 FE AR 0T A sk i T A LAYE %4 A
Zo ASENRREEBFERBEREZM
EREBREYEZENTELRR - FFRIEL
ZRRHAEENEETIZE



The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group’s management continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit rates assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a number of customers which
had no recent history of default.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are set
outin note 19.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

B TS R B e
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AEENEERREIEREEEI R
Hitg WS E - REERERFEER
b2 AEBEEIEEFERERRK
¥ URERERBURETTE N E B HE
o ttih AEEESREMRER
A RBUEER KO SRR - ARERY
AR el & BT R R SR EE R - Bt
HmE  AAREFRA/AKENE
B E AR T o

R RRTHESHNEERRER - R
ARXZHFRERBREEFREE
BT REERRHRTT

AEETHEEASTHNERERR - B
SRR B 1R BT I HE 450
BREES o

BFRASEE S BYGARELRNE
ERBHME- P EERBEHNME
190

ARE B BOR = HIE T A A B 1
MBESHFR  AREBTEERHD
B NERERTEORRSFHER
REET 2 REE NN AREER
B UENRERRHESHER -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

220

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities

35. TRl EIE (48)

(b) RENVE =B (F)
TRHAINAEEEREBEHRT AR
FEMBER - TRODREBSBRABNK
MRASRERR  ZFTRARD
REAEEANEANROREE AR
B eRABENEIH B IR EER

are based on the agreed repayment dates. HEIEEF -
Total
contractual On demand
Carrying undiscounted or within Over
amount cash flows one year one year
HERREE REREK
ARTEE ReRE X—FR —F Bk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETT AREKETET
Asat31 December2019 720194 12 A31H
Trade payables B S ENRIE 13,495 13,495 13,495 -
Other payables Hib g A 19,316 19,316 19,316 -
Interest-bearing bank sHEIRITIER
borrowings 27,500 27,796 27,796 -
Lease liabilities HE&E 19,269 21,678 6,699 14,979
79,580 82,285 67,306 14,979
Asat31 December 2018 720184 12 A31H
Trade payables B S ESFIA 15,678 15,678 15,678 =
Other payables HAth FET IR 22,405 22,405 22,405 =
Interest-bearing bank FHERITERK
borrowings 27,500 29,001 21,268 7,733
65,583 67,084 59,351 7,733
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Financial assets TRMEE

Pledged deposits EERES

Deposits included in other 5t A E At 3E7E )
non-current assets BEZTER

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals. The differences are immaterial since the fair values
are mainly equal to their carrying amounts.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 23% (2018: 17%) of the Group's sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale, whilst
approximately 18% (2018: 14%) of costs were denominated in
the units’ functional currencies. The Group also has certain
bank balances denominated in NZD, USD and HKD.

BT SRR M ot
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AEEERMIAREERARES
BEREERMNNEEERAAER
B

2018 2018
20184 2018 4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFTT
1,604 1,604

522 522

2,126 2,126

EREFRReRESETEY B
FEW IR - B HRMNFIA - 5FARN
IR BE REMEEGIAN B E
st AEAM R FRIE R ETEAN
TREENQNE AR AR ERK
FEREREE  WERALTEK -

REEEZR S EROINER - 48
78 B B B A A 48 BB VL T RE RS LA SN
MEBEBEMEL ASBHEEBETY
23% (20184 : 17%) A 1EH $H & & &
BUMNEEEBEUIINNEEZRT - ML
18% (2018 4F : 14%) Ky AKX A LA #E B B8
UM EREY| - XEBENEEE T
AMIPRRE T ST RS LR E/IRTT
wEER o
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35.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rates against NZD, USD, AUD and HKD, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's loss before tax
and equity (due to changes in the fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities).

35. TRl EIE (48)

(d) SMERBS (4)
TREINEMAEMESRFTTER
BRT  RIERRARE LAFER
T ET ORI EATHIEERSIEA
BB YA KB IR A E R RS
FRE(BEREREERBEAAE

Increase/

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in

(decrease) in

(decrease) in

RMBrate loss before tax in equity*
ARBER R B Al 5 18 g,
L#(FH) @i,/ CRD) (R D) *
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET R ARETR
2019 20195
If NZD weakens against RMB AR T ARBEZE (1%) 311 (1,863)
If NZD strengthens against RMB  fixi 4R 0 8 7T 5 A R EEFHE 1% (311) 1,863
If USD weakens against RMB METHARBEE (1%) 79 -
If USD strengthens against RMB  fid 3= 7T 5 A REFHE 1% (79) -
If AUD weakens against RMB WRTHAREEE (1%) - (257)
If AUD strengthens against RMB  {i#3 7T 3, A REEFHE 1% - 257
If HKD weakens against RMB B THAARBEE (1%) 23 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB  {i#/& 7T 5 A REFHE 1% (23) -
2018 2018 F
If NZD weakens against RMB fmAFam T A ARKERE (1%) 349 (1,418)
If NZD strengthens against RMB {41 FaBE 7T 3 A REEFHE 1% (349) 1,418
If USD weakens against RMB METHARBEE (1%) - -
If USD strengthens against RMB i3T5 A REFAE 1% - -
If HKD weakens against RMB AT ARBERE (1%) 251 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB i 7T 3 A REEFHE 1% (251) -

* Excluding retained profits
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The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (note 24). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank borrowings (note 24). Management monitors the
interest rate exposures and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
relating to pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried
at prevailing market rates. However, such exposure is minimal
to the Group as these bank balances are all short-term in
nature.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the interest rate as stipulated by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings,
which is prepared assuming that the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

For variable-rate bank borrowings, if the interest rates had
been 30 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2019 would have decreased by approximately
RMB82,500 (2018: RMB97,500).

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

BT SRR M ot

31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 B

R £ B T B B E A R SRITRE A A e
B KRR (E24) - REEJAEER
7 BIRITERBANA S REN X
[ (FHRE24) - &3 B B M R A B
WK A B KL BE P ERNFRE

G o
AA

RER B N 8 B IR E B T 5 A R 5T
BZEEMBRITERERITEB IR
EREMERE - AT - HRZFR
TTRAEBESNE  2EREARE
=i = B o

AEEZREREMNERBREIEES
REAREZ AREEFTIZTFEAR
RITATAA Z MK ED o

ATBURE DT HERE RRITE
RMEZHNEERMEE - 2515
RENBEMRRAEERESER
EEFEA—HRAREE -

FBRITERME + MAELEFH30
EEZ - MABEMESESERTTE
AREBREE219F12A318 IEF
EzBBREBEBRLDOARE
82,500 7C(20184F : AR¥97,5007T) °

AEBEAETR 2 EAXAEBRARER
SECHERLERENRERRRER
HERIFHEBERY BRBREESR
KAk -

REBMEBHERERE  WRELHE
RBBCRIEEEERR D (EL
Bo BN ABRENEE  ~5E
AlRE TR AR EIR S R RER
AR EEITHTRR o AN BRI SNEB
MEINEY E R ESKAER - BZE 201912
A318 K2018412 318 It F & -
BEARABEEMNBEE  BURIEFHES
@J °
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The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. The
Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio between 10%
and 30%. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables, other payables
and accruals. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and other 5T BIR1T M E b &K

borrowings (note 24) (PfF5E24)
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEAE(FEE15)
Trade payables (note 22) B 5 e 7R (i sE22)
Other payables and accruals H b A~ FRIA &

(note 23) fEETE R (fsE23)
Net debt (E 0t
Equity attributable to BRARHRAE ABEER

owners of the parent

Capital and net debt BN ETRFEE
Gearing ratio BEARALE

The wide spread of the novel Coronavirus in China since the
beginning of 2020 is a fluid and challenging situation facing all the
industries of the society. The Group has already assessed the overall
impact of the situation on the operation of the Group and taken all
possible effective measures to limit and keep the impact in control.
The Group will keep continuous attention on the change of
situation and make timely response and adjustments in the future.
The Group does not have other significant subsequent events.
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AEEFHEEAEL R(AEBLF
HERAKAERERNNER FE) BER
AR - REENBREBEEARLL
RN TF10% 2 30% ° E5 FEEE
FRrERITREMER HEAE -
B SENRIE - EMENRIBRER
BRH -BREBHANEEABLEN
T

1 January 31 December
2019 2018
20195 20184
1TH18 12H31H
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

27,500 27,500
22,951 =
15,678 15,678
73,211 73,211
139,340 116,389
603,554 603,554
742,894 719,943
19% 16%

2020 F AR - HABMRBESRFRHEZ
EX HESTSERIARSETER
T kB AIRR - AEEE L EZIB R
AEBEBEBRINBEYE  WHEIMA
AIREM B RUEE - AR BB EW i E
MEERIERER AEEBEERER
SUEYEEED - PR SR VB H B A [0 B N A o
AEEWVEEMERHEREE -
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Information about the statement of the financial position of the RMEBAR BEAARATBERIERNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ST (N
2018
2018 4F
RMB'000
AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 10,158
Investment properties SE=E/ES 2,606
Investments in subsidiaries RBARIEE 342,404
Deferred tax assets EETIAE E 11,045
Total non-current assets IEMBEELE 366,213
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 50,940
Trade receivables B 5 WA 14,224
Due from subsidiaries RS NGIE 241,704
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfTFIE ~ 24 M H it EU FUIE 8,947
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESZEY 147,775
Total current assets RBEERE 463,590
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B 5 R IR 39
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT ERITE R 20,000
Due to subsidiaries FEASTHT B A B R E 72,304
Other payables and accruals HEmEMRIENEASER 16,728
Total current liabilities mEBEER 109,071
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 354,519
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STESRITER 7,500
Total non-current liabilities EnBEEETE 7,500
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES &S ERABAR 720,732
NET ASSETS EETE 713,232
EQUITY =
Share capital A% 7R 94,630
Other reserves (note) H b (M) 618,602
Total equity AR 713,232
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38.
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37. R BB R ()

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: FfsE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NATREEBREWNT :
Retained
Statutory Asset profits/
Capital surplus revaluation (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
EE BE REFE,
BAME BERRE EfbHE (ReHEE) £y
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKETT ARBTT ARETT ARKTT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 18 544,223 47315 - 46,237 637,775
Total comprehensive loss for the year  4F A2 T E5 184858 - - - (19,173) (19,173)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12 A31H 544,223 47315 - 27,064 618,602
At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 544,223 47,315 - 27,064 618,602
Total comprehensive loss for the year 4 [N 2 [l E5 18 4258 - - 101 (252,166) (252,065)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 128318 544,223 47,315 101 (225,102) 366,537

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020.

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

38. #tESRE BB HE

REMBRERBESSMN2020F3 /8278
b AR FETI) 3 -




A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements and re-presented as appropriate, is

set out below.

RESULTS

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits of a joint venture

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Income tax (expense)/credit

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

£

Efl AR
HEREHRS
TBRAX

Hifx

BERA
NE—RAEEERNE

BEAAE/ (BR)
s (R%),/ R

REERIE/ (B8)
BEH

BRAEAEAA
SRy

2015
20154
RMB'000

ARETT

397,064

(77,138)

319,926

15,008
(90,054)
(59,488)

(1212)

327

184,507
(45,557)

138,950

136,233
2,717

138,950

A FEBEHE

e RN REECYHRRVEES (HEM)
MAKBESIAEYRFEZRE  EE A
FOFZER i Z&TIAT o

Year ended 31 December

BZ1nAALEE

2016 2017 2018
20165 20174 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR
466,241 472490 453,199
(139,549) (166,893) (204,229)
326,692 305,597 248,970
13407 7.252 9,053
(131905) (190761) (225,550)
(85,385) (83,090) (79,768)
(3719) (23319) (76,465)

= (1815) (3363)

426 24 -

119,516 14,088 (127,123)
(28,870) (3,245) 14,286
90,646 10,843 (112837)
87,232 4,209 (112:837)
3414 6,634 -
90,646 10,843 (112837)
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFH BB R

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE - BERFEERER
INTERESTS

As at 31 December

W12831H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20154 2016 4F 20174 20184 20194
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AR®ETT ARE®ETT ARETR
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 779,759 983,664 874,968 740981 542,720
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (64,046) (102,855) (159,940) (137427) (131,570)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R (51,193) (57,585) = - -
TOTAL faEt 664,520 823,224 715,028 603,554 411,150
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